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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 25 MAY 2021 

CHAIRPERSON:  Good morning Ms Hofmeyr,  good morning  

everybody.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Good morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Before we star t  I  just  need to make 

one announcement  or  two.   The one the next  appearance 

before the commission of  the President  of  the Republ ic ;  

President  Ramaphosa wi l l  be on the 31s t  o f  May and on the 

1s t  o f  June.   Those are the dates that  I  have determined so  I  

announce them so that  the publ ic  knows.  10 

 He wi l l  appear in  h is  capaci ty  as the President  of  the  

Count ry but  as everybody wi l l  remember there  wi l l  s t i l l  be  

some issues that  he  wi l l  need to  deal  wi th  which he could  

not  –  could not  be deal t  wi th  when he appeared before the  

commission in  h is  capaci ty  as President  of  the ANC.  

 So he wi l l  deal  wi th  those issues and then he wi l l  

g ive h is  ev idence and be quest ioned in  h is  capaci ty  as  

President  of  the Count ry.  

 I  a lso wish  to  ind icate that  i t  is  the in tent ion of  the  

commission that  he – h is  appearance wi l l  for  a l l  in tents and 20 

purposes subject  to  one or  two qual i f icat ions be the last  

appearance or  wi l l  mark the last  wi tness to  g ive ora l  

ev idence before the commission next  week.    

 The commission is  t ry ing i ts  best  to  wrap up a l l  ora l  

ev idence – I  sa id that  wi l l  be  subject  to  one or  two 
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qual i f icat ions.   I  w i l l  deal  wi th  those qual i f icat ions at  some 

stage next  week af ter  he has completed  h is  ev idence.   So I  

wi l l  do so e i ther  the fo l lowing day or  wi th in  two days or  so 

af ter  he has g iven h is  ev idence.  

 The commission wi l l  s t i l l  –  or  i s  mindfu l  o f  the fact  

that  there are some appl icat ions for  leave to  cross-examine 

that  have not  been d isposed of  as yet  and these wi l l  be  

g iven due considerat ion and where the in terests  of  the 

in tegr i t y  o f  the  work of  the commission and the  in terests of  

a l l  concerned ind icate that  some except ions must  be made 10 

and some wi tness must  s t i l l  be ca l led that  wi l l  be looked at  

but  on the whole the commission w ishes to  wrap up i ts  ora l  

ev idence because by end of  h is  ev idence i t  w i l l  have 

covered a l l  the important  ev idence re lat ing to  the  mat te rs 

that  were inc luded in  the Publ ic  Protector ’s  Report  that  

gave r i se to  th is  commission.  

 Everybody wi l l  recal l  that  some t ime ago I  ind icated 

that  in  o rder  for  the commission to  be able to  complete i t s  

work wi th in  the t ime that  we are looking at  or  even last  year  

we would focus on what  I  sa id where the Publ ic  Protector  20 

issues that  is  those issues that  the Publ ic  Protec tor  had 

inc luded in  her  repor t  as i ssues tha t  th is  commission  should  

invest igate as opposed to other  issues that  fa l l  w i th in  the 

Terms of  Reference of  the commission but  a l l  ou ts ide of  

those Publ ic  Protector  i ssues.  
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 So the issue of  appl i cat ions fo r  leave to  cross-

examine that  have not  been d isposed of  is  receiv ing 

at tent ion  and where i t  i s  necessary to  accommodate speci f ic  

cases proper  considerat ion wi l l  be  g iven to  that  but  for  a l l  

in tents and purposes the  commission is  looking at  wrapping  

up the hear ing of  ora l  ev idence next  week.  

 There may be a few ind iv iduals that  in  my d iscret ion 

I  might  decide might  be requi red to  e i ther  furn ish a ff idavi ts  

la ter  in  June or  appear br ie f ly  to  deal  wi th  cer ta in  mat te rs 

where in  my v iew i t  is  important  for  the work  of  the 10 

commission that  those ind iv iduals be covered.  

 So I  thought  that  I  must  ment ion th is  and of  course I  

must  ind icate that  we had in i t ia l ly  contemplated that  the 

hear ing of  ora l  ev idence would be completed by  end of  

March that  is  why in  the appl icat ion that  I  made to the High 

Court  for  the extension of  the Term of  o f  –  Term of  the 

Commission f rom the end of  March to  the end of  June I  had 

ind icated that  the  months of  Apr i l ,  May and June would be 

used for  the preparat ion of  the repor t .  

 That  assessment  had been made in  good fa i th  and  20 

everyone knows how the commission has been work ing  

ext remely hard s ince the second hal f  o f  last  year  hold ing 

double sessions,  days sessions and evening sessions to  t ry  

and f in ish i ts  work.   But  we d id no t  succeed in  having ora l  

ev idence comple ted by end of  March despi te  our  best  
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e ffor ts .  

 And everyone knows that  i f  we had ended the  

hear ing of  ora l  ev idence by end of  March there  is  very  

important  ev idence that  has been led in  Apr i l  and May which  

would have been le f t  out  which  the nat ion needed to hear  

and that  inc ludes some evidence re lat ing to  the State  

Secur i ty  Agency.   But  i t  a lso inc ludes evidence by some of  

the h igh ranking off ic ia ls  of  the SOE’s in  respect  o f  whom 

there have been ser ious a l legat ions of  corrupt ion and state 

capture.  10 

 So i t  was important  that  those h igh ranking off i c ia ls  

that  t ime be g iven – be a l located for  them to complete the i r  

ev idence but  by the end of  May by the t ime the President  

completes h is  ev idence we wi l l  have f ina l i sed the ora l  

ev idence re lat ing  to  senior  execut ives and board members 

of  var ious SOE’s that  have been a l leged to have been 

looted as par t  o f  s tate capture.  

 So I  thought  i t  is  necessary that  I  expla in that .   I t  

w i l l  be necessary  to  apply to  the High Court  for  a  l im i ted  

extension but  that  wi l l  now be for  the preparat ion of  the 20 

repor t  because dur ing the two months Apr i l  and May 

a l though a lo t  o f  work in  regard  to  the analys is  and of  

ev idence has been going on behind the scenes that  wi l l  not  

enable us to  have the repor t  by end of  June.  

 So i t  w i l l  be necessary to  apply for  a  very l im i ted  
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extension for  the purpose of  the preparat ion of  the repor t .  

 But  as I  say a lo t  o f  work has been going on behind  

the scenes a imed at  the fac i l i ta t ion of  the preparat ion of  

that .  

 That  is  the end of  the announcement .   Okay Ms 

Hofmeyr.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Chai r.   Chai r  we convened 

today for  the hear ing in  o rder  to  receive fu r ther  ev idence 

f rom Ms Duduzi le  Myeni .    

 You wi l l  recal l  Chai r  that  we ended her  last  ev idence 10 

on Fr iday the 6 t h  o f  November wi th  two outstanding 

remain ing mat ters .   

 The f i rs t  o f  those was the need fo r  her  to  be  

quest ioned by my learned f r iend Mr Seleka who is  work ing 

on the Eskom st ream’s ev idence and that  was par t icu la r ly  in  

re la t ion to  Ms Myeni ’s  a l leged involvement  in  cer ta in  

meet ings in  2015 re lated  to  the suspension of  Eskom 

execut ives.  

 We had run out  o f  t ime in  the th ree days that  had 

been scheduled for  her  ev idence and so that  top ic  for  20 

quest ion ing remained to stand over  for  another  date.  

 Chai r  the second aspect  that  remained standing over  

at  the conclus ion of  Ms Myeni ’s  ev idence on the last  

occasion was the  need for  considerat ion to  be g iven to  her  

inv i ta t ion of  the pr iv i lege against  se l f - incr iminat ion  
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throughout  the course of  her  th ree days of  ev idence.   And 

Chai r  I  would jus t  l ike wi th  your  leave to  – to  remind the  

publ i c  and everyone here today precise ly  how you had 

ended the evidence of  Ms Myeni  on th is  par t i cu lar  po int .  

 And Chai r  th is  i s  a  reference to the t ranscr ip t  o f  the 

6 t h  o f  November 2020’s hear ing.   I t  commences at  page 258 

f rom l ine 21.   Cha i r  what  you sa id there and I  quote is :  

“The other  po int  i s  the one that  I  ment ioned 

ear l ie r  namely that  there is  no t ime now and 

i t  is  not  conven ient  rea l l y  to  look  at  Ms 10 

Myeni ’s  ent i re  ev idence and see which  

quest ions she may have just i f iab ly  invoked 

the pr iv i lege not  to  incr iminate hersel f  and 

which ones in  respect  o f  which  one she 

might  not  have done so just i f iab ly  o r  

correct ly. ”  

 Chai r  you then requested that  the legal  team in  

par t icu lar  consider  the t ranscr ip t  o f  the ev idence over  those 

three days you ind icated that  you would do so as wel l  and 

then we would rev is i t  the quest ion  of  whether  the pr iv i lege 20 

had been just i f iab ly  invoked.  

 What  happened a f ter  the conclus ion of  the ev idence 

on the 6 t h  o f  November i s  that  the legal  team of  the 

commission d id that  exerc ise.   We considered the t ranscr ip t  

c losely.   We went  back to  the references that  were actual ly  
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made th roughout  her  ev idence when on the basis of  the  

reasons she had g iven for  not  answer ing quest ions I  made 

the submission that  the pr iv i lege was being abused.  

 We went  back to  those – we d is t i l led what  we said 

were the quest ions that  had not  been leg i t imate ly  re fused to 

be answered on the basis of  an invocat ion of  the pr iv i lege.   

And we sent  cer ta in  legal  submiss ions to  Ms Myeni  a t  the  

beginning of  Apr i l  th is  year  set t ing out  the posi t ion of  the 

legal  team,  set t ing out  the fact ,  cata loguing through the  

t ranscr ip t  where we said that  the pr iv i lege had been abused 10 

and what  submiss ions we would make to th is  commission in  

the l ight  o f  that  a l leged and submi t ted abuse.  

 Ms Myeni  was of fered an opportuni ty  to  respond to  

those submissions but  none came in .   None came in  unt i l  

about  the middle of  May and in  the  middle of  May Chai r  you 

d i rected that  she should return to  the commission both to  

deal  wi th  th is  outstanding issue and the Eskom evidence.  

 And then through a change of  a t to rneys about  which  

we were  not i f ied only last  Monday ar rangements were made 

to provide Ms Myeni  again wi th  the submissions f rom the  20 

legal  team and on Fr iday last  week we received a response 

to those submissions f rom her  cur rent  a t torneys.  

 Now in  the course of  those submissions to  the  

commission Ms Myeni  concluded through her  at to rney her  

submissions wi th  a request  and i t  was a request  in  the  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 10 of 243 
 

fo l lowing te rms.  

 Let  me just  be c lear.   My learned f r iend and I  may 

need to get  in to th is  debate of  the mer i ts  o f  the submissions 

but  just  in  summary the submissions deny that  Ms Myeni  

abused the pr iv i lege,  deal  wi th  cer ta in  legal  p r inc ip les,  

make some comments about  re t rospect iv i t y  o f  the  

const i tu t ional  cour t ’s  decis ion in  January – we wi l l  get  in to  

that  i f  we need to .   But  then i t  concludes in  the penul t imate 

paragraph wi th  the fo l lowing:  

“We there – I  th ink i t  is  supposed to be therefor  request  that  10 

the commission  stay execut ion o f  the summons for  our 

c l ient  to  appear on the 25 t h  o f  May 2021 as we need to f i rs t  

have the benef i t  o f  you responses to  a l l  the above before  

advis ing our  c l ien t  accord ingly. ”  

 Now that  is  a  re ference to the summons that  was 

issued by th is  commission in  te rms of  the Commission’s Act .  

 Chai r  you no doubt  wi l l  be wel l  aware and I  am sure 

the publ ic  by now wi l l  be wel l  aware that  i t  is  a  cr iminal  

o ffence not  to  appear when there has been serv ice of  

summons wi thout  suff i c ient  cause.  20 

 Ms Myeni  has not  appeared today.   She ind icates 

recogni t ion of  receipt  o f  the summons.   I t  was a 

considerable effor t  fo r  the commission to  ensure that  

summons was effected because repeated effor ts  to  engage 

Ms Myeni  both by the sher i f f  and the commission came to  
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naught  but  eventual l y  there was an aff ix ing of  the summons 

at  her  proper ty which const i tu tes  good serv ice under the  

Commission’s Act  read wi th  the Ru les of  Court  but  I  do not  

understand there  to  be any debate that  that  summons was 

received.   I t  requ i red Ms Myeni  to  be present  today.  She is  

not  present  and I  understand f rom my learned f r iend that  he 

wi l l  now seek to  move a postponement  appl i cat ion.  

 So I  –  wi th  your  leave Chai r  I  propose that  we a l low 

my learned f r iend to  move i t .   I  have ind icated to  my 

learned f r iend and to you Chai r  in  chambers that  that  10 

postponement  appl icat ion wi l l  be opposed by the legal  team 

of  the commission and so wi th  your  leave i f  I  may be 

permi t ted to  ask my learned f r iend to  move the appl i cat ion? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Mr Buthelez i  you may – somebody 

must  just  sani t i se  i f  you are going to  be using the podium.    

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Good morning Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Good morning Mr Buthelez i .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Thank you Cha i r.   As my learned f r iend 

has prefaced Chai r  I  appear before you th is  morn ing to 

request  a  postponement  of  the appearance of  Ms Myeni .   20 

 And the reasons behind Chai r  I  am at  f i rs t  a t  pa ins  

to  s t ress that  i t  is  not  an ind icat ion of  re luctance on our  par t  

and u l t imate ly  the issue can be reduced to a breakdown in  

communicat ion.  

 Now Chai r  where we star t  wi th  th is  issue.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Of  course the – the f i rs t  th ing is  fo r  you to  

ind icate whether  you conf i rm that  she is  not  here despi te  

having been served wi th  a summons that  requi red her  to  be  

here th is  morn ing .  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   That  much is  t rue Chai r  I  conf i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   And  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And the – i s  the reason why she is  not  

here the same reason why you asked fo r  a  postponement  

because in  terms of  sequence I  should f i rs t  be sat is f ied that  10 

th is  is  not  def iance because the quest ion may ar ise as to  

why should I  even hear  an appl icat ion by her  for  a  

postponement  when she is  def iance of  the summons and of  

th is  commission because one would  expect  that  i f  she has a 

leg i t imate reason for  a  postponement  she would appear and 

say I  am here in  compl iance wi th  the summons but  I  am 

apply ing fo r  a  postponement  for  the  fo l lowing reason.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Indeed so Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You can deal  wi th  that .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   I  would – in  dea l ing wi th  that  I  wi l l  go to 20 

the paragraph tha t  Ms Hofmeyr….  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Quoted f rom the le t ter  that  was 

del i vered on Fr iday 21s t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV BUTHELEZI:   To which reads as fo l lows:  

“We therefore request  that  the commission  

stay execut ion of  the summons for  our  c l ient  

to  appear  on the  25 t h  o f  May 2021 as we 

need to f i rs t  have the benef i t  o f  your  

responses to  a l l  the above before  advis ing  

our  c l ient  accord ingly. ”  

 Now Chai r  I  do not  know whether  i t  is  fa i r  to  the 

at torney but  the commission d id respond around af ter  9  pm 

on Fr iday evening and I  have shown th is  to  Ms Hofmeyr.   10 

The at torney response sent  me a  response at  10 pm last  

n ight  saying he only saw th is  emai l  a t  4  pm 

 Now that  i s  not  for  the commission to  rect i fy  or  i t  is  

no fau l t  o f  the commission,  the commission d id respond.   

What  subsequent ly  happened wi th  the at to rney not  p ick ing  

up or  not  communicat ing  to  the c l ient  – the  c l ient  was under 

the bona f ide impression that  the request  for  a  stay of  

execut ion of  the summons pending the response f rom the 

commission would have then been accepted or  no response 

had come th rough.  20 

 So to  deal  wi th  your  points of  def iance Chai r  I  po in t  

out  to  you that  f i rs t  i t  was requested of  the commission to  

say we have a cer ta in  v iew wi th  regards to  the 

correspondence that  you sent .    

 Now at  the star t  o f  that  le t ter  i t  goes on to  – i t  s tar ts  
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as fo l lows:   I t  says:  

“We p lace ourselves as records –  we p lace 

ourselves as at torneys of  record in  the  

mat te r  concern ing Ms Myeni  as  she had 

seized being represented by  Mabusa 

At torneys s ince ear ly  Apr i l . ”  

 Fur ther  ev idence of  that  Chai r  i s  conf i rmed by the 

fact  that  how th is  correspondence now for  th is  appearance 

got  to  Ms Myeni  was through the commission contac t ing her  

d i rect ly  a f te r  not  receiv ing any responses f rom Mabusa 10 

At torneys and the people at  the commission were  aware 

that  they had to then contact  her  d i rect ly  and she then had 

to inst ruct  new at torneys to  pursue the mat te r.  

 So pr ior  to  Apr i l  –  to  be contac ted but  – being  

contacted by the  commission she was not  aware and the  

le t ter  does say:  

“As a resul t  o f  the aforesaid Ms Myeni  d id  not  receive  

correspondence o f  1  Apr i l  ment ioned in  your  le t ter  and has 

only come to know of  the commission’s at tempts to  reach 

her  in  correspondence that  was d i rect l y  to  her. ”  20 

 And i t  i s  in  that  d i rect  correspondence Chai r  that  she 

took the steps and then appointed a new at torney through 

an unfor tunate c i rcumstance as I  wi l l  i l lust rate – as I  have 

stated Chai r.   

 We – she and the at torney were under the 
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impression that  the commission had not  responded and . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   In  which case they would – they should 

have taken the  at t i tude that  the summons stands and 

therefore she should appear.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Indeed so Chai r.   Correct ly  so and I  

advised accord ingly yesterday and I  say look regard less of  

a  non-response you need to take  the necessary s teps to  

make sure that  we do get  here.    

 And i t  was only then that  I  th ink a concer ted effo r t  

for  the emai ls  you can t race or  somehow found maybe i t  10 

could have been lost  in  a heap of  emai ls  f rom an unknown 

address that  i t  was actual l y  d iscovered that  the commission 

d id respond.  

 But  due to  t ime const ra in ts and as I  showed Ms 

Hofmeyr that  he says he only p icked up the emai l  a t  4  pm 

yesterday and g iven that  Ms Myeni  i s  not  s tat ioned in  

Gauteng Chai r  she was then of  the v iew that  look can you 

approach the commission on my behal f  and request  a  

so lut ion to  say how do we fac i l i ta te  the appearance.  

 In  other  words is  there st i l l  a  prospect  for  th is  to  be  20 

heard onl ine or  to  be deferred to  another  date e i ther  la te r  in  

the week or  ear ly  next  week or  whatever  workable  so lut ions.   

But  what  the one th ing that  is  absent  f rom al l  o f  th is  is  her  

re luctance to  appear Chai r.  

 So i t  may inconvenience the commission and we 
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apologise Chai r  and i t  may cause consternat ion but  in  as far  

as i t  seeks to  imply that  there is  def iance of  the Chai r  is  

summonsed I  submi t  Chai r  that  there is  none.   There is  no 

such in tent ion and I  th ink we have ind icated by the last  

paragraph that  says:  

“We request  a  stay of  execut ion. ”  

 In  other  words we d id not  take  a  point  that  says we 

just  wi l l  not  appear because we have wr i t ten you a le t te r.  

And in  concluding that  le t ter  we submi t  that  pending your  

response so that  we know how to advise c l ient  accord ingly.  10 

 So in  as far  as in tent  not  to  comply  Chai r  I  th ink that  

test  is  not  met  to  say because I  th ink there was in tent  and 

in  as much as we may want  to  impute that  def iance to  the  

c l ient  Chai r  I  th ink  there i s  some level  o f  ev idence that  

removes Culper  f rom her  or  mal ic iousness to  that  extent .  

 Now Ms Hofmeyr had ra ised cer ta in  points Chai r  and 

I  need to take these points because she g lossed over  them.  

 The f i rs t  one is  that  c l ient  was advised about  the  

invocat ion of  the  pr iv i lege against  se l f - incr iminat ion.   And 

we took the v iew that  the tests se t  by the Concourt  to  the 20 

effect  that  would  th is  p r iv i lege be appl i cable in  cr iminal  

proceedings – would th is  be a pr iv i lege that  you would be  

able to  invoke in  cr iminal  p roceedings yes or  no and I  th ink 

that  is  the test .   

 And we re l ied on the  submission that  we have 
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a l ready in  a l l  mat ters referred to  SAA been refer red to  

cr iminal  invest iga t ion and we say that  the prospect  then of  

se l f - incr iminat ion  is  t r iggered by a  cour t  o rder  i t  is  – in  the 

abst ract  

 Apart  f rom i t  not  be ing in  the abst ract  we a lso read 

the Con Court… 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  –  I  th ink le t  us separate i ssues.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because that  –  that  be longs to  another  

phase.  10 

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Yes Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Let  us deal  wi th  the  phase where  we 

are.   Is  the  posi t ion that  i f  I  d i rect  that  your  c l ient  i s  –  her  

ev idence v ia  Zoom or  whatever  l ink she is  ready to  comply 

wi th  that?  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   She indeed Cha i r.   The only i ssue would  

then become a mat ter  organis ing i t  for  when – but… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  am ta lk ing about .  

ADV BUTHELEZI:   Today.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Today,  today I  am not  ta lk ing about  20 

another  day.   I  am ta lk ing about  today.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   I  would have to  take d i rect  inst ruct ions 

on that  po int  because last  my d iscussion  wi th  the at torney 

last  n ight  we d id  not  have a c lear  ind icat ion of  the state of  

readiness fo r  c l ient  to  test i fy  in  te rms of  one receiv ing those 
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f i les whether  she would be able to  access whatever  

documents that  the commission would need her  to  work 

through.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.    

ADV BUTHELEZI :   That  i s  the only log is t ica l  chal lenge that  

there may be Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Because i f  –  i f  f rom her  s ide she – 

she d id not  mean to not  to  cooperate wi th  the commission  

and d id not  mean to defy one could expect  that  because she 

knew that  the summons requi red her  to  be here.   She may 10 

be ava i lab le  i f  I  app rove tha t  she  be connected v ia  Zoom 

or  whatever  l ink  so  tha t  we can proceed because o therwise  

the  t ime might  be  los t .   So maybe I  shou ld  ad jou rn  fo r  you  

to  take  ins t ruc t ions on  tha t  because depend ing  on what  the  

answer  i s ,  i t  may  be tha t  some –  we might  no t  need to  be  

de ta ined too  long  on ce r ta in  i ssues .    

 O f  course ,  i f  we went  tha t  rou te ,  the  quest ion  o f  

her  none appearance he re  wou ld  be  one th ing  bu t  i f  she  is  

ava i lab le  and ar rangements  a re  made and we are  ab le  to  

cont inue tha t  m ight  be  another  i ssue.   So,  bu t  i f  the  20 

pos i t ion  is  tha t  she is  no t  ava i lab le  then one must  take  i t  

f rom there .   Ms Hofmeyr  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR BUTHELEZI :    I  jus t  want  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :   . . .what  do  you th ink  o f  tha t  sugges t ion?  I  

know she –  he  has no t  f in ished,  I  th ink .   What  do  you th ink  
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about  a  shor t  ad jou rnment  to  -  fo r  Mr  Buthe lez i  to  ge t  

ins t ruc t ions?  

ADV KATE HOFMEYR :    [No aud ib le  rep l y ]   [m icrophone 

not  sw i tched on]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  th ink  

ADV KATE HOFMEYR :    Thank you  so  much.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV KATE HOFMEYR :    I  fee l  as  though I  am in  some sor t  

o f  s tud io .  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  10 

ADV KATE HOFMEYR :    I  do  apo log ise .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV KATE HOFMEYR :    Cha i r,  the  Lega l  Team’s  pos i t ion  is  

tha t  such an ar rangement  i s  un l i ke ly  to  work .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV KATE HOFMEYR :    And the  reason I  say  tha t ,  Cha i r,  

i s  tha t  fo r  the  be t te r  par t  o f  ten  days we have been seek ing  

to  engage w i th  Ms Myen i  d i rec t l y  to  ensure  tha t  she has 

the  bund les  tha t  she requ i res  in  o rder  to  g ive  ev idence  

today.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV KATE HOFMEYR :    There  a re  repeated screen grabs 

o f  every  e f fo r t  mu l t ip le  members  o f  th is  Commiss ion  have  

made to  contac t  her  to  say:   There  is  a  l ink  tha t  you need 

to  download in  o rder  to  ge t  the  documents .   There  has no t  
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been a  s ing le  response f rom Ms Myen i  to  those e f fo r ts .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV KATE HOFMEYR :    So  i t  i s  imposs ib le ,  I  submi t ,  fo r  

Ms Myen i ’s  ev idence today to  t ake  p lace v ia  Zoom because 

she has not  a  s ing le  document  tha t  wou ld  be  requ i red  fo r  

th is  ev idence to  be  conducted.   The assumpt ion ,  because  

she made no e f fo r t  to  respond to  one o f  those messages,  

was tha t  she wou ld  –  unders tand  her  lega l  ob l iga t ions –  

appear  today and then wou ld  be  g iven hard  cop ies  o f  the 

very  bund les  tha t  we have made e f fo r ts  fo r  the  greater  par t  10 

o f  ten  days to  g ive  her  access to .  

 So,  Cha i r  my submiss ion  i s  tha t  a  Zoom hear ing  

today w i l l  no t  work .   She does not  have the  documents  tha t  

she needs in  o rder  fo r  ev idence to  be  conducted.   And as  

my learned f r iend ,  Mr  Se leka,  w i l l ,  no  doubt ,  in fo rm you,  he  

had asked me to  address th is  a t  the  beg inn ing  today.   The  

e f fo r ts  o f  the  Eskom Team to  have he r  rece ive  documents  

f rom them s ta r t  as  fa r  back as  August  o f  las t  year.    

 There  has never  been any response f rom Ms 

Myen i  to  the  e f fo r ts  to  ge t  her  the  s ta tements  f rom Mr  20 

L inne l l  be fore  Par l iament  so  tha t  she can cons ide r  i t  and 

how i t  d i f fe rs  f rom the  s ta tement  tha t  she gave Par l iament  

in  the  Eskom Inqu i ry  about  what  happened a t  those  

meet ings.   Cha i r,  a t  no  po in t  has there  been any e f fo r t  on 

the  par t  o f  Ms Myen i  jus t  to  rece ive  the  documents  f rom 
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the  Commiss ion  so  tha t  th is  ev idence cou ld  take  p lace,  

mean ing fu l l y,  today.    

 So,  Cha i r  my submiss ion  is .   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

respond to  my learned f r iend.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  dea l  w i th  the  

quest ion  o f  de f iance because a  Zoom hear ing  is  no t  go ing  

to  work  on  the  bas is  o f  the  fac ts  as  I  know them.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  she does not  have the  documents?  

ADV KATE HOFMEYR :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Mr  Buthe lez i ,  what  do  you  say to  

tha t?  10 

MR BUTHELEZI :    Wel l ,  my on ly  po in t  was to  say,  Cha i r,  i f  

we a re  to  cons ide r  an  on l ine  hear ing  today,  the  issue  wou ld  

ar ise  in  te rms o f  c l ien t ’s  documents .   So in  as  much  as  th is  

may  not  be  poss ib le  today,  I  do  no t  ru le  ou t  the  poss ib i l i t y  

o f  i t  be ing  poss ib le  maybe in  the  second ha l f  o f  the  day 

a f te r  lunch i f  the  l ink  i s  made ava i lab le  and means are  

made to  exped i te .    

 Even i f  we ad jou rn  by  two hours ,  we cou ld  ge t  

some work  done.   I f  there  are  l inks  and there  i s  somebody 

there  to  ass is t  her  w i th  the  techno logy o f  access ing  the  20 

documents ,  we cou ld  make a  b i t  o f  p rogress Cha i rperson. . .    

CHAIRPERSON :    I  know tha t  the  mat te r  re la t ing  to  Eskom 

is  a  nar row one,  the  Eskom mat te r.   Wel l ,  le t  us  do  th is .   

Le t  me ad journ  now fo r  someth ing  l i ke  ten  m inutes  be fore  

Ms Hofmeyr  can respond,  fo r  you  to  take  ins t ruc t ions o f  
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what  i s  poss ib le  and what  i s  no t  poss ib le  f rom her  s ide  and 

f rom your  s ide  as  he r  lega l  team and then when we come 

back you repor t  to  me what  i s  poss ib le  and what  i s  no t  

poss ib le .  

MR BUTHELEZI :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then I  w i l l  hear  Ms Hofmeyr  and 

then we take i t  f rom there .    

MR BUTHELEZI :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  do  make i t  qu i te  c lear  tha t  her  none  

appearance th is  morn ing  he re  i s  v iewed in  a  very  ser ious 10 

l igh t .  

MR BUTHELEZI :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad jou rn .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you,  Cha i r .   Apo log ies ,  my page 

jus t  d ropped.   I  had a  conversa t ion  w i th  my lea rned f r iend  

over  the  break.   He has managed to  make contac t  w i th  Ms  

Myen i .   Ms Myen i  was on her  way  to  a  fami ly  engagement  20 

in  Por t  Shepstone so  she is  now mak ing  e f fo r ts  to  tu rn  

around but  there  is  some uncer ta in ty  as  to  when she w i l l  

ge t  back and i f  to  the  a t to rney ’ s  o f f i ce  and what  can be 

done.   So where  I  have le f t  th ings w i th  my lea rned f r iend is  

I  wanted to  jus t  update  you tha t  tha t  i s  where  we are .    
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CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Ms Myen i  was  on her  way to  a  fami ly  

engagement  and  she is  now tu rn ing  around because she 

rece ived a  ca l l  f rom my learned f r iend,  Mr  Buthe lez i ,  bu t  

there  is  uncer ta in ty .   So I  suggested to  Mr  Buthe lez i  I  

cont inue to  make  my submiss ions in  response so  we do not  

lose  more  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And then maybe  we can get  an  update  a  

b i t  la te r .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  p lease do.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  be fore  you do tha t  I  th ink  I  had a 

quest ion  fo r  Mr  Buthe lez i .   Maybe i f  h is  m ic  works  he  can 

respond f rom where  he  is .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Thank you,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  re la tes  to  the  o ther  phase tha t  you 

were  touch ing  on  and I  sa id  le t  us  leave tha t  fo r  la te r .   I s  

your  pos i t ion  tha t  as  fa r  as  the  invocat ion  o f  the  p r iv i lege 

aga ins t  se l f - in fo rmat ion ,  i s  your  pos i t ion  tha t :  20 

1 .  I t  was jus t i f iab l y  p roper l y  invoked in  regard  to  

every  quest ion  tha t  has been ra ised here  by  the  

Commiss ion ’s  l ega l  team in  the i r  wr i t ten  

submiss ions?  

2 .  Or  i s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  you s t i l l  want  to  –  you o r  
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your  c l ien t  want  to  p rov ide  grounds o f  

jus t i f i ca t ion  fo r  i nvok ing  i t  o r  i s  t he  pos i t ion  tha t  

the  re ference to  the  H igh  Cour t  dec is ion  re fe r r ing  

some mat te r  to  the  NPA for  inves t iga t ion  is  the  

jus t i f i ca t ion?  

What  i s  the  pos i t ion?  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   To  answer  you 

d i rec t l y,  the  jus t i f i ca t ion  is  the  judgment  o f  the  Pre tor ia  

H igh  Cour t .   We submi t  tha t  the  pr i v i lege has been p roper ly  

exerc ised.   Now in  the  response tha t  we gave  to  the  10 

Commiss ion  las t  week,  we had rece ived a  se t  o f  quest ions  

tha t  we were  asked to  respond to  and we fe l t  tha t  those 

quest ions in  the  main  fe l l  under  the  ambi t  o f  the  se t  o f  

quest ions where  we wou ld  invoke  the  pr iv i lege anyway or  

had a l ready invoked the  p r iv i lege  and our  in te rp re ta t ion  

thereaf te r  wou ld  say tha t  even  i f  we are  wrong th is  

in te rpre ta t ion  o f  the  ConCour t  judgment ,  in  as  fa r  as  the 

Commiss ion  is  concerned,  we were  o f  the  v iew tha t  the  

Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  has no t  sa id  the  judgment  f inds  

re t rospect ive  o f  capab i l i t y.    20 

 Now Ms Hofmeyr  ra ised the  po in t  ear l ie r  to  say you  

had a  c rea ted a  prov i so  tha t  sa id  tha t  the  Commiss ion  

wou ld  go  back and rev iew the  ev idence in  i t s  en t i re ty  bu t  i f  

we look a t  the  en t i re ty  o f  the  quest ions tha t  subsequent ly  

fo l lowed,  many o f  them were  a  repeat  o f  the  quest ions 
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where  the  pr iv i lege had been invoked and many o f  the 

quest ions covered pre t ty  much the  same areas where  we  

had adv ised tha t  these past  the  tes t  o f  where  the  p r iv i lege 

can be invoked.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Ms Hofmeyr?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Thank you ,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  you 

commenced w i th  a  quest ion  when my learned f r iend  began 

mov ing  the  postponement  app l i ca t ion  and,  w i th  respect ,  I  

want  to  submi t  i t  was the  r igh t  quest ion .   We may not  even  

be in  the  wor ld  o f  a  postponement  i f  Ms Myen i  i s  in  10 

de f iance o f  a  summons served by  th is  Commiss ion .  

 Cha i r,  my submiss ions th is  morn ing  to  you w i l l  be  

tha t  Ms Myen i  i s  indeed in  de f iance o f  a  summons and tha t  

i s  a  c r im ina l  o f fence.  

 Cha i r,  the  reasons I  say  so  are  the  fo l low ing.   F i rs t ,  

there  i s  no  a f f idav i t  be fore  th is  Commiss ion  f rom Ms Myen i ,  

i t  i s  t r i te  tha t  any exp lanat ion  pu rsuant  to  a  request  fo r  a  

postponement  must  be  done on oath .   I t  must  be  ev idence.   

We have not  even been  favoured  w i th  an  a f f idav i t  f rom Ms 

Myen i  exp la in ing  her  pos i t ion .   Tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  po in t .  20 

 The second po in t  i s  tha t  the  on ly  exp lanat ion  we  

have been g iven f rom the  ba r  by  my lea rned f r iend is  tha t  

when th rough her  a t to rneys she  asked on Fr iday fo r  a  

summons to  be  s tayed and she d id  no t  rece ive  a  response,  

she thought  she cou ld  no t  come today.    
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Cha i r,  tha t  de f ies ,  w i th  respect ,  even log i c  because  

when the  summons is  in  p lace  and  the  compuls ion  power  o f  

th is  Commiss ion  has been exerc ised and you mot iva te  fo r  

i t  to  be  s tayed and,  accord ing  to  ev idence f rom the  ba r,  

you rece ive  no  response,  i t  i s  no t  su f f i c ien t  cause  fo r  you 

then jus t  s imp ly  no t  to  appear,  the  assumpt ion  must  be  the  

summons s tands.   There  has to  be  anothe r  exerc ise ,  Cha i r,  

by  you,  you are  the  funct ionary  empowered to  i ssue  

summons to  compel  ev idence before  th is  Commiss ion .   On 

the  vers ion  we got  f rom the  bar  today,  Ms Myen i  knew 10 

noth ing  o f  a  fu r ther  dec i s ion  hav ing  been made on your  

par t  wh ich  wou ld  be  the  on ly  bas i s  fo r  her  no t  to  appear.  

Cha i r,  we then heard  –  th is  i s  the  th i rd  reason I  say  

tha t  she has commi t ted  a  c r im ina l  o f fence –  f rom her  

counse l  th is  morn ing ,  f rom the  ba r,  tha t  yes terday 

a f te rnoon he adv ised her  tha t  she  must  be  present  today.   

We have no a f f idav i t ,  we have an approach to  a  request  fo r  

a  s tay  tha t  makes no sense a t  i t s  lowest  and we have f rom 

my learned f r iend  an ind ica t ion  tha t  lega l  adv i ce  was g i ven 

to  her  to  be  present  and she is  no t  p resent .  20 

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Sor ry,  Cha i r,  I  ob jec t  to  that  

submiss ion?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    I  am ob jec t ing  to  the  las t  submiss ion  

by  Ms Hofmeyr.   
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  I  w i l l  g ive  you a  chance  when she 

is  done o t  respond.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And then the  four th  ind ica tor  i s  aga in  

tha t  we have been to ld  Ms Myen i  th is  morn ing  was en- rou te  

to  a  fami ly  engagement .   Cha i r,  there  is  no  respect  in  

wh ich  the  summons tha t  th is  Commiss ion  i ssued fo r  he r  to  

appear  today has  been taken se r ious ly  by  Ms Myen i .   I f  i t  

i s  so  tha t  she is  on  her  way or  was on he r  way unt i l  she  10 

rece ived the  ca l l  f rom my learned f r iend to  a  fami ly  

engagement  in  Por t  Shepstone.   Cha i r,  th is  i s  no t ,  

un for tunate l y  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    O f  course ,  in  add i t ion  to  the  po in t  you  

make o r  in  substant ia t ion  o f  th is ,  when you ins t ruc t  your  

lega l  team to  app ly  fo r  a  postponement  o f  your  appearance 

before  the  Commiss ion  or  be fore  a  cour t ,  when there  is  a  

summons,  one,  you shou ld  be  there  yourse l f  un less  the  

reason fo r  the  app l i ca t ion  fo r  a  postponement  i s  one tha t  

p revents  you f rom be ing  there ,  fo r  example ,  i f  you  are  s ick ,  20 

okay?  But  i f  you  are  no t  s i ck  and we have not  been to ld  

she is  s ick ,  i f  you  are  no t  s ick ,  even i f  you though t  tha t  i t  

i s  no t  necessary  fo r  you to  be  there  a t  the  t ime your  

counse l  makes the  app l i ca t ion ,  you needed to  say what  i f  

my app l i ca t ion  is  re fused because ,  in  tha t  case,  I  must  be  
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there .   I f  she  i s  on  he r  way to  a  fami ly  meet ing ,  tha t  i s  no t   

-  tha t  does not  re f lec t  the  m ind o f  somebody who genu ine ly  

sought  a  postponement  because i f  you genu ine ly  seek a  

postponement  you must  leave room for  the  poss ib i l i t y  tha t  

your  app l i ca t ion  may be re fused in  wh ich  case you  w i l l  be  

requ i red  to  be  there .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed,  Cha i r.   I f  no t ,  you have  taken 

the  postponement  fo r  yourse l f  as  my learned f r iend Mr  

Se leka sa id  to  me over  the  ad journment .   Cha i r,  there  is  a  

fu r ther  mat te r…[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  i t  means in  tha t  s i tua t ion  you are  no t  

wa i t ing  fo r  a  dec is ion  on  your  postponement  app l i ca t ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    H ’m,  you have dec ided.  

CHAIRPERSON :   And the  quest i on  ar i ses ,  in  your  m ind 

what  you in tend is  go ing  to  happen i f  your  app l i ca t ion  is  

d ismissed,  do  you have in  m ind tha t  you w i l l  s t i l l  comply  o r  

do  you have in  m ind tha t  you w i l l  no t  comply  anyway?  So,  

there fo re ,  i t  does  not  mat te r  what  the  dec i s ion  is  because  

you do not  in tend comply ing  i f  your  postponement  

app l i ca t ion  is  re fused.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    Cha i r,  i t  i s  our  submiss ion  tha t  tha t  i s  

the   tha t  tha t  i s  the  qu in tessent ia l  example  o f  a  pe rson who  

does not  appear  w i thout  cause .   Ms Myen i  has no t  

appeared today and there  is  no  su f f i c ien t  cause fo r  tha t  

nonappearance o ther  than the  exp lanat ion  tha t  we have 
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been g iven wh ich  amounts  to  no th ing  more  than a  

postponement  hav ing  been taken by  Ms Myen i .  

 And,  Cha i r,  jus t  on  tha t  po in t ,  we  are  dea l ing  w i th  

de f iance,  we are  no t  dea l ing  w i th  postponements  bu t  I  may 

jus t  g ive  you the  language o f  the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  in  

the  case o f  Psycho log ica l  Soc ie t y  v  Qwelane,  tha t  was a  

case dea l ing  w i th  postponement  and I  am read ing  f rom 

paragraph o f  the  judgment .  

“Postponements  are  no t  mere ly  fo r  the  tak ing . ”  

Wel l ,  today the  postponement  has been taken.    10 

 Cha i r,  the re  i s  a  fu r ther  mat te r  tha t  I  do  be l ieve  I  

need to  address  in  the  contex t  o f  the  de f iance quest ion  

and tha t  i s  an  i ssue tha t  goes back  to  the  approach tha t  Ms 

Myen i  has taken genera l l y  to  accountab i l i t y  fo r  mat te rs  tha t  

the  Commiss ion  is  concerned w i th  and the  reason I  go  

there ,  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  the  ve ry  mat te r  tha t  she was go ing  to  

be  coming today  to  dea l  w i th ,  the  ou ts tand ing  mat te r  o f  

Eskom,  was a  mat te r  tha t  was o f  course  invest iga ted  by  an  

inqu i ry  by  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  o f  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises in  

par l iament  and there  were  e f fo r t s  there ,  Cha i r,  tha t  were  20 

made to  have Ms  Myen i  come and  account  to  the  por t fo l io  

commi t tee  and there  i s  a  commonal i t y  be tween what  

happened and what  has happened today wh ich  is  the  f ina l  

submiss ion  on  wh ich  I  say  there  can be no doubt  tha t  Ms  

Myen i ’s  conduct  today is  no t  about  a  genu ine  a t tempt  to  
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make a r rangements ,  to  be  accoun tab le  and g i ve  a  vers ion .   

I t  i s  par t  o f  a  pa t te rn  o f  s teadfas t  res is tance to  be  

accountab le  to  those who requ i re  answers  about  what  has  

happened w i th in  our  count ry  and,  Cha i r,  fo r  tha t  purpose I  

have a  shor t  bund le  o f  documents  tha t  I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  

hand in .   Cha i r,  we have jus t  numbered them,  i t  was not  

cer ta in  whethe r  I  wou ld  need to  make re ference to  them 

today so  I  am go ing  to  p ropose  tha t  we ente r  them as  

EXHIBIT DD34C.   I f  I  cou ld  jus t  beg leave to  hand up 

th rough your  reg is t ra r .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And then jus t  make ava i lab le  a  copy to  

my lea rned f r iend .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Cha i r ,  i f  we can enter  th is  document  as  

EXHIBIT DD34C,  i t  w i l l  then jus t  next  in  the  bund le  o f  

documents  re la ted  to  Ms Myen i ’s  ev idence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Exh ib i t  DD? 

ADV HOFMEYR :    34C fo r  ca t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    34C.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR :    And i t  runs f rom page 1  to  12 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Shou ld  we –  oh ,  the  second document  i s  

a  par l iamentary  summons.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then there  is  –  shou ld  we make 
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them ( i ) ,  ( i i ) ,  ( i i i )?  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  we can ce r ta in ly  do  tha t  and then I  

w i l l  p roduce an i ndex jus t  tha t  w i l l  i dent i f y  each o f  them,  

Cha i r ,  because as  you have a l ready seen they a re  d i f fe ren t  

documents  bu t  they re la te  to  the  theme o f  the  e f fo r ts  that  

par l iament  made  to  summons Ms Myen i  to  the  inqu i ry  

p rev ious l y .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  the  top  one,  le t  us  make i t  EXHIBIT  

DD34C( i ) .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    And then nex t  one w i l l  be  EXHIBIT 

DD34C( i i ) .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    As  we go th rough i t ,  Cha i r ,  I  w i l l  g ive  the  

re levant  necessary  roman numera ls .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Cha i r ,  jus t  to  loca te  us ,  i f  we may? 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    What  happened was tha t  the  Pub l ic  

Enterp r ises Inqu i ry  in to  Eskom took p lace towards  the  end  

o f  2017 and ear l y  2018 and there  had been an e f fo r t  to  20 

or ig ina l l y  a round  February  where  Ms Myen i  had been  

inv i ted  to  a t tend the  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  seem to  remember  tha t  she d id  no t  

p i t ch  a t  some s tage.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    I  beg your  pa rdon,  Cha i r?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    I  seem to  remember  tha t  she d id  no t  

appear  in  par l iament  when she was  requ i red  to  appear .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes,  tha t  i s  what  I  want  to  take ,  Cha i r ,  

w i th  your  leave you th rough today.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    You see,  the re  was o r ig ina l l y  jus t  an  

inv i ta t ion  fo r  her  to  a t tend and tha t  was an inv i ta t ion  fo r  

her  to  a t tend on the  28  February  2018.   She d id  no t  a t tend.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    She gave an exp lanat ion  fo r  hav ing  done  10 

so .   I  th ink  she communica ted  on  the  morn ing  o f  tha t  day  

w i th  the  re levant  funct ionar ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And thereaf te r  she prov ided a  s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    A  few days la te r  on  the  5  March 2018  

but  par l iament  and the  por t fo l io  commi t tee  –  we l l ,  le t  us  be  

c lea r ,  the  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Pub l ic  Enterp r ises,  d id  

no t  in  i t s  w isdom regard  the  s ta tement  as  su f f i c ien t  and 

there fo re  dec ided tha t  they  wou ld  exerc ise  the i r  20 

summonsing  power  wh ich  is  a  power  tha t  they have under  

Sect ion  14  o f  the  Powers ,  P r iv i l eges and Immuni t ies  Act  o f  

Par l iament  and so  you w i l l  see  the  document  a t  ( i i )  o f  

bund le  DD34C is  the  summons tha t  was issued.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So she had to  be  summoned even 
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in  par l iament .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Even in  par l iament ,  indeed.   And i t  

requ i red  her  a t tendance on the  11  Apr i l  2018.   Now i f  you  

go back a  page  to the  f i rs t  page o f  th is  document ,  ( i ) ,  

DD34C( i ) ,  tha t  i s  the  re turn  o f  se rv ice  tha t  was obta ined 

f rom the  sher i f f  when he endeavoured to  e f fec t  serv ice  and  

what  you w i l l  see  there  is  tha t  the  sher i f f  says :  

“ I  cer t i f ied  tha t  on  the  4  Apr i l  2018 a t  5 .55  in  the  

even ing  I  se rved  the  summons to  appear  fo r  the  

Nat iona l  Assemb ly  Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Pub l i c  10 

Enterp r ises on  the  de fendant ,  Ms Dudu Ms Myen i  a t  

her  p lace  o f  res idence,  102 Ko ls te r tk r i ng  Meer-en -

See,  R ichard ’ s  Bay. ”  

I  jus t  pause the re ,  tha t  i s  the  same address tha t  we used 

fo r  serv ice .  

“ I  a f f i xed  a  t rue  copy o f  the  process to  wh ich  

appears  to  be  the  main  ou ter  ga te . ”  

And then a  reason fo r  a  f i x ing  is  g i ven:  

“Mr  Er ic ,  secur i t y  guard  a t  the  g iven address 

re fused to  accept  serv ice  o f  the  sa id  document  20 

adv is ing  tha t  the  de fendant  was not  there .   A l l  the  

house l igh ts  were  on  but  he  re fused to  adv ise  me 

who is  in  the  house. ”  

So th is  i s  what  came back to  par l i ament ,  Cha i r .   And in  the  

Av ia t ion  team’s  invest iga t ions ove r  the  las t  two years ,  one  
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o f  the  top ics  tha t  we thought  requ i red  fu r ther  exp lora t ion  

was,  we l l ,  what  happened?  There  was a  summons,  i t  was  

served by  Ms Myen i  never  appeared befo re  the  por t fo l io  

commi t tee  and we engaged w i th  par l iament  and the  

por t fo l io  commi t tee  in  our  invest iga t ions.   I t  never  became 

per t inent  be fo re  today to  re fe r  to  th is  because on the  las t  

occas ion  a lbe i t  tha t  we found out  the  day be fore  tha t  we 

had to  make zoom ar rangement ,  Ms Myen i  d id  appear .   But  

today the  s ign i f i cance o f  th is  p r io r i t ing (?)  by  a  body 

seek ing  accountab i l i t y  to  have Ms  Myen i  come before  i t  in  10 

my submiss ion  does become re levant .  

 So they ge t  the  re turn  o f  serv i ce  bu t  Ms Myen i  does  

not  appear  on  the  11  Apr i l  2018 as  requ i red .   So what  

happens thereaf te r ,  i f  you  go to  page 4 ,  Cha i r ,  wh ich  w i l l  

be  ( i i i )  o f  DD34C,  i s  a  dec is ion  is  taken by  the  Cha i rperson 

o f  the  por t fo l io  commi t tee  on  Pub l ic  Enterpr i ses  tha t  i s  

re fe r red  to  in  a  le t te r  to  the  Speaker  o f  the  Nat iona l  

Assembly ,  Ms Mbete .   What  i t  says ,  in  essence,  i s  tha t :  

“On the  17  Apr i l  2018…” 

So tha t  i s  about  s ix  days a f te r  the  schedu led  appearance.  20 

“…the Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  on  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises  

met  to  rece ive  a  repor t  on  the  serv ice  o f  summons  

on Messrs  Gupta ,  Mr  Duduzane Zuma and Ms Dudu 

Myen i .   Cop ies  are  a t tached.   The commi t tee  was  

in fo rmed tha t  the  sher i f f  cou ld  no t  serve  the  
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respect ive  summons and Messrs  Gupta  and Mr  

Duduzane Zuma as no  none was  res ident  a t  the i r  

las t  known addresses. ”  

And then they ask  fo r  lega l  –  they  are  go ing  to  seek lega l  

adv ice  about  a l te rna t ive  methods o f  serv ing  summons.   But  

a t  ( i i i )  the  fo l low ing is  reco rded:  

“The sher i f f  se rved the  summons on Ms Dudu Myen i  

a t  her  p lace  o f  res idence.   However ,  Ms Myen i  

fa i led  to  appear  be fore  the  commi t tee .   The  

commi t tee  reso lved tha t  c r im ina l  charges must  be  10 

pursued aga ins t  Ms Myen i  in  te rms o f  the  Powers ,  

P r iv i leges and Immuni t ies  o f  Par l i ament  Act  fo r  he r  

fa i lu re  to  honour  the  summons. ”  

Cha i r ,  tha t  sec t ion  is  equ iva len t  to  the  sect ion  in  the  

Commiss ions Act  in  the  Powers  and Pr i v i leges Act  i t  i s  

Sect ion  17  and  i t  uses th is  “w i thout  su f f i c ien t  cause”  

qua l i f i ca t ion  to  the  nonappearance.   But  i t  i s  a  c r im ina l  

o f fence under  tha t  Act  and th is  i s  the  por t fo l io  commi t tee ’s  

Cha i rperson adv i s ing  the  Speaker  o f  par l iament  tha t  the 

commi t tee  has reso lved tha t  c r im ina l  cha rges must  be  20 

pursued.  

 Over  the  page is  the  response tha t  came f rom the  

Speaker,  Ms Mbe te .   Cha i r,  there  i s  un for tunate l y  a  b lank 

page tha t  has been inser ted  be tween 5  –  so  6  ac tua l l y  

does not  need to  be  there  bu t  th is  w i l l  be  ( i v )  o f  DD34C.  
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 Cha i r,  the  essence o f  what  Ms Mbete  de ta i l s  in  th i s  

le t te r  i s  tha t  –  and I  am in  the  second paragraph:  

“A f te r  she rece ived the  cor respondence f rom the  

Cha i rperson o f  the  por t fo l io  commi t tee  she  

requested a  lega l  op in ion  on  the  quest ion  o f  

whethe r  au thor i t y  wou ld  be  competent ,  wh ich  

au thor i t y  wou ld  be  competent  to  lay  a  compla in t  

aga ins t  a  pe rson who fa i l s  to  comp ly.   And she says  

tha t  the  adv ice  found tha t  the  Act  does not  d i rec t  

tha t  any spec i f i c  person must  lay  a  compla in t  and 10 

went  on  to  suggest  tha t  the  Cha i rperson o f  the  

commi t tee  shou ld  do  so .   But  no tw i ths tand ing  the  

above…”  

Ms Mbete  goes on to  say:  

“…I  shou ld  i nd ica te  tha t  un less  imp l ic i t l y  

empowered by  s ta tu te  or  the  ru les  commi t tees do  

not  ac t  independent ly  o f  the  assembly.   Ins tead the  

ru les  and prac t ices  prescr ibed tha t  commi t tees mus t  

repor t  and in  cases tha t  necess i ta te  tha t  remedia l  

o r  o the r  ac t ion  be  taken may make appropr ia te  20 

recommendat ions  to  the  house wh ich  can then take  

in fo rmed dec is ion . ”  

And she conc ludes by  say ing :  

“As Speaker,  I  then convey or  imp lement  those  

dec is ions as  the  case may be and based on the  
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c i rcumstances,  I  am o f  the  v iew tha t  the  commi t tee  

must…”  

And the  i f  we go over  to  7 .  

“…deta i l  the  a forement ioned mat te r  in  a  repor t  to  

the  house w i th  the  recommendat ion  wh ich  can then  

be du ly  ac ted  upon. ”  

And then she dea ls  w i th  o ther  w i tnesses.  

 Cha i r,  the  Commiss ioner  sought  to  unders tand what  

happened a f te r  th is ,  r igh t?   May 2018 the  Speaker  i s  

adv is ing  the  commi t tee  tha t  i t  i s  the  Nat iona l  Assembly  tha t  10 

must  make a  dec is ion  on  th is  mat te r  and tha t  there  needs  

to  be  a  repor t  and a  recommendat ion  p laced befo re  i t  and  

so  we fo l lowed up a t  what  page 8  there ,  i t  w i l l  be  document  

(v )  about  th is  ve ry  po in t  and we asked fo r  par l iament  to  

p rov ide  us  w i th  a  copy o f  tha t  repor t  o r  recommendat ion  

tha t  was made to  exp la in  i f  one was not ,  why i t  was not  

and unfo r tunate ly,  the  response tha t  came back,  wh ich  is  

a t  page 11 wh ich  w i l l  be  document  (v i )  i s  the  Commiss ion  

had every th ing  tha t  par l iament  had and tha t  was  in  i t s  

cus tody and so  the  conc lus ion  tha t  cer ta in ly,  we submi t ,  20 

can be drawn fo r  th is  i s  tha t  no  fu r ther  s teps were  taken in  

respect  o f  a  recommendat ion  or  a  repor t  be ing  p laced 

before  pa r l iament .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  does i t  appear  l i ke  Ms Mbete  as  the  

Speaker  o r  Nat iona l  Assembly  d id  no t  lay  a  compla in t?  
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ADV HOFMEYR :    Yes.   We asked spec i f i ca l l y  fo r  any 

compla in t  tha t  was ever  la id  as  we l l  as  our  request  to  

par l iament .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    So no compla in t  was la id .   There  was a  

request  fo r  a  repor t  and a  recommendat ion  on  next  s teps to  

be  p laced before  par l iament .   No such th ing  happened.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR :    And the  consequence o f  a l l  o f  tha t  i s  

tha t  Ms Myen i  was prev ious l y  summonsed to  appear  be fore  10 

par l iament ,  the  commi t tee  o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr i ses took the  

v iew tha t  her  fa i lu re  to  a t tend  const i tu ted  a  c r im ina l  

o f fence and a  charge shou ld  be  la id  and noth ing  has  

become o f  tha t .  

 Cha i r ,  Ms Myen i  a t tended here ,  yes ,  on  the  4  

November  las t  year  bu t  as  our  submiss ions  on  the  

inv i ta t ion  o f  the  pr iv i lege show,  i t  i s  the  submiss ion  o f  the  

lega l  team tha t  she d id  so  e f fec t i ve l y  w i th  an  in ten t ion  to  

c la im a  r igh t  to  s i lence,  no t  mean ing fu l l y  to  engage w i th  

the  quest ions tha t  the  Commiss ion  had fo r  her  and the  20 

we igh t  o f  the  a l legat ions tha t  had been presented in  

ev idence before  th is  Commiss ion  fo r  her  to  answer  and  

then today she,  knowing o f  the  summons,  know ing tha t  

there  had been no response a f te r  the  request  fo r  you,  

Cha i r ,  to  s tay  i t ,  she  does not  a t tend.   She makes o ther  
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a r rangements  and she e f fec t i ve ly  took the  postponement  

fo r  herse l f .  

 Cha i r ,  we submi t  tha t  tha t  i s  no th ing  less  than a  

de f iance o f  the  summons o f  th is  Commiss ion  and tha t  i t  i s  

t ime fo r  the  law to  take  i t s  course .    

Cha i r ,  there  i s  an  impor tan t  po in t  tha t  was a l so  

made in  the  judgment  to  wh ich  we w i l l  re tu rn  w i th  my 

learned f r iend,  the  judgment  o f  the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t  in  

January  o f  th is  year  and i t  was a  po in t  about  the  equa l i t y  

o f  t rea tment  o f  w i tnesses.  10 

Wi tnesses who have prev ious l y  sought  

postponements  have done so  on  a f f idav i t  w i th  med ica l  

cer t i f i ca te  when they have not  been ab le  to  come and then 

there  is  a  cause.   The lega l  had not  opposed those 

postponement  app l i ca t ions bu t  today we were  no t  favoured  

even w i th  tha t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  o f  course ,  you know,  I  go  back to  

my f i rs t  quest ion  to  Mr  Buthe lez i .   Do I  need to  even hear  

the  postponement  app l i ca t ion  when the  w i tness has no t  

compl ied  w i th  the  summons  and the  reason fo r  20 

noncompl iance -   the  reason fo r  a  postponement  i s  no t  the  

reason fo r  noncompl iance and is  no t  because – i s  th is  no t  

l i ke  be ing  i n  contempt  o f  an  o rder  o f  cour t?   You cannot  be  

in  contempt  o f  an  order  cour t  and w i thout  purg ing  your  

contemptuous conduct  ask  fo r  o ther  re l ie f  f rom the  same 
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cour t .  

ADV HOFMEYR :    Indeed.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You must  purge your  contemptuous  

conduct  f i rs t ,  you  must  comply  w i th  the  o rder  o f  cour t ,  then 

ask  fo r  whatever  you are  aggr ieved about ,  bu t  you cannot  

de fy  an  orde r  o f  cou r t  and then ask  tha t  Cour t  fo r  some 

re l ie f  a t  the  same t ime.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You have got  to  comply  and say I  am 

comply ing  because I  know I  am ob l iged to  bu t  now tha t  I  10 

am here ,  here  is  my s i tua t ion  and I  am ask ing  fo r  th is  o r  

tha t  re l ie f .   So there  is  tha t  quest ion .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Indeed Cha i r.   The f ina l  subm iss ion  I  

w ish  to  make is  t ha t  what  happened in  Par l iament  in  2018 

shou ld  w i th  respect  no t  be  repeated.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR    There  shou ld  be  a  c r im ina l  charge la id  

aga ins t  Ms Myen i .  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  h ’m.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And regre t tab l y  fo r  the  second  t ime in  20 

th is  Commiss ion 's  p roceed ing ,  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  course ,  i t  i s  concern ing  i f  the 

Nat iona l  Assembly  d id  no t  lay  a  compla in t .   What  the  po l i cy  

wou ld  have done w i th  i t ,  we do  not  know.   There  –  a  

compla in t  was la id  by  the  Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion  
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aga ins t  her  some t ime back.   I  am not  aware  o f  what  

p rogress is  be ing  made o f  the  po l i cy  in  regard  to  i t ,  maybe  

there  is  p rogress be ing  made i t  i s  jus t  be t te r  no t  be ing  

in fo rmed,  ja .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  I  can  update  you on tha t  because  

we were  a lso  keen as  the  invest iga tors  to  unders tand what  

had happened and we rece ived an update  a f te r  the  most  

t i re less  e f fo r ts  o f  my invest iga tors  s i t t ing  beh ind  me who I  

th ink  drove around the  g reater  p rov ince fo r  the  las t  th ree  

days t ry ing  to  t rack  down the  re levant  invest iga t ing  10 

o f f i cers .   The update  i s  tha t  a  warn ing  s ta tement  was  

taken f rom Ms Myen i  las t  week and tha t  i s  where  i t  has  

gone,  there  is  been a  request  fo r  an  a f f idav i t  f rom me,  I  am 

go ing  to  have to  dea l  w i th  tha t ,  because usua l ly  counse l  

cannot  do  tha t .   They have rece ived a  fu l l  repor t ,  so  we are  

go ing  to  fo l low i t  up ,  Cha i r  bu t  those are  the  fac ts  on  the  

18 t h  o f  May,  a f te r  a  compla in t  was  la id  in  December  o f  las t  

year.   

A warn ing  s ta tement  was taken  f rom Ms Myen i  

acco rd ing  to  the  account  tha t  we rece ived yesterday and  20 

there  is  a  reques t  fo r  an  a f f idav i t  f rom me,  bu t  we w i l l  take  

tha t  fu r ther.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  tha t  must  be  -  i t  was in  November.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    So  i t  took  qu i te  some months jus t  to  ge t  
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the  warn ing  s ta tement .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Yes,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  i f  I  may,  jus t  on  one  

aspect ,  because I  do  no t  want  to  l eave i t  and I  do  have my  

eye down the  l ine  to  the  recommendat ions o f  th is  

Commiss ion .   Cha i r  you s igna l  to  me a  moment  ago tha t  

what  i s  concern ing ,  i s  why Par l iament  may not  have la id  

tha t  compla in t  and I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  make one 

submiss ion  on  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    When our  team was look ing  a t  th is ,  we 10 

were  concerned about  tha t  fac t  as  we l l  and so  we went  

back to  the  Powers  and Pr i v i leges Act .   The Powers  and 

Pr iv i leges Act  makes prov i s ion  fo r  serv ice  o f  a  summons 

issued by  Par l iament ,  one o f  i t s  commi t tees,  as  was the  

case w i th  Ms Myen i  in  one o f  two ways.   

I t s  persona l  serv i ce  on  the  ind iv idua l  concerned,  o r  

i t s  serv ice  on  a  person appear ing  more  than 18 years  o ld  

a t  the i r  p lace  o f  res idence.  I t  does not  inc lude the  th i rd  

a l te rna t ive  o f  a  f i x ing  but  she r i f f ' s  rou t ine ly  a f fec ts  and 

in te res t ing ly,  our  Commiss ions Ac t ,  wh ich  incorpora tes  the  20 

H igh  Cour t ’s  ru les  a l lows a f f i x ing .  That  i s  how we  

successfu l l y  se rved a  summons a t  Ms Myen i  house  ear l ie r  

th is  week.   

But  the  fac t  rema ins  tha t  the  Powers  and Pr i v i leges  

Act  o f  Par l iament  on ly  a l lows fo r  those two methods and so  
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there  i s  a  po ten t i a l  fo r  evas ion  by  a  w i tness.   I t  i s  no t  c lea r  

tha t  the  a f f i x ing  tha t  the  sher i f f  d id  in  respect  o f  tha t  

summons f rom Par l iament  was in  fac t  a  va l id  method o f  

serv i ce  under  the  Act  and so  tha t  i s  what  we made  o f  the  

s i tua t ion .   

And i t  w i l l  be  our  recommendat ion  tha t  we w i l l  make 

to  you in  due course ,  tha t  tha t  p rov is ion  o f  the  Act  be  

amended to  add the  th i rd  a l te rna t ive ,  wh ich  is  an  

a l te rna t ive  tha t  dea ls  w i th  evas ion .   The ru les  o f  Cour t  say  

i t  i s  when the  sher i f f  be l ieves tha t  the i r  e f fo r ts  be ing  made  10 

not  to  rece ive  se rv ice  tha t  a f f i x ing  is  appropr ia te  and jus t  

to  c lose  the  gap,  because i f  tha t  was eve r  go ing  to  be  the  

jus t i f i ca t ion  tha t  there  may have been an era  in  the  serv ice  

o f  the  summons f rom Par l iament  we shou ld  no t  permi t  that  

to  happen aga in ,  there  must  be  a  de fau l t  pos i t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  course ,  I  d id  no t  unders tand but  i t  is  

qu i te  some t ime  s ince  I  had a  look a t  the  documents  

re la t ing  to  tha t  mat te r  in  Par l iament .   I  d id  no t  unders tand  

her  to  have sa id  she was not  aware  tha t  she –  a  summons 

had been i ssued fo r  her  to  appear  be fo re  Par l iament  20 

because I  th ink  tha t  i f  you  are  aware  o f  the  summons and 

what  i t  says  o f  i t s  contents ,  i t  may we l l  be  tha t  the  fac t  tha t  

you became aware  o f  the  cor rec t  in fo rmat ion  th rough 

defec t ive  se rv i ce  does not  ava i l  you  because you a re  

aware ,  you know your  ob l iga t ions.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Cha i r,  jus t  to  be  c lear,  we do not  know 

what  i s  the  response was but  I  d id  no t  want  to  m iss  the  

oppor tun i ty  fo r  th is  aspect ,  i t  i s  a  law po in t  bu t  i t  i s  an  

impor tan t  po in t  in  my submiss ions g i ven where  we a re  

today,  g iven tha t  serv i ce  o f  summonses by  commi t tees o f  

Par l iament  who are  want ing  to  make peop le  accountab le ,  

and to  summon them as w i tnesses to  appear  be fo re  them 

does not  have th is  loopho le  in  the  fu tu re .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no ,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  those a re  our  submiss ions.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    I t  i s  the  pos i t ion  o f  the  lega l  team tha t  

the  o f fense has been commi t ted  under  the  Act  and tha t  a  

c r im ina l  charge shou ld  be  la id  aga ins t  Ms Myen i .   I f  I  may  

handover  to  my learned f r iend,  i f  there  i s  anyth ing  in  rep ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  be fore  Mr  Buthe lez i  come on board ,  

Ms Myen i  was go ing  to  dea l  w i th  two mat te rs ,  one Eskom 

re la ted  and the  o thers  av ia t ion  re la ted .   I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  Mr  Se leka w ishes to  say anyth ing  in  re la t ion  to  

inso fa r  as  th is  non-appearance  a f fec ts  Eskom re la ted  20 

issues.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you,  good morn ing  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing ,  Mr  Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Cha i r,  much has been sa id  and I  th ink  I  

need to  emphas ise  tha t ,  inso fa r  as  Eskom work  s t ream i s  
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concerned,  a  le t te r  was sent  to  Ms Myen i  las t  yea r  in  17  

October  2020,  fo r  her  to  f i le  an  a f f idav i t  in  re la t ion  to  two 

persons who are  imp l ica t ing  he r,  wh ich  i s  Mr  Tsots i  and Mr  

L inne l l ,  N ick  L inne l l  on  -  the  da te  was g i ven I  th ink  the  4 t h  

o f  September  2020.   

Now tha t  i s  way back and tha t  d id  no t  happen,  we  

d id  no t  even get  the  cour tesy  o f  a  response to  tha t  le t te r  

much less  than a f f idav i t s ,  Cha i r  and as  I  was say ing  to  my 

learned,  bo th  my  learned f r iends dur ing  the  ad jou rnment  

there  is  very  l i t t le  to  a rgue on the  postponement  Cha i r,  i f  10 

the  w i tness has a r rogated to  herse l f  the  postponement .   So 

she is  te l l ing  us ,  I  am tak ing  th i s  postponement ,  dec ide  

whatever  you want  to  dec ide .   I t  is  a  quest ion  o f  de f iance;  

we do not  even get  to  her  request  to  postpone.   

She has d i r t y  hands and she can ask  fo r  re l ie f  

un less  she purged herse l f  o f  tha t  m isconduct  i f  you  l ike .   

So Cha i r,  I  cou ld  no t  agree more  w i th  the  sent iment  you  

have expressed  un less  the re  was incapac i t a t ion  on  

a f f idav i t ,  you wou ld  en ter ta in  an  app l i ca t ion  du ly  b rought  

fo r  a  postponement  bu t  th is  i s  no t  a  p roper  app l i ca t ion  fo r  20 

postponement .   

And I  agree w i th  my lea rned f r iend  in  regard  to  what  

then shou ld  be  v is i ted  upon her  in  te rms o f  the  ru les  o f  th is  

Commiss ion .  Tha t  –  and hours  i s  anothe r  i ssue  as  the  

Cha i rperson has po in ted  out ,  the  issues are  ve ry  p la in  Ms 
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cou ld  have ava i led  herse l f  and dea l t  w i th  th i s  ma t te rs  in  

less  than two hours .   The Commiss ion  is  ove rwhe lmed wi th  

o ther  work ,  and we t r ied  to  squeeze her  in  to  f in ish  her  

ev idence,  Cha i r  th is  i s  comple te ly  unacceptab le ,  thank  

you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you,  then  Mr  Buthe lez i ,  somebody  

must  san i t i ze  the  bo t tom.   

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Thank you,  Cha i r  I  have to  exp ress my 

d ismay and d i sappo in tment  a t  how th ings have  tu rned out  

even what  Cha i r  had suggested a t  the  ad journment  and I  10 

have to  make th is  po in t  Cha i r  because I  th ink  i t  a lso  works  

towards the  in tegr i t y  o f  the  Commiss ion  in  i t se l f .  I t  i s  

d ishear ten ing  to  observe  how my lea rned f r iends,  the  

Ev idence Leaders ,  purpor t  to  seek to  p ro jec t  th is  

Commiss ion    as  a  prosecut ion .   

Whereas in  the  proper  unders tand ing  o f  what  th is  

Commiss ion  is  about  i t  i s  a  fac t  f ind ing  inqu i ry,  where  

w i tnesses need to  account  and they need to  come ass i s t  

the  Commiss ion .   On ar r i v ing  a t  th is  Commiss ion today i t  i s  

now go ing  fo r  11  o 'c lock ,  we have los t  two hours  in  20 

engagements  be tween th ree  lawyers  and…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  tha t  i s  because your  c l ien t  i s  no t  

here .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Indeed so  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  de f iance o f  the  summons.  
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ADV BUTHELEZI :   Cha i r,  the  submiss ion  I  am t ry ing  

to…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  two hours  i s  spent  t ry ing  to  

es tab l i sh  why she is  no t  here  and what  shou ld  be  done  

about  i t .   

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Thank you,  Cha i r.   Where  I  was go ing  to  

w i th  tha t  po in t  Cha i r,  about  the  two hours  i s  tha t  Cha i r  I  

was apprec ia t i ve  o f  the  s tance tha t  the  Cha i r  had taken  

tha t  sa id ,  i f  i t  i s   no t  an  ac t  o f  de f iance on her  par t ,  what  

p ragmat ic  so lu t i on  can we ar r i ve  a t ,  to  then so lve  the  10 

prob lem o f  ge t t ing  her  ev idence  on record  and we had 

depar ted  here  w i th  the  v iew o f  say ing ,  g ran ted you may not  

be  here ,  bu t  i f  your  ind ica t ion  is  you do want  to  tes t i f y,  you 

have tes t i f ied  on l ine  be fore  i t  ge ts  us  to  the  po in t  anyone 

can tes t i f y  on l ine ,  le t  us  f ind  a  pragmat i c  way o f  

imp lement ing  tha t .  

And s ince  tha t  suggest ion  Cha i r…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Maybe before  you proceed,  le t  us  s ta r t  

where  I  shou ld  have s tar ted .   You spoke to  he r,  te l l  me 

what  t ransp i red  because f rom what  Ms Hofmeyr  sa id  in  20 

te rms o f  what  she gathered f rom the  conversa t ion  w i th ,  i t  

looks  l i ke  she was on her  way to  a  fami ly  meet ing  bu t  she  

under took to  tu rn  back and go back,  bu t  the  s to ry  -  I  want  

to  hear  the  who le  s to ry.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Cha i r,  tha t  i s  the  ob jec t ion  I  ra ised  
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Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  tha t .   

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Yes,  I  th ink  I  was misunders tood  by  Ms  

Hofmeyr.   When we took the  ad journment  I  then ca l led  her  

to  say,  what  i s  your  loca t ion ,  and  what  i s  your  ava i lab i l i t y,  

fo r  th is  th ing  to  p roceed on l ine ,  she says,  I  am ava i lab le  as  

I  am speak ing  to  you,  I  shou ld  have been on the  road to  

Por t  Shepstone but  tha t  i s  no t  on  the  p lans and I  w i l l  d r i ve  

to  the  a t to rneys.   

So the  U tu rn  s to ry  –  she says tha t  I  am on s tandby.  10 

and tha t  i s  why I  came back and I  sa id  we cou ld  be  on l ine  

and p roceed w i th in  two hours ,  because she then sa id  I  w i l l  

have to  d i ver t  my  p lans o f  want ing  to  go  to  Por t  Shepstone 

la te r  and go s t ra igh t  to  the  a t to rneys in  P ie termar i t zburg .   

So her  ava i lab i l i t y  to  me on  ca l l  to  rece ive  

d i rec t ions,  was in fo rmed by  the  fac t  I  sa id ,  I  do  no t  know 

what  the  DCJ may d i rec t  o r  may not  d i rec t  I  need you to  be  

on  s tandby.   So tha t  i f  there  i s  an  amenab i l i t y  to  reso lv ing  

the  s i tua t ion  pragmat ica l l y  then we can make i t  happen in  

the  shor tes t  t ime poss ib le .   20 

So i t  was never  an  in ten t ion  no t  to  be  ava i lab le  or  

no t  to  be  here ,  as  a l ready submi t ted  Cha i r.   We came here  

w i th  the  in ten t ion  to  say due  to  a  breakdown in  

communica t ion ,  we seek to  f ind  a  pragmat ic  way o f  mak ing  

the  hear ing  proceed and a t  every  tu rn  where  we have sa id  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 49 of 243 
 

we want  to  make the  hear ing  p roceed,  we have been 

b locked.   

When we sa id ,  okay,  le t  us  f ind  a  way o f  

imp lement ing  a  so lu t ion .   The f i rs t  ob jec t ion  was the  fac t  

tha t  the  documents  w i l l  no t  be  the re  on  t ime.   We take the  

ad journment  to  rec t i f y  tha t  and t r y  f ind  whether  we can go 

on l ine .   Now the  ob jec t ion  is ,  we must  lay  a  c r im ina l  

charge.  Wel l ,  i f  you  lay  the  cr im ina l  charge Cha i r,  i t  takes 

us  to  th is  pos i t ion  then the  w i tness w i l l  never  come.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  the  lay ing  o f  the  cr im ina l  charge  10 

fo r  her  non-appearance I  thought  I  indebted th is  ear l ie r  

tha t  tha t  i s  one mat te r.  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  need not  s tay  in  the  way o f  her  

g iv ing  her  ev idence and i f  she is  a l lowed to  g ive  ev idence,  

tha t  does not  necessar i l y  mean tha t  a  charge shou ld  no t  be  

la id  fo r  the  fac t  tha t  she d id  no t  come here  when she was 

supposed to  come and on the  face  o f  th is  does no t  appear  

to  have had su f f i c ien t  cause,  tha t  may be separa te .   

So f rom my po in t  o f  v iew,  the  lay ing  o f  a  c r im ina l  20 

charge wou ld  be  one th ing .  The quest ion  whethe r  o r  no t  

a r rangements  can and shou ld  be  made fo r  her  ev idence to  

be  rece ived today  is  another  i ssue.   The one does not  need  

to  be  a  prob lem for  the  o the r.   

So is  the  pos i t ion  –  i s  her  pos i t ion  tha t  in  te rms o f  
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the  d iscuss ion  you had w i th  her  tha t  she is  ready to  be  

on l ine  and to  g ive  he r  ev idence or  ask  be  asked quest ions,  

o r  whatever  needs to  be  done tha t  wou ld  have been done 

once she was -  i f  she  was here .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and i s  there  an  issue about  need ing  

some t ime fo r  he r  to  be  ready in  te rms o f  the  bund les  o r  

what  i s  the  pos i t ion?  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Wel l ,  Cha i r  we had requested  we had 

sa id ,  a t  the  t ime when the  d iscuss ion  was he ld ,  i t  was  10 

around 10 to  10  and I  had sa id  we wou ld  need between two  

and two and a  ha l f  hours  fo r  tha t  to  be  imp lemented.   But  

we have los t  the  las t  en t i re  hour  in  our  own debates  and I  

th ink  tha t  i s  why I  was lament ing  tha t  po in t  to  say,  we 

cou ld  have been -  I  accept  Cha i r  tha t  there  i s  two separa te  

i ssues.   There  is  the  issue o f  the  non-appearance and then  

there  i s  the  issue  o f  how we then reso lve  i t ,  those two are  

no t  l inked and we  can separa te  them.   

And I  was want ing  to  say,  look ,  le t  us  focus on the  

so lu t ion  fo r  now and i f  the  Commiss ion  fee ls  thereaf te r  tha t  20 

the  charge must  be  la id  then the  Commiss ion  may lay  tha t  

charge,  bu t  we cou ld  no t  be  consumed in  tha t  to  the  ex ten t  

tha t  we are  and lose  so  much va luab le  t ime i f  the  in ten t ion  

is  on  e i ther  end to  ge t  the  Commiss ion  to  p rogress w i th  i t s  

work .   
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And tha t  i s  the  po in t  I  am cry ing  about  Cha i r,  to  say  

look,  i t  does not  take  the  process fo rward  fo r  counse l  to  be  

invo l ved in  lengthy  exchanges w i th  each o the r  where  the  

s i tua t ion  ex is ts  tha t  says,  okay,  the  w i tness is  no t  here .   

Can we get  her  ev idence on record  today,  i f  yes ,  how -  le t  

us  move on w i th  the  process.   

Counse l  can come and have  the  subsequent  

a rguments  about  what  th is  imp l ies ,  o r  what  th is  does not  

imp ly,  a t  a  la te r  s tage and as  to  how we must  now be  

th rown in to  long d iscuss ions about  what  happened in  10 

Par l iament  and does not  happen in  Par l iament .  I t  does not  

take  the  p rocess fo rward  Cha i r.   

And a l l  I  have asked fo r  today was to  say,  le t  us  

imp lement  whatever  so lu t ion  tha t  i s  feas ib le  and prac t ica l l y  

poss ib le  to  ge t  her  to  tes t i f y  today as  she was schedu led  

to  do .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  i s  there  anyth ing  you wanted to  

say?  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   In  add i t ion  to  tha t  Cha i r,  I  a lso  wanted  

to  cor rec t  one submiss ion  when I  submi t ted  tha t  I  sa id ,  Ms  20 

Hofmeyr  has submi t ted  tha t  she was under  lega l  adv i ce  to  

appear.   I  th ink  tha t  i s  an  incor rec t  unders tand ing  o f  my  

s ta tement .   

I  sa id ,  I  took  issue w i th  the  a t to rney to  say,  a t to rney  

p lease proper ly  adv ise  c l ien ts  about  what  th is  means a t  
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th is  po in t  in  t ime to  say tha t  we are  on ly  see ing  i t  now s t i l l  

renders  us  vu lne rab le .   That  was  a  conversa t ion  be tween 

the  a t to rney and myse l f  bu t  no t  a  conversa t ion  be tween the  

c l ien t  and myse l f .   

And the  las t  po in t  Cha i r  in  as  much as  past  conduc t  

as  i t  re la tes  to  Par l iament  i s  now be ing  brought  in  here ,  

Cha i r.   I  th ink  i t  f inds  no  re levance.   You Cha i r,  aware  we  

were  here  in  November  fo r  th ree  days fu l l ,  and unt i l  the  

end o f  the  hear ing  she was here ,  and there  was never  a t  

any po in t  even pr io r  to  tha t  hear ing ,  an  inc l ina t i on  or  a  10 

re luc tance on he r  par t  to  appear.  

So tha t  p remise  tha t  says she is  a  person whose  

prone to  want  to  de fy  i s  un founded,  Cha i r,  no t  when i t  

comes to  th is  Commiss ion ,  no t  when i t  comes  to  th is  

Commiss ion    and the  fac t  tha t  I  am here ,  because i t  g ives  

the  Cha i r  the  benef i t s  o f  answers  and a  perspect ive .   

Whereas i f  there  was no lega l  representa t i ve ,  and  

she was not  here ,  on  the  morn ing  then Cha i r  you can take  

a  v iew tha t  says there  is  an  ou t r igh t  de f iance towards the  

Commiss ion  bu t  the  fac t  tha t  I  am here  today,  to  make the  20 

p lea  to  say,  can  we pragmat ica l l y  reso lve  th is  and a l low 

the  ev idence to  come and record  fo r  the  day,  and i t  was my  

submiss ion  to  you ear l ie r  to  you  Cha i r  tha t  my c l ien t  i s  

in ten t  on  ge t t ing  th is  ou t  the  way.   So the  longer  we drag  

i t ,  i t  does not  he lp  e i ther  s ide ,  Cha i r.  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 53 of 243 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  Th is  i s  a  dec i s ion  I  have  

reached.   

One,  i t  i s  no t  acceptab le  tha t  Ms Myen i  d id  no t  

comply  w i th  h is  summons and presented herse l f  a t  the 

hear ing  th i s  morn ing .   

Two,  f rom what  I  have heard ,  there  appears  no t  to  

have been any va l id  reason fo r  her  no t  to  appear.  

Three,  the  secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion  must  take  

s teps to  lay  a  c r im ina l  compla in t  w i th  the  South  A f r i can  

Po l ice  Serv ice  aga ins t  he r  fo r  ac t ing  in  b reach o f  the  10 

summons and Commiss ions Act .   

Four,  I  d i rec ted  tha t  she shou ld  make herse l f  

ava i lab le  to  g i ve  ev idence today,  whethe r  i t  i s  v ia  zoom,  or  

any o f  the  methods used fo r  her  to  appear  v i r tua l l y.   So 

tha t  must  happen today,  I  d i rec ted  tha t  she shou ld  be  

ava i lab le ,  i t  i s  now about  11 ,  she shou ld  be  ava i lab le  f rom 

2  o 'c lock .   

In  the  meant ime,  I  w i l l  be  ab le  to  hear  some o ther  

ev idence to  use the  t ime but  she shou ld  be  ava i lab le  f rom 

2  o 'c lock  and a t  tha t  s tage I  w i l l  ind ica te  what  i s  go ing  to  20 

happen but  she  shou ld  be  ava i lab le  and a l l  concerned  

shou ld  be  ava i lab le .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  thank you so  much i f  I  may jus t  

ra ise  one aspect .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   
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ADV HOFMEYR:    There  was the  issue o f  the  inv i ta t ion  o f  

the  pr iv i lege and  there  were  ac tua l l y  a  se t  o f  quest ions in  

respect  o f  wh ich  the  lega l  team was go ing  to  seek  ru l ings  

today.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Now in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime,  I  am go ing  to  

jump ahead and say tha t  we are  go ing  to  seek ru l ings  tha t  

wou ld  requ i re  Ms  Myen i  to  answer  those quest ions i f  you  

are  persuaded by  our  submiss ions on  a f f idav i t s ,  so  I  do  no t  

-  I  know we are  runn ing  out  o f  t ime today,  I  am not  go ing  to  10 

ask  tha t  we do tha t  o ra l l y  w i th  he r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    So  tha t  e f fec t i ve ly  a t  2  o 'c lock  we cou ld  

move s t ra igh t  in to  the  Eskom ev idence but  there  is  an  

issue on the  quest ion  whether  those ru l ings  shou ld  be  

made and I  am jus t  wonder ing  whether  we shou ld  no t  ge t  

tha t  done now we have got  the  submiss ions f rom Ms 

Myen i ’s  lawyers .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    And so  I  and Mr  Buthe lez i  can address 20 

you on them and  then i f  you are  so  m inded ru l ings  can be 

made,  o r  we can do tha t  another  day.   I  jus t  do  no t  want  to  

leave tha t  i ssue I  know there  i s  o ther  ev idence to  ge t  to  

bu t  we cou ld  jus t  reso lve  tha t  now.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  tha t  I  am inc l ined to  th ink  tha t  the  
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w i tness ought  to  conf i rm whether  what  the  g rounds  are  fo r  

invok ing  tha t ,  i f  she says,  i t  i s  what  Mr  Buthe lez i  sa id  tha t  

she says so  and then to  the  ex ten t  tha t  a rgument  may be 

necessary,  and tha t  m ight  be  rea l l y  b r ie f  a rgument  as  fa r  

as  I  am concerned and then I  make a  ru l ing .   

I f  I  make a  ru l ing  tha t  the  grounds  she advances fo r  

invok ing  or  jus t i f y ing  the  vocat ion  o f  the  pr iv i lege are  no t  

p roper  g rounds,  then I  have to  ins t ruc t  he r  to  respond.   

Now,  I  can ins t ruc t  her  to  respond  ora l l y,  though,  as  fa r  as  

I  am concerned I  can ins t ruc t  her  i f  I  deem i t  appropr ia te  to  10 

respond in  wr i t ing .   

But  I  am inc l ined to  th ink  tha t  she must  f i rs t  

embrace the  g rounds,  o r  advance the  grounds before  I  

make a  ru l ing  whether  those grounds a re  proper  o r  no t .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  no ,  ce r ta in ly  in  respect  o f  the 

ev idence tha t  i s  coming th i s  a f te rnoon but  there  is  s t i l l  the 

mat te r  o f  the  November  ev idence ,  in  respect  o f  wh ich  we  

went  ove r  the  t ransc r ip t ,  we made the  submiss ions about  

where  the  pr iv i lege has been un jus t i f ied .   

The reasons are  there  Ms Myen i  gave them each  20 

t ime they are  i n  the  t ranscr ip t  and then what  we  shared 

w i th  our  learned f r iends th is  week,  i s  a  l i te ra l l y  a  l i s t  o f  the 

quest ions f rom tha t  h is to r i c  ev idence in  respect  o f  wh ich  

we were  go ing  to  seek ru l ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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ADV HOFMEYR:    So  i t  wou ld  no t  be  a  rehash  o f  tha t  

ev idence,  i t  wou ld  no t  be  tha t  she s t i l l  needs to  g ive  

reasons she d id  g ive  reasons a t  the  t ime and to  c lose  o f f  

tha t  overhang ing  mat te r  f rom las t  t ime.   We were  go ing  to  

seek ru l ings  on  those spec i f i c  quest ions in  her  las t  

ev idence where  we sa id  the  pr i v i lege had been incor rec t ly  

invoked.   I  fu l l y  unders tand in  the  course  o f  th is  

a f te rnoon 's  ev idence,  new reasons  may be g iven.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  I  was  ta lk ing  more  about  the  

h is to r i ca l ,  ones not  the  new ones because obv ious l y,  w i th  10 

regard  to  the  ev idence re la t ing  to  Eskom,  she  has not  

invoked any p r iv i l ege.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We do not  know i f  she w i l l  invoke,  so  I  

was look ing  a t  -  even though as  I  was say ing  I  am inc l ined  

to  th ink  she shou ld  be  par t  o f  the  d iscuss ions and not  jus t  

the  lawyer,  you know.  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Abso lu te ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  I  th ink  tha t  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  

shou ld  no t  take  us  long.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:  Indeed,  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Sor ry  fo r  the  m isunders tand ing  on my  

par t ,  we can jus t  p roceed then.   

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  tha t  i s  f ine  –  yes.   Okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  
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a l r igh t .   Le t  me jus t  say  fo r  what  i t  i s  wor th ,  the  w i tness  

tha t  I  am go ing  to  hear  in  the  meant ime,  i s  a  w i tness who 

was go ing  to  come in  the  even ing .   So I  am jus t  ment ion ing  

tha t ,  bu t  i t  may be tha t  we w i l l  see  how we go,  so  I  th ink  I  

am ad journ ing  the  hear ing  o f  her  ev idence or  our  bus iness  

re la t ing  to  her  to  2  o 'c lock  and then we w i l l  take  i t  f rom 

there .   

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you,  Cha i r,  I  unders tand we might  

need to  make ar rangements  f o r  the  new wi tness shou ld  we 

ad journ  fo r  a  per iod .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  we are  go ing  to  ad jou rn ,  I  th ink  the  

Ev idence Leader  in  regard  to  tha t  mat te r  i s  p robab ly  e i ther  

a l ready here  or  h is  l i s ten ing  o r  wa tch ing .   So I  th ink  tha t  i s  

now f i ve  past  11 .   I  th ink  we shou ld  a im to  -  I  am go ing  to  

a im to  -  because I  do  no t  know i f  –  a im to  resume –  i f  I  do 

no t  resume a t  ha l f  past  11  or  resume a t  quar te r  to  -  I  know 

he probab ly  i s  wa tch ing  and l i s ten ing .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Cha i r,  I  have jus t  been in fo rmed tha t  we 

can s tar t  f rom ha l f  past  11  f rom the  po in t  o f  v iew  o f  the 

ar rangements  and the  Ev idence Leader  ge t t ing  here .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  then we w i l l  resume a t  ha l f  past  

11 .  

ADV HOFMEYR:    Thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 
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INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing ,  Mr  Chaska lson.   Good  

morn ing ,  everybody.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Good  morn ing ,  Cha i rperson.   

Cha i rperson,  two deta i l s  be fore  we commence w i th  

Mr  Powel l ’s  ev idence.   The f i rs t  i s  Mr  Powel l  i s  no t  

rep resented by  h is  a t to rney here  today,  because he was 

not  an t ic ipa t ing  to  s ta r t .   I  have chat ted  w i th  h im  and he  

has ag reed very  k ind l y  to  p roceed in  the  absence o f  h is  

a t to rney.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  I  thought  we shou ld  pu t  tha t  

on  reco rd .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The second issue is  tha t  due to 

an  er ror  on  the  par t  o f  the  lega l  team,  there  are  cer ta in  

annexures to  Mr  Powel l ’s  s ta tement  tha t  were  omi t ted  f rom 

the  bund le .   Your  Reg is t ra r  has those bund les ,  i t  i s  15 .2  to  

15 .8  and the  p lace where  they w i l l  be long in  the  bund le  i s  

a f te r  page 424 in  bund le  16 ,  so  there  w i l l  be  a  sequence 20 

tha t  s ta r ts  a t  424 .1  and commences to  424.19 and i f  I  can  

ask  you . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The ones tha t  she has jus t  handed up  

are  marked 15.2 ,  15 .3 ,  bu t  there  are  o the rs  tha t  a re  no t  

marked.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  th ink  the ,  so  15 .2  i s  a  d iscre te  

annexure ,  15 .3  i s  another  d iscre te  annexure ,  so  i f  there  i s  

no t  a  number  on  any par t i cu la r  page i t  means i t  i s  par t  o f  

the  preced ing  page ’s  annexure .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   There  is  s tandard  te rms and 

cond i t ions ,  i s  tha t  an  annexure  to  someth ing?  Because i t  

i s  no t  marked.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  i t  is .   That  i s  par t  o f ,  I  th ink  

i t  i s  par t  o f  annexure  15 .5 ,  those s tandard  te rms .   So i t  

was a t tached to  the ,  so r ry,  15 .3 .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh ja ,  15 .3 .   That  i s  where  they appear.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And on they go .   I  wonder,  Cha i r,  

i f  I  can  ask ,  poss ib ly  I  can,  I  have now pag ina ted my se t ,  

so  they say 1  to  18  or  1  to  19 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  I  cou ld  g ive  you th is  se t ,  then 

yours  w i l l  be  pag ina ted and I  can . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay,  tha t  i s  f ine .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cou ld  I  then have yours  back in  

re tu rn?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then Cha i r,  i f  we can commence 

and swear  Mr  Powel l  in .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing ,  Mr  Powel l .   Thank you fo r  

coming back.   P lease admin is te r  the  oa th  or  a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:    P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR POWELL:    S teven Dav id  Powel l .  

REGISTRAR:    Do you have any ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibed oath?  

MR POWELL:    No ob jec t ion .  

REGISTRAR:    Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR POWELL:    Yes.  10 

REGISTRAR:    Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence 

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  the  t ru th ,  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  

bu t  the  t ru th?   I f  so ,  p lease ra i se  your  r igh t  hand and say;  

so  he lp  me God.  

MR POWELL:    He lp  me,  God.  

STEVEN DAVID POWELL:  (af f i rmed)  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.   Mr  Chaska lson,  I  d id  no t  

pay a t ten t ion  when you to ld  me where  I  shou ld  s lo t  these.   

I  see  the  pag ina t ion  15 .2 ,  i s  there  where  I  must  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  tha t  i s  the  annexure  

number.   They be long a f te r  page 424 o f  bund le  16 ,  424.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Shou ld  the  pag ina t ion  be  424.1  

onwards?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    So  yes,  424.1 .   I  do  no t  know whethe r  

you,  I  want  to  sk ip  the  te rms and cond i t ions ,  bu t  have the  

r igh t  pag ina t ion  fo r  the  next  document ,  wh ich  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The one w i th  the  15 .4  a t  the  top  

is  424.8 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    424.8 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i t  w i l l  go  on  a l l  the  way  

th rough to  424.19 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  I  am not  go ing  to  go  a l l  the  10 

way,  bu t  I  th ink  I  w i l l  manage as  we go a long and then la te r  

somebody can jus t  comple te  tha t  pag ina t ion .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  th ink  i f  you  ment ion  a  page number 

tha t  I  have not  pag ina ted I  w i l l  be  ab le  to  loca te  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then Mr  Powel l ,  be fore  I  ask  you  

to  conf i rm the  cor rec tness o f  the  a f f idav i t  tha t  you have  

submi t ted  to  the  Commiss ion ,  I  unders tand tha t  there  are  20 

one o r  two deta i l s  tha t  need cor rec t ion  and the  f i rs t  re la tes  

to  the  tab le  o f  payments  f rom Mr  McKay to  Mr  Kodwa,  tha t  

appears  a t  annexure  SB5,  i t  appears  a t  page,  bund le  16 ,  

page 293.   Can I  ask  you to  go  to  tha t  bund le  and to  tha t  

page?  
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MR POWELL:    Yes,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And I  unders tand . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  page number?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    293,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    293,  Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And I  unders tand tha t  there  is  a  

t ransact ion  m iss ing  f rom tha t  tab le .  

MR POWELL:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  i t  i s?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   There  is  an  add i t iona l  10 

t ransact ion  on  10  Ju ly  2015.   Cha i r,  apo log ies ,  i f  Cha i r  can  

note  jus t  beneath  the  tab le  by  hand,  10  Ju l y  2015,  there  is  

a  t ransfer  f rom McKay to  Kodwa in  the  amount  o f  R35 000,  

Cha i r  and tha t  then w i l l  b r ing  the  to ta l  payments  f rom 

McKay to  Kodwa f rom R1 645 000 to  R1 680 000,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    The par t i cu la r  t ransact ion  is  f o r  how 

much?  

MR POWELL:    R35 000,  Cha i r,  and the  da te  o f  tha t  

t ransact ion  is  10  Ju l y  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  have got  tha t ,  and tha t  you say 20 

then w i th  tha t  t ransact ion  i t  i s?  

MR POWELL:    I t  to ta ls  up  to  R1 680 000,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes okay,  thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then a  consequent ia l  

change in  paragraph 11 o f  your  a f f idav i t  where  you re fer  to  
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the  or ig ina l  f igure  o f  R1 645 000,  tha t  i s  a t  page 282 o f  the 

bund le ,  282,  bu t  then I  p resume tha t  f igure  o f  R1 645 000  

in  paragraph 11 must  now change  a lso  to  R1 680 000.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  do  you con f i rm tha t ,  Mr  Powel l?  

MR POWELL:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then I  unders tand a lso  tha t  

i f  one goes to  the  chrono logy  tab le  a t  page 281,  the  

second las t  i tem reads e -mai l s  be tween Shazay  Gordon  

and Kodwa in  re la t ion  to  ANC tee-sh i r t s  fo r  wh ich  EOH wi l l  10 

pay more  than R50 000,  I  unders tand tha t  requ i res  a  

cor rec t ion  as  we l l .  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   That  R50 000 i s  wrong,  i f  

Cha i r  w i l l  p lease de le te  and rep lace i t  w i th  R134 200.   

There  were  add i t iona l  tee -sh i r t s  tha t  were  ident i f ied  

subsequent ly  Cha i r,  tha t  th is  re la tes  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s?  

MR POWELL:    The R50 000 is  incor rec t  on  tha t  second  

las t  l ine  on  page 281,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  20 

MR POWELL:    I f  Cha i r  can de le te  the  R50 000 and 

rep lace i t  w i th  R134 200.  

CHAIRPERSON:    134 Or  154?  

MR POWELL:    R134 200,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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MR POWELL:    Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Powel l ,  the  techn ic ians te l l  

me tha t  your  m icrophone is  a  l i t t le  b i t  too  fa r  away,  I  

wonder  i f  you  cou ld  move i t  a  b i t  c loser.  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then Mr  Powel l ,  sub jec t  to  those 

cor rec t ions tha t  you have made,  do  you conf i rm the 

cor rec tness o f  the  a f f idav i t  as  i t  appears  a t  page 279 o f  the  

bund le?  10 

MR POWELL:    I  do ,  Cha i r.   Th is  i s  my a f f idav i t  and I  

conf i rm the  co r rec tness thereof .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Powel l .   You have  

tes t i f ied  be fore ,  bu t  I  wonder  i f  you  can  br ie f l y  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  me to  accept  i t  as  an  

exh ib i t?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  do ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  jus t  f ind  ou t?  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  can you admi t  i t  as 

EXHIBIT BB2.3?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Mr  S teven Dav id  Powel l ’s  

a f f idav i t  tha t  beg ins  a t  page 279 i s  admi t ted  as  an  exh ib i t  
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and w i l l  be  marked as  EXHIBIT BB2.3 .   Okay,  you may  

proceed.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you,  Cha i r.   Mr  Powel l ,  

you have tes t i f ied  prev ious ly,  can you jus t  very  br ie f l y  

remind the  Cha i r  who you a re  and how you came to  be  

in t roduced to  the  work  o f  the  Commiss ion?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I  am the  Head o f  

Forens ics  a t  ENS Af r i ca ,  one o f  the  law f i rms Cha i r,  and as  

I  conveyed on the  las t  occas ion  when I  tes t i f ied  on  

25 November  2020,  I  gave ev idence re la t ing  to  an  10 

invest iga t ion  tha t  we had per fo rmed a t  EOH,  an  ICT 

company,  a  South  A f r i can l i s ted  ICT company  and I  

h igh l igh ted  t ransact ions tha t  we  had  ident i f ied  tha t  the  

Commiss ion  asked us  to  share  and  prov ide  ev idence  on.  

Cha i r,  subsequent  to  p rov id ing  tha t  ev idence,  

shor t l y  a f te r  comple t ing  my tes t imony I  was asked  by  the  

Commiss ion  to  fu rn ish  i t  w i th  a  repor t  in to  add i t iona l  i tems 

tha t  we had ident i f ied  re la t ing  to  some o f  the  w i tnesses  

tha t  I  had tes t i f ied  about  p rev ious l y  on  25  November.  

The Commiss ion  asked us  to  submi t  a  repor t  20 

spec i f i ca l l y  in to  a  gent leman or  payments  tha t  we had 

ident i f ied  made in  2015 and 2016  to  Mr  ZZ Kodwa a t  the  

ins tance o f  o r  by  Mr  Jean McKay,  who a t  the  t ime was an  

execut ive  o f  EOH.   Cha i r  may reca l l  tha t  p rev ious ly  I  

tes t i f ied  tha t  there  was approx ima te ly  R400 000 pa id  f rom 
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Mr  McKay ’s  account  to  Mr  Kodwa and I  gave ev idence 

re la ted  to  tha t .  

What  has happened subsequent  to  tha t ,  Cha i r,  I  the  

Commiss ion  has  subpoenaed bank accounts .   Dur ing  my  

in i t ia l  invest iga t ion  I  on l y  had access to  a  snapshot  o f  

Mr  McKay ’s  accounts  and the  Commiss ion  has subpoenaed 

fu r ther  accounts  o f  Mr  Kodwa f rom a  re levant  f inanc ia l  

ins t i tu t ion  and based on those accounts  I  was asked to  

rev iew and look a t  the  in fo rmat ion  and prov ide  a  repor t  on  

add i t iona l  payments ,  wh ich  we have ident i f ied .   10 

In  add i t ion  Cha i r,  we d id  some fu r ther  e -mai l  

ana lys is ,  because our  focus on  the  prev ious occas ion ,  

Cha i r  w i l l  remember,  was re la ted  to  the  C i ty  o f  

Johannesburg  and Mr  Je f f rey  Makuba in  par t i cu la r.   

Mr  Kodwa’s  ev idence tha t  I  p rov ided tha t  was  a lmost  

co l la te ra l  in fo rmat ion  tha t  we jus t  came ac ross essent ia l l y  

w i th  the  Commiss ion  a t  the  t ime,  we then d id  a  de ta i led  

focus o f  the  e-mai l  serv i ce  a t  EOH to  ident i f y  i f  there  was  

fu r ther  ev idence re la ted  to  the  ac t iv i t ies  o f  Mr  McKay and 

Mr  Kodwa in  par t i cu la r  and we have ident i f ied  s ign i f i can t  20 

t ransact ions,  wh ich  or  qu i te  a  number  o f  in te rac t ions Cha i r,  

I  shou ld  say,  tha t  I  w i l l  g ive  ev idence about  today.  

When I  tes t i f ied  ear l ie r  I  ment ioned tha t  Mr  McKay  

was an execut ive  o f  EOH,  i t  i s  a lso  impor tan t  to  po in t  ou t  

Cha i r,  tha t  McKay is  a  fo rmer  D i rec to r  o f  an  en t i t y  known 
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as  Tact ica l  Sof tware  Systems (P ty)  L td ,  i t  has  an  

abbrev ia t ion  TSS and tha t  company,  TSS,  I  unders tand is  

no  in  vo lun ta ry  l iqu ida t ion .  

Cha i r,  I  know I  say  Cha i r  may reca l l  and I  know 

Cha i r  has a  m i l l ion  th ings tes t i f ied  be fore  Cha i r,  bu t  one o f  

our  i tems I  h igh l igh ted  was tha t  EOH Matambo acqu i red  a t  

TSS subs id ia ry  ca l led  TSS Managed Serv ices  (P ty)  L td ,  

now ca l led  EOH Af r i ca ,  by  way  o f  a  sa les  o f  shares 

agreement  be tween EOH Matambo and TSS in  2011.  

The t ransact ions tha t  I  am go ing  to  descr ibe  to  the  10 

Commiss ion  today Cha i r,  come out  o f  an  en t i t y  ca l led  TSS,  

Tact ica l  Sof tware  Systems (P ty)  L td .   Th is  i s  no t  an  EOH 

company,  i t  rema ined in  the  TSS tab le .   So Mr McKay,  as  

you heard  he  moved,  he  became an execut ive  o f  EOH,  

pr io r  to  tha t  he  was an execut ive  a t  TSS and th is  i s  an  

in te res t  tha t  McKay had in  TSS.   So Cha i r,  I  jus t  share  tha t  

so  tha t  you do no t  confuse th is  w i t h  EOH.   

I t  i s  no t  an  EOH company,  i t  i s  no t  par t  o f  the  EOH 

group.   I  then submi t ted  a  repor t  to  the  Commiss ion  and  

tha t  Commiss ion  is  a t tached as  SB4 to  my a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry  to  in te r rup t ,  Mr  Powel l .   

Cha i r,  the  SB4 repor t  appears  on  page 286,  i f  you  can jus t  

make a  no te  on  Mr  Powel l ’s  a f f idav i t .   We wi l l  no t  be  go ing  

to  i t  jus t  ye t ,  bu t  I  want  i t  to  be  on  the  record .   Sor ry  

Mr  Powel l ,  I  in te r rup ted  you mids t ream.   Thank you,  i f  you  
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wou ld  l i ke  to  cont inue.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  as  I  was  say ing  the  Commiss ion  

conducted i t s  own inqu i r ies  and subpoenaed  fu r ther  

accounts  and they asked me to  rev iew tha t  in fo rmat ion  and  

we have rev iewed i t  and the  e-ma i l  ev idence and f inanc ia l  

da ta  tha t  we rev iewed shows tha t  over  the  per iod  May 2015  

to  February  2016 ZZ Kodwa,  whom I  unders tand  was the  

ANC spokesman a t  the  t ime Cha i r,  rece ived  d i rec t  

payments  as  we l l  as  luxu ry  accommodat ion  w i th  a  

combined va lue  o f  more  than R2 m i l l ion .  10 

Cha i r,  las t  t ime  I  tes t i f ied  we jus t  ind i ca ted  the  

R400 000.   These are  a l l  add i t iona l  i tems tha t  we have  

subsequent ly  found and th is  i s  what  I  w i l l  be  cover ing  in  

my tes t imony today.  

What  we a l so  d iscovered was  tha t  McKay and  

Kodwa regu la r ly  exchanged e-mai ls  regard ing  what  

appeared to  be  ANC donat ions over  th i s  per iod .   A tab le  

se t t ing  ou t  the  d i rec t  payments  to  Kodwa made by  o r  a t  the  

ins tance o f  McKay is  a t tached as  annexure  SB5.   

Annexure  SB6  is  a  bund le  o f  ex t rac ts  f rom bank s ta tements  20 

in  suppor t  o f  the  t ransact ions,  these bank s ta tements  are  

the  documents  I  re fe r red  to  tha t  the  Commiss ion  

subpoenaed,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now thus fa r  Mr  Powel l ,  you 

have been ta lk ing  pr imar i l y  about  donat ions to  Mr  Kodwa,  
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you  speak a lso  o f  payments  to  the  ANC.   Can you say  

about  tha t?  

MR POWELL:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  in  add i t ion  to  

the  payments  to  Kodwa,  a t  McKay ’s  ins tance,  EOH a lso  

made payments  aggregat ing  to  more  than R15 mi l l ion  to  

the  ANC o r  i t s  supp l ie rs  and Cha i r,  I  w i l l  j us t  descr ibe  fo r  

Cha i r  what  I  am go ing  to  be  e labora t ing  on  la te r  so  tha t  

Cha i r  can have  a  smal l  ins igh t  in to  what  the  broader  

landscape w i l l  look  l i ke .  

Cha i r,  you w i l l  remember  when I  tes t i f ied  prev ious l y  10 

about  the  C i ty  o f  Johannesburg  there  were  a  lo t  o f  

donat ion  requests  ins t iga ted  by  Mr  Je f f rey  Makuba and  

there  was cor respondence and communica t ions w i th  McKay  

and a  Pat r i ck  Makubedu regard ing  ANC donat ions and a l l  

o f  those donat ions were  rou ted  th rough an ent i t y  ca l led  

Mfund i  Mob i le .  

Mfund i  Mob i le  was run  by  a  pr i nc ipa l  by  the  name o f  

Reeno Bar ry,  Cha i r.   Reeno Bar ry  a l so  fea tures  i n  these 

ANC donat ions.   These donat ions seem to  p r imar i l y  

emanate  f rom the  Eastern  Cape Prov inc ia l  B ranch o f  the 20 

ANC and what  is  in te res t ing  Cha i r,  i s  tha t  Reeno Bar ry  

aga in  fea tures  as  the  person admin is te r i ng  much  o f  the 

donat ions,  the  management  o f  those donat ions and  

prev ious l y  we saw tha t  w i th  the  CoJ Mfund i  Mob i le  ac ted  

as  an  in te rmed ia ry  and what  I  mean by  tha t  Cha i r,  i s  EOH 
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d id  no t  donate  d i rec t l y  to  the  ANC,  they donated,  they gave  

th is  money to  Mfund i  Mob i le  and i t  was a lso  around  

R16 mi l l ion ,  Cha i r.   So the  numbers  are  qu i te  s im i la r  as  

we l l  and Mfund i  Mob i le  then rece ived invo ices f rom the 

ANC for  ga ther ings,  t ranspor t ,  events ,  p r i n t ing  tee -sh i r t s ,  

e t  ce tera .  

In  th is  ins tance I  w i l l  be  tes t i f y ing ,  Cha i r,  tha t  TSS,  

the  non EOH ent i t y  l inked to  McKay,  funded a  lo t  o f  tha t ,  

those t ransact ions in  the  same way tha t  Mfund i  ac ted  

prev ious l y  w i th  CoJ and s im i la r  to  CoJ,  Cha i r,  Mr  Reeno 10 

Bar ry  has a lso  kept  a  spreadshee t  reconc i l ing  a l l  o f  these  

payments  tha t  were  made on beha l f  o f  the  ANC.   Cha i r,  we 

w i l l  go  in to  each o f  the  spec i f i c  i tems,  bu t  I  thought  i t  

wou ld  be  usefu l  jus t  to  g ive  Cha i r  the  p ic tu re  o f  what  we  

are  go ing  to  cover  here .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you.  

MR POWELL:    Mr  Chaska lson,  sha l l  I  con t inue?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Wel l ,  i f  I  can  jus t  ask  you,  you 

ta lk  about  payments  be tween Mr Kodwa,  payments  to  the 

ANC at  Mr  Kodwa’s  ins tance and in  your  repor t  you 20 

suggest  tha t  these payments  appear  to  be  the  qu i t  p ro  quo  

fo r  suppor t  fo r  Mr  Kodwa fo r  EOH’s  in te res t  in  severa l  

tenders .   Now can you jus t  b r ie f l y  summar ise  tha t?  

Obv ious l y  we w i l l  ge t  in to  the  de ta i l  la te r.  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   We a re  go ing  to  be  go ing  
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th rough a  lo t  o f  communica t ions be tween McKay and  

Kodwa and payments  to  Kodwa and you w i l l  see  Cha i r,  we  

w i l l  re fe r  spec i f i ca l l y  to  the  t im ing  o f  those payments  and 

the  ac t iv i t ies  tha t  the  communica t ions re la te  to ,  bu t  these 

seem to  have had a  d i rec t  l ink  o r  connect ion  to  th ree  

d i f fe ren t  p rocurement  p rocesses.  

There  was one a t  the  Depar tment  o f  Home Affa i rs ,  

there  was a  tender  by  the  number  o f  1303/2014 and tha t  

was fo r  the  prov is ion  o f  P la t inum Access Serv ice  So lu t ion  

to  Government  fo r  f i ve  years ,  tha t  i s  abbrev ia ted  to  DHA,  10 

P la t inum Access Tender,  Cha i r  and then there  was  another  

tender  to  the  Easte rn  Cape  Prov inc ia l  Government  

Depar tment  o f  Educat ion  Tender  and tha t  one is  re fe r red  to  

as  SCUM6’15/16 ’0001,  and tha t  was an in tegra ted  

document  Management  and Human Resources Records  

Restora t ion  Pro jec t  and we w i l l  re fe r  to  tha t  jus t  as  the  EC 

Records Resto ra t ion  Tender.  

The th i rd  one is  the  SASSA Tender  18 /14 / ICT fo r  

the  prov i s ion  o f  suppor t  and main tenance serv i ces  o f  ERP 

Orac le  fo r  th ree  years ,  and tha t  i s  commonly  re fer red  to  as  20 

the  SASSA Orac le  Suppor t  Tender.  

Cha i r,  I  do  want  to  jus t  po in t  ou t  tha t  in  respect  o f  

the  Eastern  Cape Prov inc ia l  Government  Depar tment  o f  

Educat ion  Tender  there  was an award  o f  R217 mi l l ion  made 

in  respect  o f  tha t  tender  to  a  consor t ium,  and EOH were  a  
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40% shareho lder  in  the  consor t ium,  so  no t  a l l  o f  the  217 

went  to  EOH at  the  t ime,  approx imate ly  jus t  over  80 ,  

85  m i l l ion ,  thereabouts  wou ld  have  been the i r  sha re ,  Cha i r.   

So I  jus t  wanted to  c la r i f y  tha t  par t i cu la r  po in t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank  you,  Mr  Powel l .   What  I  

am now go ing  to  ask  you to  do  i s  to  go  th rough,  o r  in  fac t  

what  I  am now go ing  to  do  i s  to  take  you th rough the  

t ime l ine  tha t  you  have p repared in  paragraph 10 o f  your  

repor t  and a t  va r ious po in ts  I  am go ing  to ,  when we ta l k  

about  p rocurement  p rocesses in  t he  contex t  o f  th i s  t ime l ine  10 

I  am go ing  to  ask  you jus t  to  take  us  back to  wh ich  o f  the  

th ree  tha t  you have now descr ibed  the  l ine  i tem re fers  to .  

The f i rs t  l i ne  i tem s tar ts  on  13  March and fo r  tha t  

purpose can I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 433 o f  the  bund le ,  

433?  And i f  you can desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  the  

document  a t  433 is .  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Cha i r,  the  document  a t  

433 o f  the  bund le  i s  a  le t te r  o f  award  f rom SASSA to  EOH 

Matambo L im i ted  and i t s  header  i s  ‘SASSA/18/14/ ICT,  

appo in tment  o f  serv i ce  prov ide r  fo r  the  prov i s ion  o f  suppor t  20 

and main tenance  serv ices  o f  ERP Orac le  fo r  a  per iod  o f  

th ree  years ’ and th is  i s  to  in fo rm EOH tha t  they had been  

awarded th i s  tender.  

Cha i r,  the  tender  i s  wor th  jus t  ove r  R90 mi l l ion ,  bu t  

what  the  document  spec i f ies  in  paragraph 1 .1  i s  t ha t  you r  
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quote  pr ice  o f  R30 360 160 has been accepted fo r  the  f i rs t  

year  o f  the  prov is ion ing  o f  the  abovement ioned serv i ces ,  

second and th i rd  year  p r ices  w i l l  be  ad jus ted  based on 

Consumer  Pr i ce  Index,  CPI ,  as  de termined by  S ta t i s t i cs  

South  A f r i ca .   So  they on ly  spec i fy  the  R30 mi l l ion ,  bu t  i t  

d id ,  w i l l  run  to  jus t  over  R90 mi l l ion ,  Cha i r  and  

Mr  Chaska lson,  th is  i s  the  SASSA Orac le  Tender,  so  one o f  

the  th ree  tha t  we re fer red  to  ear l ie r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Mr  Powel l .   The next  

i tem on the  bund le  has the  da te  7  Apr i l  2015.   To  exp la in  10 

tha t  i tem can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 484 o f  the  bund le ,  

484?  Thank you,  Cha i r.   I t  i s  a  b i t  qu icker  th is  t ime  around  

in  my ev idence,  Cha i r.   We have got  a  quar te r  o f  the 

vo lume o f  documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So  th is  i s  an  e-mai l  f rom Jean  

McKay,  da ted  17  Apr i l  2015 to  Shazay Gordon.   Shazay 

Gordon was Mr  McKay ’s  p ro fess iona l  ass is tan t  a t  the  t ime,  

he  was an employee o f  EOH,  he  was no longer  emp loyed a t  

EOH,  and what  th is  d i rec t s  he r  to  do  is  i t  i s  an  ins t ruc t ion  20 

f rom Jean McKay to  Shazay Gordon and i t  reads as  

fo l lows:  

“Please can you get  me the cont ract  value of  

both the SASSA IMS contract  and the SASSA 

AMS contract?  I  need the value,  inclusive of  
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vat .   A lso,  can you send me a recon on al l  

t ravel  expenses for our special  project  wi th  

Ingr id?”  

And were  you ab le  to  ident i f y  who the  Ingr id  re fe r red  to  

here  is?  

MR POWELL:    We suspect  tha t  th is  appears  to  be  an  

Ingr id  Nd lovu,  who was the  Par l i amentary  L ia ison  Off i cer  

fo r  the  Depar tment  o f  Soc ia l  Deve lopment .   There  we have 

found e-mai ls ,  wh ich  we w i l l  b r ing  to  Cha i r ’s  a t ten t ion  in  a 

moment ,  re f lec t ing  her  address as  ESD and tha t  seems to  10 

be the  Ingr id  re fe r red  to .    

There  is  a lso  re fe rence to  another  gent leman by the  

name tha t  a l so  has l inks  to  Soc ia l  Deve lopment ,  wh ich  we  

w i l l  exp la in  la te r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Now the  i tem on the  t ime l ine  has  

a  da te ,  7  Apr i l .   Can you go to  page 485 and exp la in  what  

you see a t  485?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   A t  485 we have got  

another  e -mai l  f rom Shazay Gordon th is  t ime to  Jean 

McKay,  the  sub jec t  i s  ‘P ro jec t  Ingr id ’ and i t  i s  da ted  20 

18 Apr i l  2015,  Cha i r,  and i t  reads as  fo l lows:  

“Hi ,  Jean.   Total  costs R118 908.54 as 

fol lows.”  

And then i t  re fe rs  to  var ious en t i t ies  dur ing  Apr i l ,  7  Apr i l  to  

9  Apr i l  and the  venues are  Premie r  Hote l  P re tor ia ,  P remie r  
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Hote l  P re to r ia ,  and they re fer  to  the  f i rs t  two i tems o f  

venue h i re ,  R16 425.   The second one is  R11 125  and i t s  

reason,  d inner,  there  i s  the  co lumn spec i fy ing  reason.   

Then the  las t  one in  respect  o f  7  Apr i l  2015 is  C i t y  Lodge 

OR Tambo and i t  re f lec ts  a  pr ice  o f  R13 486.90 and the  

reason c i ted  on  the  document  i s  accommodat ion ,  seven  

rooms.   

Then 8  Apr i l  SAA f l igh ts  to  the  va lue  o f  R8 075.28,  

f l i gh ts ,  and i t  i s  f l i gh ts  to  East  London.   8  Apr i l ,  SAA aga in ,  

R23 163.36 Cha i r,  and th is  i s  a lso  f l igh ts ,  th is  t ime i t  i s  10 

f l igh ts  to  Cape Town.   Then the  las t  i tem on 8  Apr i l  i s  

P remie re  Hote l  East  London,  R13 765 and the  reason c i ted  

on  the  document  i s  accommodat ion .   9  Apr i l ,  Wi ld  Coast  

Sun In te rnat iona l ,  R32 868,  a lso  re f lec ted  as  

accommodat ion  and the  to ta l  amount  there  is  R118 908.54 

and the  foo te r  re f lec ts  Shazay Gordon as  Execut ive  

Ass i s tan t ,  Jean McKay and Zonet  Mayet ,  EOH Matambo.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So tha t  wou ld  be  the ,  and the  

header  o f  tha t  e -mai l  i s  P ro jec t  Ingr id  expenses,  i s  i t  no t?  

MR POWELL:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The next  l ine  i tem tha t  you have 

is  da ted  24  Apr i l  2015 and to  exp la in  tha t  document ,  can I  

ask  you  to  go  to  i t?   I t  i s  a t  page 325 o f  the  bund le ,  i t  i s  

annexure  7 .2 .  

MR POWELL:    Sor ry,  Cha i r.   Mr  Chaska lson,  i f  I  can  jus t  
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in te r rup t .   I f  we jus t  tu rn  the  fo l low ing page f rom the  las t  

document  you w i l l  see  we a re  ta lk ing  about  Pro jec t  Ingr id  

expenses.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes.  

MR POWELL:    And i f  I  may,  I  m igh t  jus t  re fe r  to  the  next  

e -mai l ,  wh ich  seems to  a lso  t ie  up  to  the  same pro jec t .   IT 

a lso  re fe rence to  Pro jec t  Ingr id ,  bu t  th is  t ime i t  i s  an  e-mai l  

f rom Shazay Gordon to  reenob@tssms.co .za ,  cop ied  to  

Jean McKay and  i t  a lso  ta lks  about  Pro jec t  Ingr id ,  Apr i l  

2015,  Absa TSS c red i t  ca rd ,  Jean McKay.    10 

Cha i r,  and i f  we look a t  th is  document  what  i t  shows  

is  dear  Reeno,  so  I  p resume Cha i r,  i t  looks  l i ke  the  Reeno  

Bar ry  tha t  I  re fe r red  to ,  the  same gent leman tha t  was 

l inked to  Mfund i  Mob i le ,  here  he  i s  l inked to  TSS/MS and 

what  she is  wr i t ing  i s :  

“Dear Reeno, please al locate the h ighl ighted 

charges on this  card to Tact ical  Sof tware 

Systems under Project  Ingr id.”  

So in  o ther  words,  book these  expenses wh ich  were  

occur red  by  Jean  McKay on h is  pe rsona l  c red i t  card ,  to  the  20 

pro jec t  and then:  

“This is a project  Jean has started and has 

run f rom March 2015 to current . ”  

And then she goes on to  say:  

“ I  wi l l  be sending you each month’s  charges.   
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Let  me know i f  I  should submit  al l  to you on 

a spreadsheet and just  f lag you on the credi t  

card used.”  

And i f  we look a t  the  breakdown i t  has  go t  SAA f l igh ts ,  

Cha i r,  14  Apr i l ,  30  Apr i l  and 131 on Herber t  Baker  meet ing  

venue,  Premier  Hote l  East  London,  R16 000 

accommodat ion  and tha t  to ta l  i s  R116 000 Cha i r,  and i f  you 

jus t  tu rn  the  page  you w i l l  see  a t  FOF16587 . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Where  does i t . . .   Oh okay,  I  see the  

to ta l .  I  thought  you had le f t  the  page tha t  I  was look ing  a t .   10 

Now I  see the  to ta l  you are  ta lk ing  about .   So we go to  

page 487.  

MR POWELL:    487,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR POWELL:    And what  fo l lows there  is  Mr  McKay ’s  c red i t  

card  s ta tement  fo r  the  per iod  3  Apr i l  2015 to  4  May 2015  

and Cha i r,  i f  you  have a  look a t  the  r igh t  hand co lumn on 

the  very  next  page you w i l l  see  tha t  someone has wr i t ten  in  

handwr i t ten  handwr i t ing  Ingr id  ha l fway down the  pay and 

there  i s  an  amount  o f  192412 and  i t  re f lec ts  South  A f r i can  20 

A i rways,  OR Tambo.   Cha i r,  have you got  tha t?   That  i s  in  

the  m idd le  o f  page 488.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  a t  488.  

MR POWELL:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say somewhere  in  the  m idd le .  
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MR POWELL:    In  the  m idd le .   I t  i s  h igh l igh ted  Cha i r,  and  

i t  has  go t  Ingr id  on  the  r igh t  hand co lumn.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh yes,  I  can see tha t .    

MR POWELL:    Th is  seems to  be  one o f  the  persona l  c red i t  

card  expenses pa id  fo r  by  Mr  McKay and c la imed  back by  

h is  secre ta ry,  what  happened is  now d i rec t  Reeno Bar ry  to  

a l loca te  th is  to  Pro jec t  Ingr id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POWELL:    And Cha i r,  i f  you  tu rn  to  the  fo l low ing page,  

page 489,  you w i l l  see  tha t  there  a re  a  fu r ther  e igh t  10 

nar ra t ions wh ich  are  h igh l igh ted  and they a l l  have Ingr id  

next  door  to  them wr i t ten  in .   I  p resume th i s  i s  Shazay  

Gordon ind ica t ing  th is  on  the  spreadsheet  to  Reeno Bar ry  

there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  and ear l ie r  you w i l l  reca l l  

Mr  Chaska lson asked me who Ingr id  was.   Cha i r,  i f  you  

cont inue th i s  na r ra t ion  and you tu rn  to  the  fo l low ing page 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  sor ry  Mr  Powel l ,  we are  20 

s t i l l  hav ing  p rob lems wi th  sound apparent ly.   Can  I  ask  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POWELL:    I  have tu rned i t  comple te ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay.  

MR POWELL:    Thank you.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thanks.  

MR POWELL:    Apo log ies ,  Mr  Chaska lson.   Cha i r,  i f  you  

tu rn  to  the  ve ry  next  page . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  fo r  490?  

MR POWELL:    490,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  I  ment ioned tha t  we ident i f ied  th is  

Ingr id  Nd lovu as  a  pe rson a t  DSD.   Th is  i s  an  e-ma i l  f rom 

Shazay Gordon dated 5  August  2015 and i t  i s  sent  to  

ingr idn@dsd.gov.za .   I t  a lso  seems to  be  sent  to  a pr iva te  10 

e-mai l  fo r  the  same person,  b ing ind lovu@gmai l . com and  

then i t  i s  cop ied  to  lunganwkwana@gmai l . com as we l l  as  i t  

i s  cop ied  to  Jean  McKay and what  the  sub jec t  header  here  

is  Cha i r,  i s  TSS,  Government ,  ANC,  Women’s  League,  5  to  

9  August  2015,  and the re  is  an  a t tachment ,  an  EOH 

Book 1 ,  i t  seems to  be  a  PDF o f  a  spreadsheet  Cha i r,  and 

i t  i s  marked as  impor tance h igh  and the  nar ra t ion  is  f rom 

Shazay Gordon.  

“Hi ,  Ingr id and Lunga.   Please see at tached 

f inal  conf i rmat ion of  hotels and numbers,  20 

tota l  delegates 550.”  

So I  th ink  tha t  comple tes  the  p ic tu re  o f  th is  par t i cu la r  

cha in  o f  e -mai ls ,  Cha i r.  Mr  Chaska lson,  apo log ies .   I  

in te r rup ted  you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    No,  no t  a t  a l l ,  no t  a t  a l l .   I f  we 
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can  go back,  I  mean we have seen a  ser ies  o f  payments  in  

re la t ion  to ,  o r  e -mai ls  re fe r r ing  to  payments  and book ing  in  

re la t ion  to  P ro jec t  Ingr id ,  bu t  I  now want  to  go  back to  

24  Apr i l  and to  page 325 o f  the  bund le  wh ich ,  can you 

desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  the  document  you see  a t  325 

is?   I t  i s  annexure  7 .2 ,  SBF 7 .2 .  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  e-mai l  f rom Jean  McKay 

sent  on  24  Apr i l  2015 to  ZZ Kodwa,  sub jec t  ‘TSS loan  

agreement  templa te  doc ' ,  a t tachment  TSS loan agreement  

templa te  doc,  and i t  i s  sent  by  iPhone and i t  fo rwards a  10 

message and th is  was fo rwarded f rom Shazay Gordon and  

sent  to  Jean McKay,  th is  templa te  doc,  and then i f  you go 

to  the  preced ing  e-mai l  you w i l l  see  tha t  on  22  Apr i l  a t  

09 :55  Shazay Gordon sa id  to  zzkodwa@gmai l . com,  cop ies  

Jean McKay,  TSS  loan ag reement :  

“To whom i t  may concern,  as requested by 

Mr McKay p lease f ind at tached TSS loan 

agreement.   Kindly conf i rm receipt  of  th is e-

mai l .   Regards,  Shazay Gordon. ”  

And her  ce l l  number.   Cha i r,  and i f  you  tu rn  the  page over  20 

to  FAF16236 you  w i l l  see  th is  seems to  be  the  templa te 

re fer red  to  and i t  i s  a  loan ag reement  be tween  Tact ica l  

Sof tware  Systems (P ty)  L td  w i th  t he  company reg is t ra t ion  

number  re fer red  to  as  TSS and the  company name is  b lank,  

i t  i s  to  be  comple ted .  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Were  you ab le  to  f ind  any 

comple ted  loan agreement  be tween TSS and an en t i t y  tha t  

you cou ld  l ink  to  Mr  Kodwa?  

MR POWELL:    Not  a t  a l l ,  Cha i r.   We looked,  we cou ld  no t  

f ind  any loan agreement  tha t  was comple ted  and th i s  

par t i cu la r  templa te  seems to  be  a  m isnomer,  because i t  

re fe rs  to  an  en te rpr ise  deve lopment  loan and the  number  i s  

b lank,  Rands on ly,  b lank and then i t  ta lks  about  company  

name is  a  b lack  owned company and i f  you jus t  read the  

f i rs t  paragraph o f  th is  document :  10 

“Al l  investments  are  grounded  in  the  

mean ing fu l  engagement  o f  the  youth ,  young  

women and d isab led  peop le  in  the  

deve lopment  o f  appropr ia te  economic  and 

ent repreneur  sk i l l s ,  the  pr imary  ob jec t i ve  i s  

to  c rea te  wea l th  and in  tha t  p rocess  

ident i f y  oppor tun i t ies  tha t  w i l l  i dent i f y  

youth ,  women and d i sab led  by  way o f  

c rea ted employment  bus iness 

oppor tun i t ies .   Company name is  managed  20 

by  a  young team for  young peop le  w i th  the  

pr imary  ob jec t i ve  o f  ac t i ve l y  par t i c ipa t ing  in  

the  mains t ream economy. ”  

Cha i r,  th is  looks l i ke  an  enterpr ise  deve lopment  loan and I  

wou ld  submi t  Cha i r,  tha t  I  wou ld  ha rd ly  suspect  tha t  
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Mr  ZZ Kodwa wou ld  have been an e l ig ib le  cand ida te  fo r  

en terpr i se  deve lopment .   I  have no t  seen anyth ing  in  the  e-

mai ls  and documents  tha t  I  rev iewed to  re f lec t  tha t  he  was 

a t  a l l  engaged in  en terpr i se  deve lopment  o r  empowerment  

purposes Cha i r,  and the  reason the  document  i s  d ra f ted  in  

th is  way is  because when compan ies  spend on enterp r ise  

deve lopment  they  are  en t i t led  to  c la im tha t  back.  

They get  po in ts  o r  scor ing  on  the i r  BEE sco re  card ,  

so  th is  looks l i ke  a  BEE loan templa te ,  bu t  as  I  ind ica ted  to  

Mr  Chaska lson,  Cha i r,  we have never  found any  s igned 10 

agreement .   We a lso  have ana lysed the  bank accounts  fo r  

a  number  o f  years  and we have not  found one  s ing le  

ind ica t ion  o f  a  repayment  o f  any loan by  Mr Kodwa f rom h is  

account  back to  Mr  McKay o r  TSS .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  can I  take  you  to  the  

payment  tha t  in  fac t  the  Commiss ion  found?  That  i s  four  

days a f te r  th i s  e -mai l  on  28  Apr i l ,  i t  i s  a t  page 311,  and can 

you desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  the  document  i s  tha t  you  

see on page 311?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Th i s  i s  the  bank  20 

s ta tement ,  i t  appears  to  be  a  bank s ta tement  o f  

Mr  NG Kodwa,  who I  unders tand is  ZZ Kodwa.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you go in to  the  cred i t  

co lumn,  wh ich  fo r  the  most  par t  i s  b lank,  can you descr ibe  

to  the  Cha i r  the  t ransact ion  on  the  28 t h  o f  Apr i l  2015?  
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MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   IFRS Conceptua l  

Framework  you go down about  f i ve  l ines  you w i l l  see  tha t  

there  i s  an  iBank payment  f rom Absa Bank and the  

nar ra t ion  Is  TSS,  i t  re fe rs  to  a se t t lement  and the  va lue  is  

R1 mi l l ion ,  Cha i r  and you w i l l  see  the  ba lance was R47 000  

and i t  pushes i t  up  to  R1 047 000.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  the  one tha t  has the  da te  o f  28  Apr i l  

2015?  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   I t  is  the  on ly  c red i t  amount  

on  the  s ta tement ,  so  i t  i s  in  the  co lumn on i t s  own.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  wr i t ten  ‘se t t lement ’ .   I s  i t  the  one 

wr i t ten  ‘se t t lemen t ’?  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  i t  i s  wr i t ten  ‘se t t lement ’ ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   I  see  tha t .  

MR POWELL:    Bu t  th is  seems to  be  a  t ransfe r  f rom TSS o f  

an  amount  o f  R1 mi l l ion  to  Mr  Kodwa’s  pr iva te  bank 

account .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then i f  we go down a  week o r  so  

to  page 314,  we are  s t i l l  i n  Mr  Kodwa’s  bank s ta tements ,  

bu t  can I  ask  you to  d raw the  Cha i r ’s  a t ten t ion  to  an  i tem 20 

on the  6th of May 2015 on tha t  page?  I t  i s  page 314.  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  you w i l l  no te  tha t  th is  i s  a  

fu r ther  s ta tement  o f  Mr  NG Kodwa’s  bank account  and on  

the  6 t h  o f  May there  is  an  in te rnet  immedia te  payment  

se t t lement ,  Absa Bank,  and the  na r ra t ion  there  is  ‘my car ’ .   
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Cha i r,  and i f  you  move across you w i l l  see  tha t  there  is  an  

amount  o f ,  on  the  r igh t  an  amount  o f  R890 000,  so  what  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  can see tha t .  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  what  th is  re f lec ts  i s  tha t  shor t l y  a f te r  

rece iv ing  the  R1  mi l l ion  f rom TSS,  Mr  McKay seems to 

have se t t led ,  purchased a  car  fo r  R890 000.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can I  then take  you to  

page 327?  10 

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you desc r ibe  to  the  

Cha i r  what  the  document  tha t  you see there  is?  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  a  Standard  Bank account  o f  

what  appears  to  be  Ta jar i  Motors  (P ty)  L td   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And before  you go fu r the r,  d id  

you invest iga te  who Ta jar i  Motors  are?  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  they  are  a  moto r  dea le rsh ip  tha t  

appears  to  have  been invo lved in  the  prov is ion  o f  the 

motorca r  fo r  Mr  Kodwa.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  I  can  take  you to  your  

t ime l ine ,  we are  go ing  to  be  look ing  a t  the  o ther  s ide  o f  the  

6  May 2015 t ransact ion  a t  280.   On your  t ime l ine  you have,  

Kodwa t ransfe rs  R890 000 f rom h is  account  to  Ta jar i  

Motors  (P ty)  L td ,  t rad ing  as  Jeep Sandton.  
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MR POWELL:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And w i l l  you  take  the  Cha i r  to  

where  one sees  the  rece ip t  by  Jeep Sandton o f  th is  

R890 000 f rom Mr  Kodwa?  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  we a re  back on  page 327 o f  the 

bund le  and you w i l l  see  the  second l ine  i tem on th is  Ta jar i  

Motors ’ cu r ren t  account ,  bus iness cur ren t  account  i s  a  rea l  

t ime t ransfe r  f rom Absa,  Mr  NG Kodwa,  and there  i t  re f lec ts  

to  the  en t ry  we spoke about  ear l ie r,  the  R890 000.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then  the  next  s tage  o f  the  10 

t ime l ine  tha t  I  want  to  d raw your  a t ten t ion  to  o r  tha t  I  

wou ld  ask  you to  comment  on  is  another  t ransact ion ,  th is  

t ime a t  page 308,  308.    

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  on  what  page?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    308,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    308.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you te l l  the  Cha i r  what  

we a re  look ing  a t ,  a t  308?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Th is  i s  another  ex t rac t  o f  

Mr  Kodwa’s  P la t inum Class i c  bank  s ta tement .  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you desc r ibe  to  the  

Cha i r  what  one sees in  the  cred i t  co lumn aga ins t  the  da te  

26  May 2015?  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   26  May 2015 the re  is  an  

NPF cred i t ,  EFT and then a  re fe rence number  w i th  var ious  
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le t te rs  and numbers ,  Cha i r,  J  McKay,  so  th i s  appears  to  be  

a  t ransfer  f rom Jean McKay to  Mr  Kodwa and i t  re f lec ts  an  

amount  o f  R80 000.   You w i l l  see  Cha i r,  i t  i s  the  on ly  c red i t  

on  tha t  account  on  th is  par t i cu la r  page o f  the  s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then a l though i t  i s  no t  on  your  

t ime l ine ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  to  add the  t ransact ion  tha t  you  

re fer red  the  Cha i r  to  a t  the  s ta r t  o f  p roceed ing  and fo r  tha t  

purpose can I  ask  you to  tu rn  to  page 298?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly.    10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And aga in  can you descr ibe  to  

the  Cha i r  what  th is  document  a t  298 is?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Th is  i s  another  ex t rac t  o f  

Mr  ZZ Kodwa or  NG Kodwa’s  P la t inum Class i c  bank  

s ta tement  and th is  i s  fo r  Ju l y  2015 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you take  the  Cha i r  to  

the  las t  en t ry  on  tha t  page and descr ibe  tha t  to  the  Cha i r?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  there  i s  an  en t ry  on  the  

las t  l ine  o f  the  page,  the  las t  l ine  o f  the  s ta tement ,  da ted 

10 Ju ly  2015.   Immedia te  t ransfe r  c red i t ,  F i rs t  Rand  20 

J  McKay and i t  i s  a lso  re fer red  to  as  a  se t t lement  and the  

amount  i s  R35 000 Cha i r,  and you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  we asked  

Cha i r  to  add R35 000 to  the  to ta l  o f  payments  by  Mr  McKay 

to  Mr  Kodwa.   Th is  i s  the  R35 000 tha t  we re fer red  to  

ear l ie r.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then i f  we can go l i te ra l l y  to  the  

next  page,  page 299,  and i t  i s  the  same bank s ta tement ,  

bu t  can I  ask  you to  desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  the  t ransact ion  

on  the  13th of July,  the  cred i t  t ransac t ion  on  the  13th of July?  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  these t ransact ions are  easy to  

ident i f y,  because  they usua l l y  happen to  be  the  on ly  c red i t  

on  the  s ta tement  be fore  you.   13  Ju ly,  th is  re f lec ts  an  NPF 

cred i t  and then i t  has  a  re ference number  wh ich  ends w i th  

a  /J  McKay and  the  amount  i s  re f lec ted  as  a  c red i t  o f  

R45 000,  Cha i r.   So th is  looks l i ke  anothe r  t ransfer  o f  10 

R45 000 by  Jean McKay to  Mr  Kodwa.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we  then go to  an  event  tha t  

happened the  ve ry  next  day and  can I  ask  you to  go  to  

page 328 and descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  you see the re?  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  ea r l ie r  in  my in t roduct ion  to  my 

exper ience I  h igh l igh ted  tha t  we wou ld  be  zooming in  on  

par t i cu la r  t ransact ions,  communica t ions and dates  and 

what  the  ev idence leader  i s  h igh l igh t ing  is  tha t  s t ra igh t  

a f te r  th is  depos i t ,  i f  we look a t  the  da te  14  Ju l y  2015 there  

is  an  e-mai l  f rom Jean McKay  to  ZZ Kodwa and the  20 

nar ra t ion  i s  as  fo l lows,  Cha i r.   I f  I  may,  I  w i l l  read in to  the  

record .  

“My brother,  I  hope you are good.   I f  i t  is 

possible,  p lease can you ask the Chair  to 

look into DHARFB1303/2014?” 
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Th is  i s  the  Depar tment  o f  Home Affa i rs  tender  tha t  I  

re fe r red  to  ear l ie r,  Cha i r.   The nar ra t ion  cont inues.  

“There are games being played.   In i t ia l ly we 

were number one,  then Andalani  and the 

Head of  Procurement decided to re-evaluate 

the bids and now i t  seems we are 

disqual i f ied.   The total  value is about  

360 mi l l ion.   A lso please do not  forget  to ta lk 

to the Regional  Funding Coord inator to 

understand what their  funding requi rements 10 

are.   Thanks,  my brother. ”  

Cha i r,  so  th is  looks l i ke  a  p lea ,  i t  i s  money depos i ted  and 

now there  is  a  p lea  fo r  he lp .   Th i s  was a  lucra t i ve  tender  

tha t  was go ing  to  be  awarded,  the  EOH has now 

d isqua l i f ied .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I ,  I  am go ing  to  poss ib l y  

take  us  ou t  o f  the  t ime l ine  a t  th is  po in t  jus t  to  t rack  what  

happened in  re la t ion  to  th is  tender  and fo r  tha t  purpose 

can I  ask  you to  go  to  the  very  next  page in  the  bund le ,  

page 329?  20 

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   I f  you  go to  329 in  the  

bund le  you w i l l  see  th is  i s  f rom Jean McKay,  i t  is  da ted  

2  November  2015 and i t  i s  sen t  to  ZZ Kodwa and the  

sub jec t  i s  ‘ fo rward  DHA'  and there  is  an  a t tachment ,  

JPPEC and a  PDF document  a t tached.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    What  do  you unders tand DHA to  be  an 

abbrev ia t ion  fo r?  

MR POWELL:    Depar tment  o f  Home Affa i rs ,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  

the  genera l  desc r ip t ion  fo r  Home A ffa i rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  and you w i l l  see  la te r  tha t  there  is  a  

document  regard ing  th is  wh ich  con f i rms i t  i s  Home Affa i rs .   

Jean McKay had  fo rwarded a  document  to  ZZ Kodwa tha t  

he  had rece ived ear l ie r  tha t  day f rom a  gent leman  by the 

name o f  Pet rus  Dawid  Jansen,  who  was an EOH employee,  10 

and the  da te  was 2  November,  06 :19 ,  so  th is  was a l l  

happen ing  qu i te  ear l y  in  the  morn ing  and i t  was a lso ,  i t  

was sent  to  S iph iwe Nodwele ,  who was an execut ive  a t  

EOH at  the  t ime and i t  was cop ied  to  Jean McKay and i t  i s  

Juan i ta  van der  Westhu izen a l so  a t  EOH,  and Juan i ta  says:  

“Good morning,  S iph iwe.   P lease f ind  

a t tached cance l la t ion  le t te r  fo r  RFP1303. ”  

The RFP is  a  request  fo r  submiss ion  fo r  a  p roposa l  o r  a  

tender,  Cha i r  and i f  you  tu rn  to  t he  very  next  page Cha i r,  

330 in  the  bund le ,  you w i l l  see  th is  i s  a  fo rmal  le t te r  f rom 20 

the  S ITA,  the  S ta te  In fo rmat ion  Techno logy Agency wh ich  

manages the  p rocurement  o f  these IT pro jec ts  and 

serv i ces ,  and i t  i s  wr i t ten  to  the  Account  Manager  a t  EOH,  

a t tent ion;  Patr ick Makubedu, and what i t  says is:  

“To whom i t  may concern,  cancel lat ion of  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 90 of 243 
 

RFB1303/2014 for  appointment  of  two 

separate service providers for the provincial  

of  P lat inum Access Service Solut ion for  

Government for a  per iod of  f ive years.   We 

regret  to inform you that  th is RFP (and the 

number) has been cancel led.   SITA would 

l ike to thank you for the interest  shown in 

th is RFP and regret  any inconvenience 

caused. ”  

Cha i r,  so  what  th is  means is  i f  you  look a t  the  chrono logy  10 

there  is  a  payment  to  Mr  Kodwa,  there  is  a  request  fo r  h is  

in te rvent ion ,  because EOH were  d isqua l i f ied  and now 

shor t l y  a f te r  we have cance l la t ion  o f  the  tender  and tha t  

means tha t  the  procurement  p rocess wou ld  s ta r t  a f resh and 

potent ia l l y  EOH wou ld  be  i l l eg ib le  to  compete  aga in .   They  

wou ld  have los t  ou t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then ask  you i f  we can 

sk ip  past  the  screen more ,  can we go to  page 281 ,  the  top  

o f  your  t ime l ine  a t  page 281 and the  document  tha t  

appears  a t  page 335 o f  the  bund le  and can you descr ibe  to  20 

the  Cha i r  what  tha t  document  i s?  

MR POWELL:    335?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    335.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  e-mai l  f rom Jean  McKay 

dated 23 Ju ly  2015,  a lso  addressed to  ZZ Kodwa and  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 91 of 243 
 

cop ied  on th is  i s  lungancwana@gmai l . com.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  Lunga Ncwana,  N-C-W-A-N-A.  

MR POWELL:    Thank you,  Cha i r.   That  i s  cor rec t .   Cha i r,  

remember  I  re fe r red  to  Mr  Lunga Ncwana ea r l ie r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ncwana.  

MR POWELL:    Ncwana,  thank  you.   Cha i r,  I  d id  t ry  

p rac t ice  some o f  these pronunc ia t ions.  

CHAIRPERSON:    R igh t .  

MR POWELL:    And we d id  some homework ,  jus t  to  

unders tand who  Lunga Ncwana  is  and we found he is  10 

l inked in  adverse  med ia .   He was a l leged ly,  the re  were  

c la ims in  the  med ia  tha t  were  used to  channe l  [ ind is t inc t ]  

money to  the  ANC,  he  is  purpor ted  to  be  a  c lose  o f  

Bathab i le  D lamin i ,  the  ex  Soc ia l  Serv i ces  Min is te r,  and he  

was imp l i ca ted  in  cor rup t ion  regard ing  SASSA p ro jec ts  

p rev ious l y  in  the  med ia .  

Cha i r,  I  am not  say ing  tha t  he  was conv ic ted ,  bu t  

there  was adverse  med ia  and he was a lso  a  f r iend  o f  Jean  

McKay and one o f  the  a t tendees a t  h is  wedd ing  and there  

was a l so  adverse  med ia  about  some luxury  accommodat ion  20 

tha t  Jean McKay prov ided fo r  Mr  Ncwana.   So I  jus t  wanted  

to  ment ion  tha t  name and h igh l igh t  tha t ,  the  l ink  the re ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POWELL:    And i f  we go back i n to  the  e -mai l  i t  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 92 of 243 
 

a t taches invo ices  and i t  looks  l i ke  there  is  a  number  o f  

invo i ces,  invo ice  1 ,  invo ice  2 ,  invo i ce  3 ,  invo ice  4 ,  

invo i ce  PDF,  wh ich  I  p resume is  invo i ce  1  and what  Jean 

McKay is  say ing  i n  the  nar ra t ion  is :  

“My brother,  p lease look at  th is.   People are 

using ANC let terheads,  but  changing the 

bank detai ls into individual  or company bank 

detai ls.   P lease can you look into this for 

me.  Thanks,  Jean.”  

And what  th is  re fe rs  to  i s  a  ser ies  o f  invo ices tha t  were  10 

sent  to  EOH and  they went  to  va r ious peop le  w i th in  EOH, 

Cha i r  and i f  I  can  tu rn  you to  page 338,  these  are  the  

documents  tha t  the  d i scuss ions seem to  re la te  to  and you 

w i l l  see  tha t  there  is  a  number  o f  A f r i can Nat iona l  

Congress,  Ne lson  Mande la  Reg ion ,  Reg iona l  Coord ina tor ’s  

Off i ce ,  addressed to  EOH Matambo and i f  we look a t  the 

da te  i t  i s  29  May 2015,  there  i s  an  amount  o f  R126 000 and  

the  bank deta i l s  a re  SANTACO.    

Cha i r,  SANTACO is  the  South  A f r i can Nat iona l  Tax i  

Assoc ia t ion .   So th is  appears  to  be  an  invo ice  fo r  tax i  20 

serv i ces  ra ther  t han jus t  an  invo i ce  f rom the  ANC.   They 

seem to  be  c la im ing fo r  expenses fo r  tax ies  and i f  you look 

a t  the  next  invo ice  on  page 339 i t  seems to  be  more  o f  the  

same se rv i ces  rendered,  th is  t ime R16 800 and th is  one 

has bank deta i l s  o f  Umfedo Serv i ces ,  U i tenhage and th is  
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seems to  be  what  Mr  McKay i s  compla in ing  about ,  you 

know these are  purpo r ted l y  coming f rom the  ANC,  the  

Nat iona l  Congress,  Ne lson Mande la  Reg ion ,  bu t  the  bank  

deta i l s  a re  a l l  se rv ice  prov iders .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Then the  las t  one tha t  you ment ioned is?  

MR POWELL:    Umfedo Serv i ces ,  U i tenhage.  

CHAIRPERSON:    U i tgenhage,  ja .  

MR POWELL:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A lso ,  these are  the  le t te rheads tha t  he  

was ta lk ing  about ,  say ing  some peop le  are  submi t t ing  10 

invo i ces on  the  le t te rheads o f  the  ANC.  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  w i th  d i f fe ren t  bank ing  deta i l s .  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR POWELL:    And the  next  one is  more  the  same,  the  

next  one is  the  bus iness zone on page 340.   I f  you  go to  

the  bo t tom o f  the  page you w i l l  see  the  bank ing  de ta i l s ,  i t  

a lso  says A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress,  Ne lson Mande la  

Reg ion ,  bank deta i l s  the  Bus iness  Zone.   The next  one is  20 

another  one fo r  Unkedo Serv ices ,  PE and R28 000.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And proceed ing  in  th is  

chrono logy,  bear ing  in  m ind tha t  the  Home Affa i rs  tender  

has no t  ye t  been  cance l led ,  we jumped ahead to  tha t ,  tha t  

was November,  can you take  the  Cha i r  to  the  very  next  
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page,  page 342,  and descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  tha t  you see  

there?  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  e-mai l  on  5  August  2015 

and I  jus t  emphas ise  what  the  ev idence leader  h igh l igh ted ,  

tha t  the  tender  has no t  been cance l led .  

MR POWELL:    Th is  i s  sent  by  Jean McKay to  ZZ Kodwa,  

the  sub jec t  i s  ‘ sponsorsh ip ’ and the  word ing ,  the  nar ra t ion  

is :  

“My brother,  addressed the let ter  to EOH 

Matambo (Pty) Ltd,  at tent ion Jean McKay,  10 

Execut ive Di rector ( then his e-mai l  address).   

I f  you need a draf t  let ter,  let  me know, but  I  

am sure he wi l l  be f ine wi th the content .   I t  

should simply state that  the movement 

humbly requests assistance in  the form of  

sponsorship of  R1 mi l l ion (whatever  the 

purpose),  someth ing l ike that ,  e i ther f rom 

the TG himsel f  or Jerry,  or  any other 

author i ty. ”  

Cha i r,  I  unders tand TG to  mean Treasurer  Genera l  o f  the  20 

ANC.   I  am not  su re  who the  Jer ry  i s ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  an  e-mai l  f rom? 

MR POWELL:    Jean McKay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    McKay.  

MR POWELL:    To  Kodwa.  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 95 of 243 
 

CHAIRPERSON:    Kodwa.  

MR POWELL:    ZZ Kodwa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And he says:  

“My brother,  addressed the let ter  to EOH 

Matambo (Pty) Ltd,  at tent ion. . . ”  

H imse l f ,  and then he says what  the  le t te r  shou ld  say,  i s  

tha t  r igh t?  

MR POWELL:    That  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  bu t  bas i ca l l y  he  is  ask ing  

Mr  Kodwa to  address the  mat te r  to  h imse l f  o r  t o  TG or  10 

Jer ry  o r  any o the r  au tho r i t y  to  ask  fo r  sponsorsh ip .  

MR POWELL:    Ja ,  he  is  suggest ing  ask  us  to  sponsor  you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then take  you to  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sure ,  I  am sure  many par t ies  wou ld  

l i ke  th is  k ind  o f . . .   Ask ,  jus t  say  p lease,  we have go t  money  

to  g ive  you,  ask  us  fo r  a  donat ion .  

MR POWELL:    Exact ly,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Whatever  the  pu rpose,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Whatever  the  pu rpose.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then ask  you to  go  to  

page 348?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   A t  page 348 in  the  bund le  

th is  i s  a  S tandard  Bank South  A f r i ca  customer  o r  payments  
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f ina l  aud i t  repor t  and you w i l l  see  Cha i r,  tha t  th is  re fe rs  to  

s ta tement  re fe rence EOH Matambo,  account  name the  

E lec t ions Agency,  amount  R1 mi l l ion .   So the  R1  mi l l ion 

tha t  we re fe r red  to  a  moment  ago,  Cha i r,  i t  seems to  have  

ended up w i th  a  request  to  pay to  the  E lec t ions  Agency.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you go up to  page 346,  

can you descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  you see there?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  a t  346 I  w i l l  s ta r t  w i th  the  

f ina l  e -mai l  in  the  th read and then we w i l l  work  back,  

Cha i r,  bu t  a t  the  top  o f  tha t  page you w i l l  see  tha t  there  i s  10 

an  e-mai l  f rom Jean McKay dated 12 August  2015,  to  

ZZ Kodwa,  sub jec t  E lec t ions Bank le t te r,  conf i rmat ion  

le t te r,  a t tachments  and then i t  has  go t  a  number  

ATT000001HDM and then i t  says  PoP E lec t ion  Agency.    

Cha i r,  the  PoP is  p roo f  o f  payment ,  i t  I  the  acronym 

for  p roo f  o f  payment ,  and then the re  is  an  a t tachment  o f  a  

PDF and th is  was fo rwarded,  Jean McKay fo rwarded the  

proof  o f  payment  tha t  he  had rece ived ea r l ie r  tha t  day f rom 

Renè Jonker,  you w i l l  remember  tha t  name f rom my las t  

tes t imony,  she was a  F inanc ia l  Manager  work ing  w i th  Jean 20 

McKay a t  EOH at  the  t ime,  and tha t  fo l lowed  ear l ie r  

cor respondence where  Jean McKay sent  to  Shazay Gordon 

and cop ied  Renè Jonker  E lec t ions Bank le t te r,  conf i rmat ion  

le t te r,  and Jean  had asked p lease send me p roof  o f  

payment  once i t  i s  done,  and preced ing  tha t  was 
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communica t ions  w i th  Abant le  Pakenyane,  Execut ive  

D i rec tor  o f  the  E lec t ions Agency and Shazay had requested 

c lea r ly,  th is  was dear  Shazay:  

“Herewi th  bank  le t te r  conf i rm ing our  

bank ing  deta i l s .   K ind  regards,  and 

apo log ies  fo r  the  de lay. ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And tha t  p roo f  o f  payment  o f  

R1 mi l l ion  i s  wha t  i s  fo rwarded by  McKay to  Kodwa on the  

12th of August a t  the  top  e-mai l .  

MR POWELL:    That  i s  exact l y  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   So I  s ta r ted  10 

w i th  p roof  o f  payment  o f  the  R1 mi l l ion  tha t  went  to  

Mr  McKay and then we jus t  went  th rough the  ac t ions 

preced ing  i t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The nex t  i tem on your  t ime l ine  is  

da ted  9  September.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  we are  a t  13 :00 ,  Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Sor ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you want  t o  do  tha t  las t  one or  do  

you . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  no t  d i rec t l y  re la ted  to  what  20 

we have jus t  been d iscuss ing ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Le t  us  take  the  lunch 

ad journment  and we w i l l  resume a t  14 :00 .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

MR POWELL:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  
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INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES:  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  had s tood down the  mat te r  re la t ing  to  

Ms Myen i  to  two o ’c lock .   I  unders tand tha t  she is  ava i lab le  

on l ine  or  v ia  v ideo l ink ,  bu t  I  wou ld  l i ke  us  –  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

f in ish  w i th  Mr  Powel l ’s  ev idence wh ich  I  unders tand  shou ld  

no t  take  beyond an hour  and thereaf te r  I  w i l l  then dea l  w i th  

Ms Myen i ’s  mat te r.   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  cont inue.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Mr  Powel l ,  the  next  i tem in  the  

t ime l ine  is  a  document  on  page 350 o f  the  Bund le ,  3 -5-0 .  

Can you descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  wha t  tha t  document  i s?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   3 -5-0 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   3-5-0  I  th ink ,  Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  i s  Annexure  14 . ,  SP 14.1 .  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  award  l e t te r  f rom the  

Prov ince o f  the  Eastern  Cape Depar tment  o f  Educat ion ,  20 

and i t  i s  cont rac t  number  SCMU6-15/16-0001.   S tandard  

b idd ing  document  fo r  –  sor ry,  I  sa id  i t  was an award  le t te r,  

i t  i s  no t .  

I t  i s  a  b idd ing  document ,  Cha i r  fo r  in tegra ted  

document  management  and human resource  records,  
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res tora t ion  pro jec t  i ssued by  the  Prov ince  o f  the 

Easte rn  Cape depar tment  o f  educat ion .   And the  c los ing  

da te  fo r  th is  i s  24  August  2015.  

And suppor t ing  th is  i s  a  who le  se r ies  o f  documents  

tha t  need to  be  comple ted  by  the  b idder,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then can we go to  page 300 and 

can you descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  the  document  tha t  you  see a t  

page 300.  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  ex t rac t  o f  the  

Mr  NG Kodwa –  Z iz i  Kodwa’s  p la t inum c lass ic  bank  10 

s ta tement .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you go down to  

22  September,  can you descr ibe  a  c red i t  en t ry  on  tha t  

da te?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   On 22 September  there  is  

an  NPF cred i t  w i th  re fe rence number  EFT and then a  lo t  o f  

numbers  and numera ls ,  end ing  w i th  /NG Kodwa JM.   Cha i r,  

I  p resume why I  unders tand the  JM to  mean Jehan  Mackay 

and there  is  a  t ransfe r  o f  R250 thousand to  the  account  o f  

Mr  Kodwa.  20 

And Cha i r  you w i l l  see  i f  you  look jus t  above tha t  

l ine ,  you w i l l  see  tha t  the  bank account  ba lance was  a lmost  

dep le ted .   The amount  le f t  in  tha t  account  was R1,018.40.   

And a f te r  the  depos i t  i t  goes up to  the  R250 thousand and 

16.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  th ink  you missed a  w i thdrawal  

o f  R1 thousand in  be tween.  

MR POWELL:    Sor ry,  yes  there  i s  a  w i thdrawal  jus t  be fore  

tha t .   So,  i t  goes up by  the  R250 thousand.   So the  

thousand tha t  was in  there ,  was  dep le ted .   In  fac t ,  the 

ba lance,  Cha i r,  Mr  Chaska lson is  qu i te  r igh t .   The  ba lance 

was R18.44.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [A ff i rms]  

MR POWELL:    And then there  was an in jec t ion  o f  

R250 thousand f rom Mr  Mackay.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Mhm.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  then ask  you –  keep ing  

w i th  the  ch rono logy,  to  go  to  page 413.   And can you 

desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  you see on page 413?   Maybe 

tak ing  the  emai l  cha in  f rom the  ear l ies t  emai l  to  the  las t  

emai l .  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   There  is  an  emai l  f rom a  

Mangez i  Deya la  and beneath  h is  name on the  ema i l ,  Cha i r  

i t  re f lec ts  ANC Prov inc ia l  Of f i ce  o f  the  Easte rn  Cape o f f i ce  

manager,  and then contac t  numbers  and emai l  addresses  20 

fo r  ANC Eastern  Cape.   And i t  says ,  i t  i s  addressed to  –  

the  nar ra t ion  is :  

“H i  CDE…” 

I  unders tand tha t  to  mean comrade .  

“Comrade Magh lau l i .   K ind ly  rece ive  the  
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quota t ion  fo r  the  PGC accommodat ion  f rom 

CDE comrade Marawhu. ”  

And tha t  then  is  fo rwarded  f rom Mzwane Mdoda,  

Theopo l is  Magh lau l i…”  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mzwa Mdoda.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  and I  thought  I  had got ten  c lose  to  

i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  no  –  no ,  i t  is  jus t  tha t  i t  sounds l i ke  

somebody e l se ,  no t  th is  name.  

MR POWELL:    Thank you,  Cha i r  and I  thought  10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  you t ry  your  best .   Mzwa Mdoda.  

MR POWELL:    Mzwa Mdoda.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja  –  ja ,  you d id  i t .  

MR POWELL:    I  th ink  I  wou ld  ca l l  h im Mzee i f  he  was  

here ,  Cha i r.   And i t  i s  addressed to  Dumisan i  Mafu ,  

Mazzo la .na to57@gmai l ,  as  we l l  as  Thand i  Kopo lo .   

Thand i  Kopo lo  was a  fo rmer  execut ive  a t  EOH.   She is  a lso  

one o f  the  ind iv idua ls  tha t  le f t  the  company,  Cha i r.  

And i t  i s  a lso  fo rwarded to  Bu lumko Lube lwana and 20 

i t  i s  a  ELCB.co.za .   Cha i r,  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  I  re fe r red  to  

ELCB when I  spoke about  a  consor t ium tha t  was  b idd ing  

fo r  the  Eastern  Cape tender  work  and ELCB was one o f  the  

consor t ium par tners ,  Cha i r.   And th is  re f lec ts :  

“Dear  a l l ,  as  per  ANC Treasury  o f f i ce  

mailto:Mazzola.nato57@gmail
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humble  request ,  the  be low quote  i s  the  

la tes t  account  a l loca ted  to  us  fo r  purposes  

o f  se t t lement  on  or  be fo re  10 :00 tomorrow 

1st  October,  bu t  d iscuss ions a re  tak ing  

p lace so  as  to  a t  leas t  se t t le  ha l f  th is  

amount  be fore  t he  above dead l ine  and  

se t t le  the  …”  

I t  says  reminder,  i t  shou ld  be  rema inder.  

“…remainder  be fore  de legates ’ a r r i va l  a t  

13 :00  o f  the  same date ,  i .e .  tomorrow 10 

1 s t  October. ”  

Cha i r,  th is  le t te r  o r  th is  emai l ,  wh ich  was fo rwarded ends  

up be ing  sent  by  Thand i  Kopo lo ,  i t  i s  fo rwarded aga in  and  

he wr i tes  to  Jehan Mackay fo rward  w i th  header,  sub jec t  

quota t ions and the  wr i t ing  on  th is  –  the  nar ra t ion  is :  

“E ish  my b ro ther,  I  cannot  seem to  shrug  

these guys o f f .   They a re  us ing  our  recent  

submiss ion  to  a rm wrest le  w i th  us ,  R700K  

fo r  accommodat ion  a t  the  PGC.   Can LN o r  

MX do someth ing?  I  see tha t  ou r  20 

es teemed par tne rs ,  ELCB are  a lso  cop ied . ”  

That  i s  the  consor t ium par tner  I  re fe r red  to  a  moment  ago,  

Cha i r.   Th i s  then gets  sent   by  Thand i  Kopo lo  on  

30 September  to  Jehan Mackay and i f  you look a t  the  top  

o f  th is  page 413,  Cha i r  Jehan Mackay then takes th is  on  
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30  September  –  same day a t  11 :09 ,  he  sends i t  to  

Z i z i  Kodwa wi th  he  same sub jec t  header,  quota t ions and 

the  scans a t tached,  and h i s  quest i on  to  Z i z i  Kodwa is :  

“My bro the r,  do  you know about  th i s?   Your  

thoughts?”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then can I  ask  you to  go  

down to  415 where  the  a t tached quota t ion  is .  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  and i f  you  look a t  the  document  

a t tached,  you w i l l  see  tha t  th is  seems to  be  invo i ces f rom 

Imakaya Bed and  Breakfas t  CC.   Quota t ion  fo r  10 

accommodat ion ,  ANC is  the  header.  

“A t ten t ion  Ms Pumza,  accommodat ion  fo r  

626 peop le  shar ing  a t  R375 per  person  

bed and breakfas t  fo r  2  May. ”  

Sor ry,  25  October  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    25 ,  Ja  –  Mhm.  

MR POWELL:    And the  to ta l  i s  R704,250,  Cha i r  and then 

there  is  a  l i s t  o f  guest  houses and B  and B ’s  –  bed and 

breakfas ts  wh ich  appear  to  have been used  fo r  the  

accommodat ion  and then the re  is  a  l i s t  o f  a l l  the  d i f fe ren t  20 

Imakaya,  Assante ,  Amagk lè ,  S imban i  and d i f fe ren t  names 

wh ich  appear  to  be  d i f fe ren t  res idences o r  lodges.  

 And each t ime they re fer  to  the  vo lume o f  beds 

mak ing  up the  626 peop le ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then over  the  page on 417,  can  
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you  descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  you see there?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   On 417 what  we have  

here  is  anothe r  fo rwarded emai l  f rom Mangez i  Deya la ,  ANC 

Prov inc ia l  Of f i ce  o f  the  Eastern  Cape.   He is  send ing  th is  

to  comrade Magh lau l i :  

“K ind ly  rece ive  the  quota t ion  fo r  the  PGC accommodat ion  

f rom comrade Marawhu.  Regards ”  

And then:  

“Dear  a l l ,  as  per  ANC Treasury  o f f i ce  

humble  request ,  the  be low quote  i s  the  10 

la tes t  account  a l loca ted  to  us fo r  purposes  

o f  se t t lement  on  or  be fo re  10 :00 tomorrow 

1  October,  bu t  d iscuss ions a re  tak ing  

p lace so  a t  leas t  to  se t t le  ha l f  th is  

amount…”  

And tha t  then is  fo rwarded f rom Mzwa Mdoda,  

Theopo l is  Magh lau l i  to  Dumisan i  Mafu  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    You got  i t  r igh t  th is  t ime,  Mr  Powel l .  

MR POWELL:    Try  dodgy.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  20 

MR POWELL:    And tha t  ends  up be ing  sent  to  

Jehan Mackay who then sends i t  on  1  October  to  

Z i z i  Kodwa,  fo rwarded quota t ions and a  scanned pdf  

a t tached and i t  i s  jus t  a  doub le  ??  to  Z iz i  Kodwa,  Cha i r.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you dea l  w i th  the  –  no ,  
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sor ry.   Le t  me ask the  quest ion .   Do you know what  

happened in  re la t ion  to  th is  request  fo r  pay ing  

accommodat ion  expenses?  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  jus t  one moment .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Maybe  i f  I  can  take  you to  

page 284 o f  the  Bund le  wh ich  is  paragraph 19 o f  your  

a f f idav i t ,  Cha i r.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  these requests  a l l  seem to  ar ise  w i th  

the  ANC in  the  Easte rn  Cape request  to  EOH three  weeks 

a f te r  EOH had  submi t ted  a  b id  to  the  Eastern  Cape  10 

Prov inc ia l  Government  fo r  tha t  depar tment  o f  educat ion  

tender  tha t  we re fer red  to  ear l i e r.  

 The requests  were  fo rwarded both  to  EOH and the  

b id  pa r tne r,  ELCB tha t  I  re fe r red  to  ear l ie r.   These requests  

fo r  payments  were  a l l  wh i le  the  tender  was  be ing  

ad jud ica ted  and they were  c lear l y  –  the  impress ion  f rom 

Mackey ’s  emai l  tha t  they are  t ry ing  to  a rm wrest le  and I  

th ink  Thand i  Kopo lo  re fer  to  the  a rm wrest le .  

So,  Mackey c lear ly  thought  tha t  the  tender  ou tcome 

was go ing  to  be  a f fec ted  by  whatever  they d id  w i th  these 20 

expenses so ,  he  then sought  Kodwa’s  adv ice  on  whethe r  

he  shou ld  pay the  ANC donat ions in to  the  spec i f ied  

accounts  and those we showed Cha i r  ear l ie r.  

Those were  tax i  assoc ia t ion  bank  account  numbers  

tha t  were  inse r ted  on  the  ANC invo ice  and he a lso  
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fo rwarded th i s  compla in t  tha t  they are  us ing  ou r  recent  

submiss ion  to  a rm wrest le  w i th  us .   The R217 mi l l ion  

tender  was u l t imate ly  awarded to  the  EOH consor t ium on 

30 March 2016.  

But  on l y  a f te r  they had donated R1 mi l l ion  to  the  

Easte rn  Cape ANC on 6  November  2015 a f te r  rece iv ing  an  

o f f i c ia l  request  to  do  so ,  Cha i r.   So,  i t  looks  l i ke  EOH d id  

succumb to  the  pressure  to  make these donat ions and,  

Cha i r  you w i l l  remember  tha t  I  d id  h igh l igh t  to  Cha i r  tha t  

the  award  to  the  consor t ium was R217,  EOH were  a  10 

40 percent  par tne r  in  tha t .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can I  take  you to  –  ask  you to  

go  to  page 430 and descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  you see  

there .  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  FNB document .   I ts  header  

i s  v iew payment  and i t  says ,  own  account  

Tact ica l  Sof tware  Systems.   Your  rec ip ien t  de ta i l s ,  

rec ip ien t :  ANC fund ra is ing  account  and there  is  a  number  

there ,  52640046639.  

The re fe rence TSS,  Cha i r  and tha t  seems to  t ie  is  20 

w i th  Tact ica l  Sof tware  So lu t ions .   Amount  payment  adv ice ,  

R1 mi l l ion .   So,  tha t  seems to  be  the  proof  o f  payment  o f  

the  R1 mi l l ion  tha t  we spoke about  ear l ie r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you ment ioned a lso  the  

request  f rom the  prov inc ia l  ANC,  can you go  up to  
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page 427 . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  i f  you  are  ab le  to  te l l  me,  

Mr  Powel l  in  te rms o f  t imef rame how soon does th is  

amount  o f  R1 mi l l ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    6  November  2015,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A f te r  the  t ra i l  o f  th rowing emai ls  about  

be ing  arm wrest led  or  whatever.  

MR POWELL:    Exact ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    How c lose soon  a f te r  does the  payment  

happen,  the  depos i t  o r  t ransfe r?   I s  i t  the  m idd le  o f  the 10 

week,  two weeks? 

MR POWELL:    I t  i s  a  quest ion  o f  weeks,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   Thank  you.  

MR POWELL:    So  shor t l y  a f te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Maybe  in  te rms o f  tha t  

chrono logy I  shou ld  have taken you f i rs t  to  page 427 wh ich  

is  the  request .   Can you go to  tha t  page? 

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   A t  page 427 there  is  an  

ANC document ,  A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress prov ince o f  the  20 

Easte rn  Cape,  Prov inc ia l  secre tary ’s  o f f i ce  and i t  has  an  

address in  K ing  Wi l l iamstown and i t  i s  da ted  

5  October  2015.  

And i t  i s  addressed to  the  manager,  

EOH Mthombo L im i ted  and the  header  i s ,  request  fo r  
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donat ion .   And,  Cha i r  le t  me read the  nar ra t ion :  

“Accept  my warm greet ings  to  your  

p ro found o f f i ce .   Th is  communiqué serves  

to  request  your  o f f i ce  to  ass is t  

A f r i can Nat iona l  Congress w i th  a  donat ion .   

The organ isa t ion  was hav ing  a  P rov inc ia l  

genera l  counc i l  wh ich  cost  the  ANC a huge  

amount  as  we were  t ranspor t ing ,  ca ter ing  

and accommodat ing  1 ,800 de legates .   I f  

a f fec ted  your  cash f low fo r  the  next  coming  10 

months .   You donat ion  w i l l  ass i s t  the  

organ isa t ion  in  th is  regard .   We hope ou r  

request  w i l l  rece ive  your  favourab le  

cons idera t ion . ”  

And then the  organ isa t ion  bank ing  deta i l s  a re  as  fo l lows:  

Name:  ANC Fund Ra is ing  account ,  FNB bank,  account  

number  and a  branch code.   And tha t  comes  f rom 

Mr  M Deya la ,  ANC Prov inc ia l  o f f i ce  manager.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And the  da te  on  tha t  document ,  

you ment ioned was 5  October  2015.   Jus t  in  re la t ion  to  the 20 

Cha i r ’s  quest ion  do  you reca l l  the  da te  on  the  las t  emai l  

fo rwarded f rom Mr Mackey to  Mr  Kodwa?  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  le t  me jus t  have a  look.   What  was 

the  re ference?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    417.  
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MR POWELL:    417.   Cha i r,  i t  was  four  days.   I  jus t  wanted 

to  ge t  the  exact  number  o f  days r igh t  and i t  was exact ly  

four  days ea r l ie r,  Cha i r.   The 1s t  o f  October.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Ja .   In  fac t ,  i f  I  can  –  I  may have  

re fer red  you to  the  wrong page because I  th ink  the  las t ,  

there  was a  –  l e t  me jus t  check tha t  I  have the  r i gh t  one.   

No,  no ,  I  s tand cor rec ted .   You are  abso lu te l y  r igh t ,  sor ry.  

MR POWELL:    Thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then f rom 5  October,  i f  we go 

back to  the  chrono logy,  can I  ask  you to  go  to  an  invo i ce  10 

tha t  appears  in  the  Supp lementary  Bund le  a t  424.18.  

MR POWELL:    So ,  18  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    So ,  i t  i s  page 18  o f  the 

documents  tha t  were  handed up th i s  morn ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r,  i t  i s  the  second las t  

document  in  tha t  Bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh okay,  thank you.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And we  w i l l  ge t  to  desc r ibe  the  

s ta tus  o f  th is  document  and the  au thent ic i t y  o f  i t s  da te  and 20 

issues l i ke  tha t  a t  a  la te r  s tage.   Fo r  now,  I  want  you 

mere ly  to  descr ibe  the  i tem a t  tha t  re la tes  to  15  and  

16 October.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wi l l  tha t  be  424.12 in  te rms  o f  the 

pag ina t ion  we d id  th is  morn ing?  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    424.18,  1 -8 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   I  th ink  those are  the  ones 

wh ich  I  d id  no t  cover  bu t  I  shou ld  be  ab le  to   . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I t  w i l l  a lso  have the  Annexure  

number  15 .7  on  i t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  I  have go t  tha t  ja .   So,  o therw ise  

424.18.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  invo ice  f rom an ent i t y  10 

ca l led  Inn  Res idence by  Peter  Brandyon P ty  L td  and i t  i s  

addressed to  C l ipper  F inanc ia l  Serv i ces  P ty  L td  and i t  

seems to  re f lec t  accommodat ion  a t  var ious guest  houses in  

the  Weste rn  Cape ,  Cha i r.  

 And i f  we look a t  the  documents ,  you w i l l  see  tha t  

Mr  Chaska lson has asked me to  zoom in  on  the  October  

accommodat ion  tha t  i s  in  the  m idd le  o f  the  document ,  and  

you w i l l  see  tha t  there  was a  payment  o f  R50 thousand per  

n igh t .  

So,  R50 thousand t imes th ree ,  R150 thousand fo r  20 

accommodat ion  a t  53  Avenues Fra is ,  53  Avenue Frany,  

ren ta l  29  October  2015 to  31  October  2015.   And above  

tha t  i s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Powel .  

MR POWELL:    Sor ry.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Have you moved away f rom 424 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POWELL:    Sor ry,  I  shou ld  have re fer red  to  one ear l ie r.   

Mr  Chaska lson,  I  th ink  you were  re fer r ing  to  15  October.  

CHAIRPERSON:    We s tar ted  on  the  invo i ce  f rom 

Inn  Res idence and you sa id  you were  go ing  to  focus on   

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POWELL:    Ja ,  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    The t ransac t ions in  October  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

MR POWELL:    The October  t ransact ions  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  on ly  two in  October,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR POWELL:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.  

MR POWELL:    So ,  the  f i rs t  one to  look  a t ,  Cha i r  i s  the  

5  Net t le ton  ren ta l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR POWELL:    15  October  2015 to  16  October  2015,  tha t  

i s  two n igh ts  a t  R50 thousand each .   Cha i r,  Net t le ton  Road  20 

is  one o f  the  most  exc lus i ve  addresses in  South  A f r i ca .   I t  

i s  a t  the  very  top  o f  C l i f ton  w i th  the  most  magn i f i cen t  v iews  

o f  the  ocean.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm.  

MR POWELL:    And the  pr ice  seems to  re f lec t  tha t  because 
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i t  i s  R50 thousand per  n igh t .   So there  is  a  R100 thousand 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    For  two n igh ts .  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  we w i l l  exp la in  the  res t  o f  the 

document  because a l l  o f  these a re  var ious 

accommodat ions tha t  were  pa id  fo r  and you w i l l  see  f rom 

documents  tha t  we are  go ing  to  re fer  to  in  a  moment  tha t  

th is  appears  to  be  on  beha l f  o f  Mr  Kodwa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    In  fac t ,  we do not  need to  leave  10 

tha t  document  jus t  ye t  because i f  you go to  the  top  o f  the 

document ,  there  are  two issues tha t  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

emphas ise  fo r  la te r  re fe rence.  

MR POWELL:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The f i rs t  i s  the  invo ice  number  

and the  second is  the  re ference.  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t .   Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r  you w i l l  see  the  

invo i ce  number  i s  invo ice  00000076,  re fe rence  

Mr  Z Kodwa,  da te  25-01-2016,  due date  31  January  2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay so ,  tha t  was about  f i ve 20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  s ix  n igh ts .  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  le t  us  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    No –  no ,  I  am sor ry.   I  was  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POWELL:    I  th ink  i t  m igh t  be  usefu l  to  jus t  go  th rough  

the  who le  l i s t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR POWELL:    Because these a re  a l l  accommodat ions and 

I  th ink  i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  Cha i r  to  fo l low.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  yes .  

MR POWELL:    The va lue  o f  th is  luxury  accommodat ion  

tha t  was prov ided  to Mr  Kodwa.   I t  s ta r ts  o f f  a t  the  top  w i th  

Barbados ren ta l  and Barbados,  Cha i r  we looked.   The v i l la  10 

o f  Barbados in  Camps Bay i t  i s  a  luxury  guest  house,  Cha i r  

o r  v i l la  tha t  you ren t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mhm.  

MR POWELL:    And tha t  was ren ted  f rom 23 December  to  

5  January  2016.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Mhm.  

MR POWELL:    23  December2015  to  5  January  2016,  and  

the  pr ice  fo r  tha t  was R230 thousand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [A ff i rms] .  

MR POWELL:    And then the  next  one i s  the  Net t le ton  20 

ren ta l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And tha t  wou ld  work  ou t  to  about  how 

much pe r  n igh t?   A re  you -  were  you ab le  to  make tha t  ou t?  

MR POWELL:    I t  i s  jus t  under  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  l i ke  what  –  tha t  i s  c lose  to  i s  i t  
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12  days,  o r.  

MR POWELL:    Ja .   I t  seems to  be  two weeks,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  two weeks,  ja .  

MR POWELL:    Say 14  days so ,  i t  i s  about  R17 thousand  

rough ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   Wel l ,  I  rea l i se  I  th ink  a l l  your  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  a re  lawyers ,  there  is  no  account ing  so ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  as tu te  observa t ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Le t  us  cont inue.  

MR POWELL:    The next  one is  the  Net t le ton  /  C l i f ton  10 

address w i th  15  and 16 October  2015 fo r  R50 thousand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [A ff i rms] .  

MR POWELL:    And Cha i r  you  w i l l  see  tha t  th is  

accommodat ion  inc luded a  pr iva te  chef  fo r  one n igh t  a t  

R3 350 and then  there  is  the  another  ren ta l  in  October,  

Avenue Frany.   Frany is  a lso  an  exc lus ive  par t  o f  the 

Weste rn  Cape A t lan t ic  seaboard ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [A ff i rms] .  

MR POWELL:    And you can see tha t  th is  i s  a lso  s im i la r ly  

expens ive ,   Three n igh t  R50 thousand per  n igh t  so ,  20 

R150 thousand.   And the re  i s  a lso  a  p r iva te  chef  bu t  th is  

t ime the  pr iva te  chef  cos t  i s  R11 150,  Cha i r.   And then 

there  is  another  ren ta l  o f  the  Net t le ton  Road proper ty.  

5  Net t le ton  Road,  7  November  2015 to  

9  November  2015  a lso  a t  R50 thousand per  n igh t ,  another  
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R150 thousand.   And then there  is  a  cost  fo r  a  p r i va te  chef  

f rom 7  to  9  November,  R11,700.   A l togethe r  th is  comes to  

R656,200,  Cha i r  and the  re ference is  tha t  th is  was  

re ferenced to  Z i z i  Kodwa and we w i l l  look  a t  fu r the r  emai ls  

regard ing  the  l ink  back to  Mr  Kodwa.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Be fore  we get  to  those  emai ls ,  

we have now dea l t  in  the  chrono logy w i th  –  we l l ,  a l l  o f  

these i tems are  on  the  invo ice ,  bu t  on  the  chrono logy what  

i s  re levant  fo r  p resent  pu rposes is  15  and 16  October  

luxu ry  accommodat ion ,  29  October  luxury  accommodat ion .  10 

 Can we f i rs t  go  to  page 319 to  see what  e lse  

happened –  319 o f  the  Main  Bund le ,  what  e l se  happened  

on 29 October,  Cha i r.   And can you descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  

what  you see there?  

MR POWELL:    319,  Cha i r  i s  another  ex t rac t  o f  the  

p la t inum c lass ic  bank account  be long ing  to  Mr  NG Kodwa –  

Z i z i  Kodwa and th is  i s  fo r  the  per iod  o f  October  2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  sa id  29 ,  in  fac t  i t  re f lec ts  on  

the  30 t h  here .   Can you take  the  Cha i r  to  i t .  

MR POWELL:    Yes,  cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  I  was go ing  to  d raw 20 

your  a t ten t ion  to  the  t ransact ion  on  the  30 t h  o f  

October  2015.   There  is  an  ACB cred i t  re fe renced  

J  Mackey,  tha t  appears  to  be  Jehan Mackey R50 thousand 

cred i ted  to  Mr  Kodwa’s  account .  

So,  i t  i s  a  t ransfer  o f  R50 thousand on the  30 t h  o f  
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October  and Mr  Chaska lson h igh l igh ted  the  da tes  o f  the 

luxu ry  accommodat ion  a  moment  ago,  Cha i r.   You w i l l  see  

tha t  i t  i s  very  c lose  to  those t imes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Bu t  th is  was a  very  busy t ime 

because we have a l ready seen another  document  da ted  

29 October.   Can I  ask  you to  go  back to  page 330 and jus t  

re f resh our  memory  as  to  what  tha t  document  was.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You say 330?  

MR POWELL:    330.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    3 -3-0 ,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  a  document  we looked a t  

ear l ie r,  bu t  the  da tes  becomes s ign i f i can t  because th is  i s  

the  cance l la t ion  o f  the  appo in tment  o f  two separa te  se rv i ce  

prov iders  fo r  the  prov is ion  o f  p la t inum access  serv ice  

so lu t ion  fo r  Government  fo r  a  per iod  o f  f i ve  years .  

And th is  appears  to  be  the  EOH tender  tha t  was  

cance l led .   Cha i r,  you w i l l  reca l l  I  d rew Cha i r ’s  a t ten t ion  to  

the  emai l  f rom |Mr  Mackey to  Mr  Kodwa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja .  20 

MR POWELL:    Where  he  exp la ins  th is  tender  was  go ing  

aga ins t  us .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR POWELL:    They have dec ided  to  d isqua l i f y  EOH.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  remember  tha t  and the  da te  tha t  
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th is  –  the  da te  tha t  th is  le t te r  o f  cance l la t ion  o f  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POWELL:    I t  i s  da ted  29 October  2015 . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  October  2015.  

MR POWELL:    |The date  i s  a t  the  bo t tom o f  the  page,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  and tha t  i s  the  da te  when he is  l i v ing  

in  one o f  those apar tments .  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    There  tha t  you a re  ta lk ing  about .  10 

MR POWELL:    And I  th ink  what  makes the  p ic tu re  look  

even more  s in i s te r,  Cha i r  i s  tha t  i t  i s  a  day a f te r  th is  le t te r  

i s  fo rwarded.   So,  a t  29  October  you have the  cance l la t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes?  

MR POWELL:    30  October  he  is  en joy ing  –  and 29 October  

he  is  en joy ing  the  luxury  accommodat ion  and there  is  a  

l i t t le  depos i t  in to  h is  account .  

CHAIRPERSON:    O f  R50 thousand.  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  20 

MR POWELL:    And aga in ,  i f  I  can  a lso  jus t  comment ,  

Cha i r  h is  ba lance was reduced to  R8 thousand jus t  be fore  

the  R50 thousand comes in .   So,  very  conven ien t  and 

t ime ly  cap i ta l  in jec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we  then go a  few days la te r  

to  the  4 t h  o f  November  and to  page 322.   In  fac t ,  i f  we can  

s tar t  on  321.  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And i f  you can descr ibe  to  the  

Cha i r  what  you see there .  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   So,  what  we seen,  Cha i r  

and th is  i s  impor tan t  to  d raw to  Cha i r ’s  a t ten t ion ,  i s  there  

is  a  ser ies  o f  t ransact ion  happen ing  a l l  a round th i s  t ime.   

We have now spoken about  the  accommodat ion ,  the  10 

cance l la t ion ,  the  cap i ta l  in jec t ion .  

Now i f  I  can  draw Cha i r ’s  a t ten t ion  to  th is  ex t rac t  

f rom the  November  bank s ta tement  o f  Mr  Kodwa,  you w i l l  

see  jus t  be low the  m idd le  o f  tha t  page,  Cha i r  on  411 there  

is  an  in te rnet  bank ing  payment  f rom Absa Bank  w i th  a 

re ference TSS,  Cha i r.  

And I  submi t  tha t  TSS is  Tact ica l  Sof tware  So lu t ions  

and tha t  i s  R50 thousand and Cha i r  I  am go ing  to  d raw 

your  a t ten t ion  to  the  ba lance jus t  be fo re  th is  cap i ta l  

in jec t ion ,  i t  was R1,574 in  a r rears .   That  was in  the  red ,  20 

Cha i r,  in  de f ic i t .   And then i f  we can fo l low the  ch rono logy 

o f  events  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Sor ry,  jus t  hang  on one second.   There  

was a  R50 thousand depos i t  o r  t ransfer  on  the  30 t h  o f  

October.  
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MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then the re  is  a  R50 thousand 

t ransfer  on  the  4 t h  –  the  fo l low ing  month .   Wel l  ac tua l l y  a  

few days la te r.  

MR POWELL:    Four  days la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR POWELL:    Four  o r  f i ve  days ’ la te r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR POWELL:    And i f  you tu rn  the  page,  Cha i r  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  i t  the  same account?  

MR POWELL:    I t  i s ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    In  wh ich  the  R50 thousand o f  

18 t h  October  had  gone and then  t ransfe r red?  Because  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  you  scro l l  up ,  Cha i r  jus t  

page 319.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You w i l l  see  i t  i s  the  same 

account .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay –  okay.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  i t  i s  a l l  the  same p la t inum c lass ic  

bank account  o f  Mr  Kodwa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   Okay.  

MR POWELL:    And i f  we fo l low the  ch rono logy,  so  we have 
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spoken about  4 -11-2015.   I f  you  move to  page 322 you w i l l  

see  tha t  there  i s  another  payment ,  Cha i r.   Th is  t ime the  

re ference is  4  November  2015,  ACB cred i t  se t t lement ,  

J  Mackey.   Cha i r,  the  las t  one on 4  November  was TSS so 

i f  you  tu rn ,  i f  you  jus t  want  to  compare ,  Cha i r  the  las t  one  

was 4  November  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  was the  da te  o f  the  las t  one?  

MR POWELL:    A l so  same date ,  Cha i r  4  November.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

MR POWELL:    That  one was TSS R50 thousand,  and you  10 

can see i t  looks  l i ke  Mr  Kodwa then pa id  var ious expenses 

because the re  is  t ransfers  o f  R20  thousand,  R5 thousand,  

R1 thousand,  e tce tera .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm.  

MR POWELL:    And then the re  i s  another  payment ,  bu t  th is  

t ime i t  comes s t ra igh t  f rom Mr Mackey and i t  i s  aga in  the  

exact  same number  R50 thousand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then i f  we can go down to  

25  November  and  can I  ask  you to  go  to  page 436.   And i f  20 

you can descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  you see there .  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   On 25 November,  th is  i s  

an  emai l  f rom Ziz i  Kodwa to  Jehan  Mackey and the  header  

i s  fo rward  bank ing  deta i l s .   And what  he  has fo rwarded is  

an  emai l  tha t  Z iz i  Kodwa h imse l f  rece ived ear l ie r  tha t  day –  
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sor ry  the  day be fore ,  Cha i r.   On 24 November  he  rece ived 

an emai l  f rom Joshua Munday and  i f  you look a t  the  mai l  

add ress,  Joshua.Munday@Fia tChrys le rFourways.co .za and 

i t  i s  sent  to  ZKodwa@ANC.org .za  and the  nar ra t ion  is :  

“Good day But i  Z iz i .   Jus t  a  f r iend ly  

reminder  I  need to  go  and co l lec t  your  car  

tomorrow so ,  p lease t ry  and make  payment  

so  we do not  have any de lays .   Thank you,  

Joshua Munday,  new car  sa les  execut ive ,  

Chrys le r  Jeep Dodge F ia t ,  e tce te ra  10 

Hobar t  S t ree t ,  B ryanston. ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then i f  we can  go to  

page 310,  and i f  we can s tar t  w i th  the  th i rd  las t  –  o r  f i rs t l y,  

can you descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  the  document  we are  

look ing  a t  i s  and  fo r  tha t  purpose one might  need to  go 

back to  309.  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r  th i s  i s  the  bank s ta tement  o f  

Mr  Jehan Mackey  and i t  has  go t  h is  Ecc les tone Crescent ,  

B ryanston home address.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  see  tha t  he re  is  wr i t ten  Johan or  what  20 

h is  name is  normal ly  wr i t ten  w i th  Je ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  th is  seems to  be  a  typo,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POWELL:    He normal ly  does have a  Je  in  h i s  name.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

mailto:Joshua.Munday@FiatChryslerFourways.co.za
mailto:Kodwa@ANC.org.za
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Whi le  we are  on  the  s ta tement ,  

i f  I  can  ask  you f i rs t  to  go  to  3  November  because we had 

seen in  Mr  Kodwa’s  bank s ta tement  a  R50 thousand 

payment  w i th  a  re ference Jehan Mackey.   Can you take  the  

Cha i r  to  the  co r respond ing  payment  in  th is  s ta tement?  

MR POWELL:    Mr  Chaska lson . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    A t  what  page?  

MR POWELL:    Do you want  me to  look  a t  310?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    310 –  310.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And so ,  3  November  i s  what  I  am 

ask ing  you to  look .  

MR POWELL:    Ja .   So 3  November,  Cha i r  you w i l l  see  i t  i s  

the  6 t h  l ine  i tem on the  s ta tement  on  310,  you w i l l  see  tha t  

i t  has  an  in te rnet  payment  to  desc r ip t ion  NG Kodwa /  

JN Mackey,  R50 thousand.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then the  next  en t ry  tha t  I  l i ke  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I s  tha t  2015?  I  see there  is  no  year  

g iven there  on  the  da tes .  20 

MR POWELL:    Yes,  Cha i r  i f  you  go back to  the  preced ing  

page i t  ident i f ies  th is  as  the  s ta tement  dur ing  

29  October  2015 to  28  November  2015.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR POWELL:    So  i t  i s  2015,  Cha i r  and then you w i l l  see  
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fu r ther  down.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja?  

MR POWELL:    On 28 November  there  is  an  in te rnet  

payment  aga in  to  NG Kodwa /  JN Mackey,  R50 thousand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    What  –  on  wha t  da te  now?  I s  tha t  fo r  

November?  

MR POWELL:    Sor ry,  th is  one is  near  the  bo t tom o f  tha t  

s ta tement ,  Cha i r  28  November  NG Kodwa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    J  Mackey,  R50  thousand.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    The ba lance now is  when these amounts  

come in  now,  they come in  –  they do  not  come in  a t  a  t ime  

when the  ba lance  is  very  low.  

MR POWELL:    No,  Cha i r  th i s  i s  coming f rom Mr Mackey ’s  

bank account .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay –  okay.  

MR POWELL:    So,  you can see Mr  Mackey ’s  bank account  

i s  a  lo t  hea l th ie r  than Mr Kodwa’s .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay.   Ja .  

MR POWELL:    And he seems to  he lp  Mr  Kodwa out  in  20 

t imes when Mr  Kodwa’s  account  ba lance was ve ry  low.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    You jus t  re fe r  t o  the  

28  November  en t ry.   There  is  one immedia te ly  above i t  

f rom 26 November.   Can you descr ibe  tha t  to  the  Cha i r  and  
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I  am not  too  –  I  know . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  yes .  

MR POWELL:    Sor ry,  Cha i r  I  m issed tha t  one because i t  

had a  d i f fe ren t  nar ra t ion ,  bu t  th is  one is  –  there  is  an  

in te rnet  payment .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  thought  tha t  was the  one you were  

ta lk ing  about  there .  

MR POWELL:    No sor ry,  I  was re fer r ing  to  28  November.   

Th is  seems to  be  26 November,  Cha i r  and th is  one has a 

FNB O/D number.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja?  

MR POWELL:    And then i t  has  a  nar ra t ion  there ,  

Apr i l  S t ree tw ise  -  APR St ree tw ise  (Z i z i ) .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r  and tha t  amount  i s  R30 thousand and 

tha t  a lso  appears  to  be  a  payment  to  Mr Kodwa.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I  have  to  –  sor ry,  in te rvene 

there .   The Commiss ion  has ac tua l l y  invest iga ted  th is  

payment .   And the  cont ra  account  in to  wh ich  th is  amount  

was pa id  accord ing  to  FNB i s  the  account  o f  the 20 

Jeep Chrys le r  sa les  representa t i ve ,  Mr  Munday  whose 

emai l  we saw a  few moments  ago.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  remember  tha t  emai l .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Yes,  thank you.   Ja ,  bu t  we can  

–  we w i l l  p roduce  the  FNB cont ra  account .  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  th is  i s  –  so ,  th is  i s  money coming 

out  o f  Mr  Mackey ’s  account  and you say i t  i s  go ing  in to  

Mr  Munday ’s  account ,  Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then there  is  a  re ference what  the 

money i s  about  and tha t  i s  perhaps S t ree tw ise  (Z i z i ) .   I s  

tha t  r igh t?   Am I  read ing  the  cor rec t  one? 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    That  i s  cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And you  w i l l  reca l l  tha t  the  bank  10 

deta i l s  tha t  were  –  tha t   . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t  emai l  i s  the  one wh ich  was 

say ing  p lease make payment  because I  need to  go  and 

co l lec t  the  ca r  tomorrow.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Exact ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And so ,  the  account  number  a t  

the  bo t tom o f  tha t  emai l .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I s  the  account  in to  wh ich  i t  was  20 

pa id .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    FNB conf i rms tha t  tha t  account  

i s  the  account  o f  Mr  Munday h imse l f ,  the  representa t i ve .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  okay.   So,  on  the  face o f  i t ,  i t  
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appears  tha t  Mr  Mackey may have  been pay ing  on  beha l f  o f  

Mr  Kodwa,  o r  on  beha l f  o f  Z iz i ,  whoever  Z i z i  i s .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

MR POWELL:    Go ing  fo rward ,  Cha i r  and i f  I  may jus t  po in t  

ou t  tha t  when looked a t  436 wh ich  spoke about  the  

reminder  to  make  payment ,  as  a  f r iend ly  reminder  I  need to  

go  co l lec t  your  ca r  tomorrow.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

MR POWELL:    The next  page 437  has the  bank s ta tement  10 

number  –  the  bank account  number  tha t  Mr  Chaska lson 

re fer red  to  tha t  FNB account  number  62114441611.   That  i s  

the  account  tha t  i s  re fe r red  to .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR POWELL:    On th is  t ransfer,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we then go fo rward  f rom 

28 November  to  4  December  and  to  page 297.   And can 

you descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  we  see a t  page 297.  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   Th is  i s  a  s ta tement  o f  the 20 

bank account  o f  Mr  Z i z i  Kodwa.   And the  s ta tement  i s  fo r  

the  per iod  17  November  to  17  December  2015.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And on  4  December  the re  is  a  

t ransact ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r  on  4  December  the  
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s ta tement  re f lec ts  a t  the  four th  l ine  on  the  s ta tement  on  

page 297,  FNB O/B payment  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  what  da te?  

MR POWELL:    4  December,  Cha i r  the  four th  l ine  i tem.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  ja .  

MR POWELL:    On the  s ta tement .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  I  can see.  

MR POWELL:    FNB O/B payment ,  re fe rence JM,  

R40 thousand Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  10 

MR POWELL:    So ,  tha t  i s  a  t ransfer  f rom Jehan Mackey to  

Z i z i  Kodwa,  R40 thousand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Not  Joshua Munday?  I s  i t  no t  JM? 

MR POWELL:    Oh,  JM.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Hmm?  Wel l ,  whoever  JM is ,  I  guess.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    We do have the  cont ra  account  

de ta i l s ,  we can show tha t  i s  was Jehan Mackey  in  th is  

case.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   But  th is  i s  R40 thousand,  nè?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So ,  the  t ransact ion  we saw in  

J  Mackey ’s  account  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POWELL:    That  was R30 thousand.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  was  separa te  account  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POWELL:    That  was a  separa te  account  and tha t  Z iz i  

S t ree tw ise .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   So,  th is  one you unders tand 

to  be  connected w i th  what?  

MR POWELL:    Jehan Mackey.   So,  i t  i s  a  payment  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  JM is  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POWELL:    JM is  Jehan Mackey in  th is  ins tance,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  th is  accoun t  tha t  you are  look ing  a t  10 

here  is  Mr  Kodwa ’s  one.  

MR POWELL:    Th is  i s  Mr  Kodwa’s  account .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Th is  p rev ious  one was Mr  Mackey ’s  

account .  

MR POWELL:    Mr  Mackey ’s  account .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR POWELL:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  go t  confused.  

MR POWELL:    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  okay,  a l r igh t .   Yes,  thank you.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then i f  we go fo rward  in  the 

chrono logy,  we have a l ready d i scussed th is  i tem which  is  

the  ho l iday accommodat ion  bu t  jus t  –  I  am jus t  go ing  to  

loca te  i t  in  the  ch rono logy.  

You w i l l  reca l l  tha t  there  you took the  Cha i r  to  
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R230 thousand where  none o f  us  cou ld  count  the  days and 

work  a  da i l y  ra te  fo r  Barbados V i l la  accommodat ion  f rom 

23 December  and  tha t  jus t  fo r  the  re ference there ,  tha t  was 

aga in  on  424 page 18 tha t  invo ice .  

I f  we go fo rward  fu r the r  in  the  chrono logy,  can I  ask  

you to  go  to  page 295.   Cha i r,  i f  I  may jus t  add  when I  

es t imated the  accommodat ion  a t  Vi l la  Barbados in  

Camps Bay I  suggested R17.   I  was not  tha t  fa r  ou t  fo r  a  

lawyer,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The exact  f igure  i s  R16,428,  so .  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  guess you are  say ing  desp i te  no t  be ing  

an  accountant .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    O f  course .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   Yes,  Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  we can go to  page 295 and  

maybe 294 f i rs t  jus t  to  ident i f y  the  document  and then 295.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  anothe r  ex t rac t  f rom 

Mr  Kodwa’s  bank  account  and th is  on  is  fo r  the  per iod  

16  January  2016 to  17  February  2017 –  2016,  sor ry.  20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And then on 2  February  can you  

-  on  page 295 can you ident i f y  the  t ransact ion?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The 9 t h  t ransact ion  on  the  

s ta tement  you w i l l  see  the  da te  2  February  in te rnet  

bank ing  payment  and i t  looks  l i ke  FRM and then i t  has  go t  
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the  re ference,  JM – Jehan and aga in ,  we have checked.  

Th is  i s  another  t ransfer  f rom Jehan Mackey.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And what  was the  ba lance  

amount  be fore  the  t ransfer?   So,  what  i s  the  amount  and 

how d id  i t  e f fec t  the  ba lance?  

MR POWELL:    The amount  tha t  was t ransfer red  was 

R30 thousand and,  Cha i r  the  account  was in  a r rears  in  the  

amount  o f  R16,296.   And a f te r  the  R39 thousand i t  pu t  i t  

in to  a  pos i t i ve  ba lance o f  –  c red i t  ba lance o f  R13,704.   I t  

was in  de f ic i t  be fore  th is  depos i t .  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then i f  we can go back to  the 

Add i t iona l  Bund le  f rom today and go to  the  th i rd  page o f  

tha t  Bund le ,  424.3 .   And can you descr ibe  to  the  Cha i r?  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   What  we have here  is  a  

purchase order  f rom Inn  Res idence de l i vered to  

Mthombo TSS and i t  i s  under  EOH purchase  order  -  

EOH Mthombo P ty  L td .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can  I  ask  you jus t  to  look  a t  

the  i tem pos i t ion  number  40 .   The i tem wi th  a  40  in  the  f i rs t  

co lumn and.  20 

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  i tem 40 re fers  to  

EOH CST000297,  EXP confe rences and seminars ,  

invo i ce  76  and i t  has  go t   . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Do you  reca l l  what  invo i ce  76  

was?  
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MR POWELL:    We looked a t  a  moment  ago.   I  w i l l  have to  

go  back,  Mr  Cha i r  bu t  the  number  i s  R230 thousand.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And does tha t  number  a lso  r i ng  

a  be l l?  

MR POWELL:    Yes,  Cha i r  Vi l la  Barbados tha t  amount  tha t  

we had to  ca lcu la te  the  accommodat ion  in  Camps Bay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    I f  I  can  then jus t  to  con f i rm the  

what  invo ice  76  l ooks –  re fe rs  to ,  can I  ask  you to  go  to  

the  second las t  page o f  th is  Bund le ,  Annexure  SP15.7 ,  

page 424.18.  10 

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  invo i ce  number  you 

remember,  Mr  Chaska lson po in ted  out  when we looked a t  

th is  document  ear l ie r,  he  h igh l igh ted  the  invo ice  number  

and the  re ference  and he emphas ised both  po in t s .   So,  i t  i s  

invo i ce  76  and the  re ference is  Mr  Z Kodwa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  and tha t  i s  the  cor re la t ion  .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And where  does one f ind  the  

R230 thousand tha t  one saw –  tha t  we saw on the  20 

purchase orde r |?  

MR POWELL:    That  i s  the  Vi l la  Barbados.   The 

Vi l la  Barbados ren ta l ,  23  December  to  5  January  fo r  

R230 thousand.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    S t i l l  i n  the same 
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Supp lementary  Bund le ,  i f  one goes back to  page 8 ,  

Annexure  SP15.4  –  oh  sor ry.   Before  we –  I  le f t  the  ea r l ie r  

document .   Wel l ,  le t  us  go  –  le t  us  go  back to  page 3 ,  the  

document  tha t  we jus t  looked a t .   I  apo log ise  fo r  no t  

dea l ing  w i th  i t  when we were  a t  the  document .   But  i f  we  

go to  page 3 ,  the  purchase orde r  tha t  you jus t .  

MR POWELL:    Yes.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  what  –  24?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Po in t  3 ,  the  th i rd  page.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    The 424  Bund le .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can you jus t  d raw a t ten t ion  to  

the  to ta l  amount  on  tha t  purchase orde r.  

MR POWELL:    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.   The to ta l  amount  on  th is  

PO is  R844,294.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And w i th  tha t  number  in  m ind,  

can we go fo rward  to  page 8  o f  the  Bund le ,  

Annexure  SP15.4 .  20 

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  i s  S tandard  Bank . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.   That  i s  424 what ,  

Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Po in t  8  –  po in t  8 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Po in t  8 ,  okay.   Yes?  
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MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  document  be fore  you is  a  

S tandard  Bank o f  South  A f r i ca  acc red i ted  de ta i l s  h is to ry  

and i t  shows cred i to r  Inn  Res idence,  da te  

19  February  2016 ,  amount  R180 thousand.   Day 2  

8  February  2016,  amount  to  th is  f igure  tha t  we jus t  looked 

a t ,  Cha i r  the  R844,294.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [A ff i rms] .  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Okay,  be fore  we leave th i s  

document ,  can we jus t  po in t  ou t  to  the  Cha i r  who is  mak ing  

these payments?  10 

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  appears  to  be  

EOH Mthombo P ty  L td .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And th is  one is  R844,294.  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Can we then go back  to  the  

chrono logy.   Aga in ,  i t  i s  a  document  tha t  we have seen 

a l ready,  bu t  we have jus t  seen a  payment  on  the  8 t h  o f  

February,  can we  go a  month  and a  b i t  fo rward  to  t he  30 t h  

o f  March and to  –  I  have los t  my page re ference.  

Bear  w i th  me fo r  a  moment ,  to  page 431.   In  fac t ,  I  20 

do  not  th ink  we have been here  be fore ,  431.   And can you  

desc r ibe  to  the  Cha i r  what  we see there .  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  a t  431 we have a  Prov ince  o f  the  

Easte rn  Cape Educat ion  Depar tment  o f f i ce r  the  ch ie f  

d i rec tor  supp ly  cha in  management  to  EOH.   The manag ing  
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d i rec tors  EOH Pty  L td  JB  Ro l lou t  Energy  and 

Ka lo l i s i  Investments  L td  and 

ELCB In format ion  Serv ices  L td .   Th is  i s  t ha t  consor t ium,  

Cha i r.  

“Dear  S i rs  /  Madams,  le t te r  o f  award .   

SCMU6-15/16-0001,  appo in tmen t  o f  a  

serv i ce  prov ider  o f  an  in tegra ted  

managem ent  and  human resource  records  

res to ra t ion  p ro j ec t  f o r  t he  depar tment  o f  

educat ion . ”  10 

And you w i l l  see  in  tha t  paragraph,  Cha i r  the  award :  

“Th is  b id  has been awarded to  your  

company in  l ine  w i th  your  o f fe r  o f  

R217,744,087.42.   P lease acknowledge  

and accept  th is  le t te r  o f  award  by  s ign ing  

the  acceptance s l ip  hereunder  and re turn  

i t  to  the  Easte rn  Cape Depar tment  o f  

Educat ion  as  soon as  poss ib le . ”  

Date  o f  th is  award  is  30  March2016,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  da ted  29 March,  bu t  i t  i s  s igned on 20 

the  30 t h  March.   Is  tha t  r igh t?  

MR POWELL:    Ja ,  i t  i s  da ted  29 March and then i t  i s  

s igned on the  30 t h  o f  March.  

CHAIRPERSON:    [A ff i rms] .  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:    Now,  i s  th is  the  tender  tha t  had been  

cance l led  a f te r   . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR POWELL:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    That  i s  a  no t  the  one?  

MR POWELL:    That  i s  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR POWELL:    The cance l led  tender  was home a f fa i rs ,  

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  i t  was home a f fa i rs ,  okay.   Oh no,  I  

th ink  maybe I  am ta lk ing  about  the  one where  is  i t  EOH say 10 

where  they sa id  they were  d i squa l i f ied?  

MR POWELL:    Yes,  tha t  was home a f fa i rs .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  tha t  was home a f fa i rs ,  okay.   No,  

okay.  

MR POWELL:    Cha i r,  th is  one the  Eastern  Cape tender  i s  

the  one wh ich  have the  R1 mi l l ion  tha t  your  remember  

Jehan Mackey sent  a  no te  to  Z i z i  Kodwa.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  ja .  

MR POWELL:    They make i t  a  request  fo r  sponsorsh ip  

whatever  you want  fo r  R1 mi l l ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  I  remember  i t  was these guys where 

we have been le f t  w i th  th is  amount  o f  R217 mi l l ion .  

MR POWELL:    Cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Then can we go to  th is  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 136 of 243 
 

morn ing ’s  Add i t iona l  Bund le ,  the  page 17 o f  tha t  Bund le  

wh ich  is  the  –  i t  i s  two pages f rom the  end.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    And can you descr ibe  tha t  

document  to  the  Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON:    One second.   You say two pages f rom 

the  end o f  the  Bund le?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:    Indeed,  Cha i r  i t  i s  SP 15.6 .   

Your  document  w i l l  say  15 .6 .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   From the  end o f  th is  morn ing ’s  

add i t iona l  bund le .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

MR POWELL:   I t  i s  re fe r red  to  as  424,  17  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you ab le  to  ident i f y  i t  w i th  th is  

morn ing ’s  pag ina t ion?  

MR POWELL:   Yes Cha i r,  17  f rom th is  morn ing ’s  

pag ina t ion .    

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  a lso  marked  15.6?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   That  i s  cor rec t  Cha i r.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

MR POWELL:   Cha i r,  th is  i s  an  emai l  f rom 

cand ice@mres idence,  i t  seems to  be  an employee  a t  the 

manag ing  company o f  th is  ho l iday  accommodat ions in  the 

Weste rn  Cape and i t  i s  sent  on  Monday,  Apr i l  25 t h  2016 to  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 137 of 243 
 

Nata l ie  Boegner.   

 The sub jec t  i s  C l ipper  F inanc ia l  Serv i ces  and the  

nar ra t ion  is :  

 “H i  Nata l ie .   Deon has requested tha t  the  EOH 

invo ices be  c red i ted  and re- invo iced under  

C l ipper  F inanc ia l  Serv i ces .   Do you know who 

wou ld  be  the  cor rec t  person to  send these 

invo ices to  fo r  payment  o r  who hand les  th is  

account?   Thank you,  Cand ice . ”  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Now f i r s t  o f  a l l ,  who are  C l ipper  10 

F inanc ia l  Serv i ces?  

MR POWELL:   C l ippe r  F inanc ia l  Serv i ces  a re  an  en terpr i se  

deve lopment  par tner  to  EOH.   I t  i s  one o f  the  smal l  

compan ies  tha t  they use to  par tner  w i th  them on a  number  

o f  ass ignments  and these are  a l l  l i nked back  to  an  

ind iv idua l  by  the  name o f  Ph i l l i p  Arno ld ,  Cha i r.   

 Ph i l l i p  Arno ld  i s  no t  you r  t yp i ca l  en terp r ise  

deve lopment  pa r tne r,  because  ED is  usua l l y  b lack  

empowerment  spent  and he is  a  wh i te  Eng l ish  gent leman  

Cha i r,  and C l ipper  F inanc ia l  Serv i ces  has been imp l ica ted  20 

in  the  broader  invest iga t ion  by  EMS Af r i ca  in to 

i r regu lar i t ies  a t  EOH.  

 A long w i th  o ther  en t i t ies  l inked to  Ph i l l i p  Arno ld ,  we  

ident i f ied  tha t  there  were  payments  o f  more  than 750 

mi l l ion  rand to  ED par tne rs  where  no  work  was done,  and 
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more  than ha l f  o f  tha t  amount  has gone to  en t i t ies  l inked to  

Ph i l l i p  Arno ld .   

 So Ph i l l i p  Arno ld  seems to  be  imp l ica ted  in  i r regu lar  

t ransact ions and  he seems to  be  an assoc ia te  o f  G ian  

McKay.   So what  we have he re  Cha i r  i s  tha t  these invo ices  

were  pa id  by  EOH but  now we  have g i ven i t  to  an  ED 

par tner  and sa id  you pay them.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And then,  can we go back to  the  

document  tha t  we have looked a t  severa l  t imes.   The las t ,  

the  document  on  page 18 o f  th is  bund le ,  th is  morn ing ’s  10 

bund le .   SP15.7 ,  the  invo ice ,  and can you ident i f y  the  par ty  

to  whom the  invo i ce  has been issued?   

CHAIRPERSON:   Jus t  repeat  the  page Mr  Chaska lson?  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Page 18,  i t  i s  the  second las t  

page o f  th is  morn ing ’s  add i t iona l  bund le .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR POWELL:   Cha i r,  and i t  a lso  has 15 .7  a t  the  top .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  I  have got  i t ,  thank you.  

MR POWELL:   Cha i r,  we have looked a t  th is  document  

severa l  t imes and  i f  you look a t  the  invo ice  number,  invo ice  20 

76 re ference Mr  Z Kodwa,  you w i l l  see  tha t  th is  re f l ec ts  an  

invo i ce  f rom M Res idents  by  Pete r  Bronday P ty  L td .   Th is  

t ime i t  i s  to  C l ipper  F inanc ia l  Serv i ces .   

 So i t  looks  l i ke  tha t  p r io r  request  has been ca r r ied  

ou t .   I t  has  now been invo iced  to  the  ED par tner  o f  
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[ ind is t inc t ] .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Can you  comment  on  the  da te  o f  

the  invo ice?  

MR POWELL:   The date  o f  th is  invo i ce  is  25  January  2016  

Cha i r.   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And is  there  anyth ing  no t iceab le  

about  tha t  da te?   Anyth ing  no tewor thy,  and aga in  sor ry  Mr  

Powel l ,  I  have  been asked to  ask  you to  b r ing  the  

m icrophone a  l i t t le  c loser  to  you.   

MR POWELL:   So r ry.  10 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you.   Maybe i f  I  can  take  

you back to  Cand ice ’s  emai l  on  page 7 ,  the  prev ious page.   

MR POWELL:   Yes.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   What  i s  the  da te  o f  tha t  emai l?  

MR POWELL:   Cha i r,  the  da te  o f  tha t  emai l  i s  Monday,  

Apr i l  25  2016.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Cand ice ’s  request  i s?  

MR POWELL:   Cand ice  is  request ing  Nata l ie  to  say tha t  

Deon has requested tha t  EOH invo ices be  cred i ted  and re-

invo i ced under  C l ipper  F inanc ia l  Serv i ces .   20 

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   So ,  and  then on 18 is  i t  poss ib le  

tha t  th is  invo i ce  was issued on the  25 t h  o f  January  2016?  

MR POWELL:   Cha i r,  what  Mr  Chaska lson i s  h igh l igh t ing  is  

tha t  the  re - invo ic ing  predates  the  request  by  severa l  

months .   
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ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Yes.   The las t ,  we are  a lmost  a t  

the  las t .   The nex t  da te  on  the  chrono logy tha t  i s  impor tan t  

i s  back in  the  main  bund le  on  page 509.   So can  we go  

back to  the  main  bund le  on  page  509?  What  do  we,  can  

you descr ibe  tha t  document  to  the  Cha i r?  

MR POWELL:   Cer ta in ly.   Th is  i s  an  emai l  f rom Deon  

McKay Cha i r  and  i t  i s  da ted  10 May 2016 to  Rene  Jonker  

w i thout  a  sub jec t .   The nar ra t ion  is :  

 “H i  Rene,  have you managed to  do  recon fo r  

EOH,  Orac le  Saza dea l ,  P ro jec t  Ingr id  was the  10 

pro jec t  l inked to  the  ED cont r ibu t ion  and I  am 

under  p ressure  f rom them for  recupera t ion  o f  

the  funds a l ready spent  wh ich  was about  two 

mi l l ion .   P lease he lp  as  TSS funded Pro ject  

Ingr id . ”  

 Cha i r,  i f  we ana lyse  what  th is  ac tua l l y  means,  i s  i t  

i s  h igh l igh t ing  to  us  tha t  P ro jec t  Ingr id  wh ich  had a l l  o f  

those d i f fe ren t  ANC expenses tha t  were  pa id  was a  pro jec t  

l inked to  the  ED cont r ibu t ion  and  what  the  emai l  i s  a lso  

te l l ing  us  is  TSS are  very  unhappy because they  funded 20 

th is  and they a re  look ing  fo r  re imbursement  f rom EOH.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And can you jus t  re f resh our  

memory.   The EOH Orac le  Saza dea l ,  what  was tha t  wor th  

to  EOH? 

MR POWELL:   I t  was 90 mi l l ion  Cha i r.   Remember  i t  had a  
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f i xed  f igure  o f  30  m i l l ion  fo r  the  f i rs t  yea r  and year  2  and 

year  3  was go ing  to  be  consumer  pr ice  index re la ted .   So 

90 mi l l ion  approx imate ly  in  to ta l .   

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   And las t l y  can we then  look a t  

the  f ina l  reconc i l ia t ion  o f  P ro jec t  Ingr id  expenses ,  wh ich  

we see a t  page 516.   

MR POWELL:   Cha i r,  page 516 th is  i s  an  emai l  f rom Rino 

Bar ry,  TSS Group .   24  August  2017  to  Deon McKay copy ing  

Rawede Gou ld  and CC’d  to  Shaun Emery.   Sub jec t  RE  

a t tachments  TSS loan EOH Pro jec t  Ingr id .   XLS,  so  i t  i s  a  10 

spreadsheet  a t tached cha i r,  as  requested and th is  fo l lowed 

a  request  f rom Deon McKay to  R ino  Bar ry  to  p rov ide  h im  

wi th  a  summar i sed recon o f  the  Pro jec t  Ing r id  account ,  and  

th is  a t taches,  the  a t tachment  i s  over  the  page  a t  517 

Cha i r.   

 I f  you  have a  look Cha i r,  th is  i s  remarkab ly  s im i la r  

to  a  schedu le  tha t  Mr  Bar ry  pu t  together  in  respect  o f  COJ 

where  they had o f f  se t  expenses  or  ANC donat ions.   Th is  

seems to  be  very  s im i la r,  except  th is  t ime i t  i s  the  Easte rn  

Cape Pro jec t  Ingr id .   20 

 Cha i r,  i f  we look a t  the  document  on  page 517 i t  i s  

an  account  t ransact ions repor t ,  Tact ica l  Sof tware  Systems 

P ty  L td  and i t  i s  re fe r red  to  accoun t  TSS loan EOH and i t  i s  

repeated TSS loan EOH and i t  ta lks  about  da te  range 1  

January  2014 to  24-08-2017.  
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 Bu t  when you look a t  the  t ransact ions Cha i r  you w i l l  

see  tha t  they on ly  s ta r t  in  2015.   The f i rs t  da te  i s  23  

January  2015 and i f  we look a t  the  de ta i l s  thereof ,  i t  s ta r ts  

w i th  there  is  a  R300-00 smal l  c red i t ,  EOH MS.   Then there  

is  account  payments .   

 Deb i t  one mi l l ion  and twenty  seven.   I f  you  run  

th rough the  l i s t  Cha i r,  you w i l l  see  Herber t  Baker  Hote l ,  

Absa Bank,  DO L igh t  Transpor t ,  Absa Bank,  Jabe la ,  S tar  

Bus Serv ices ,  Kopanong Hote l  and Conference,  I  Bank 

payment  to  Absa  bank fo r  Amasondo  Transpor t ,  Masondo 10 

Bus Serv i ces ,  Motswele  Trad ing ,  Absa bank Gal lagher  

Convent ion  Cent re ,  there  is  s i x  m i l l i on .  

 Cha i r,  I  know when we d id  the  ea r l ie r  invest iga t ion  

fo r  EOH tha t  s ix  m i l l i on  re la tes  to  an  ANC conference tha t  

was he ld  a t  the  Ga l lagher  Esta te ,  and then there  is  

Renn ies  Trave l ,  I  am jus t  mov ing  th rough the  l i s t ,  jus t  have  

a  look a t  the  d i f fe ren t  t ypes o f  l ine  i tems and you w i l l  see  

there  is  a  lo t  o f  supp l ie r  invo ices pa id  fo r  Renn ies  Trave l .   

 The to ta l  amount  comes to  the  f igure  on  the  

fo l low ing page a t  518 Cha i r.   F i f teen mi l l ion ,  seven 20 

hundred and f i f t y  four  thousand th ree  hundred and e igh ty  

four  rand and s ix ty  n ine  cents .   Cha i r,  so  th is  comes f rom 

one o f  the  TSS peop le  and Mr  Bar ry  i s  c lear l y  a  f inanc ia l  

person manag ing  on tha t  s ide  and he has pu t  th is  

reconc i l ia t ion  together  wh ich  we have jus t  wa lked th rough.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Mr  Powel l ,  tha t  takes us  to  the 

end o f  the  spec i f i c  fac ts  tha t  we wanted to  p lace  be fore  the  

commiss ion .   Fo r  the  res t ,  your  a f f idav i t  i s  jus t  in  some 

ways organ is ing  these fac t s  to  suggested in fe rences tha t  

shou ld  be  drawn f rom these.   

 I s  there  anyth ing  in  tha t  regard  tha t  you want  to  say  

beyond what  i s  se t  ou t  in  your  a f f idav i t  o r  tha t  you want  to  

say in  conc lus ion  to  the  commiss ion  because I  see we have  

a l ready run  past  our  hour  by  some t ime.   10 

MR POWELL:   Cer ta in ly.   Cha i r,  i f  I  may jus t  g ive  you  

some conc lud ing  remarks  wh ich  are  s im i la r  to  what  I  had 

adv ised prev ious ly,  i s  tha t  EOH has comple te ly  new 

management  and leadersh ip  and they have been commi t ted  

to  c lean ing  up the  company and  erad ica t ing  a l l  o f  the  

cor rup t  ac t i v i t ies  tha t  we see in  the  documents .   

 What  we saw is  examples  o f  the  use o f  in f luences ,  

m idd le  men,  in te rmed iar ies  l i ke  Mr  Kodwa has been  asked 

to  in te rvene and  Lunga Nkwana  we re fer red  to  ear l ie r.   

Those a l l  happened dur ing  th is  2015 to  2017 per iod  and Mr  20 

McKay and you heard  prev ious ly  on  COJ,  Mr  Makududu and 

you heard  Mr  Lehur  on  some o f  the  SAP t ransact ions in  my 

prev ious tes t imony.  

 A l l  o f  those pa r t ies  have been  repor ted  to  the  

au thor i t ies  so  the  company has fu l f i l l ed  i t s  respons ib i l i t i es  
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in  c lean ing  up the  organ isa t ion  and I  have been mandated  

by  the  company to  p rov ide  fu l l  suppor t  and ass is tance to  

the  commiss ion  so  tha t  these  i r regu la r i t ies  can be  

exposed.   

 But  I  am jus t  h igh l igh t ing  tha t  EOH has managed to  

avo id  b lack l i s t ing  by  any government  depar tment  because  

i t  has  done the  r igh t  th ing  in  t ry ing  to  f i x  the  company and  

I  th ink  tha t  Cha i r,  I  jus t  wanted to  emphas ise  the  po in t ,  

because when we ta lk  about  a l l  the  wrongdo ing  a t  EOH, 

the  wrongdo ing  was by  th is  smal l  g roup o f  fo rmer  10 

employees who rea l l y  took the  bus iness down the  wrong  

road,  and I  know the  CEO,  Mr  van Co l le r  tes t i f ied  h imse l f  

and exp la ined what  he  has done  to t ry  and rebu i ld  and  

save the  jobs o f  a  who le  l o t  o f  honest ,  hardwork ing  peop le  

a t  the  company and I  jus t  wanted to  remind Cha i r  o f  jus t  

tha t  thought  as  I  c lose .    

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you very  much Mr  Powel l  

and we ce r ta in ly  apprec ia te  bo th  your  ev idence and the  

ev idence o f  Mr  van Co l le r.   Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   H is  lega l  representa t i ves  came in  wh i le  20 

we were  busy,  yes .    

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   Cha i rperson,  f i rs t l y  I  shou ld  

apo log ise  fo r  be ing  la te .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   I  was expect ing  fo r  Mr  Powel l  to  be  in  
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the  w i tness box a t  f i ve  PM.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  know.   Th ings changed so  I  

unders tand.   

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   Cha i r,  there  are  jus t  two quest ions I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  pu t  to  Mr  Powel l  wh ich  I  hope w i l l  be  o f  

ass is tance to  the  commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   Mr  Powel l ,  can I  take  you to  page 298  

p lease?   

MR POWELL:   Cer ta in l y  Cha i r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Maybe wh i l e  he  is  look ing ,  jus t  p lace  

yourse l f  on  reco rd  aga in .  

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   Cha i r,  I  am As lam Mosaa je ,  I  am a 

par tner  o f  Mr  Powel l  and I  am h is  lega l  representa t i ve  fo r  

these proceed ings.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   Okay,  what  page d id  you say? 

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   Page 298.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.    

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   Mr  Powel l ,  can you p lease descr ibe  

th is  document?  20 

MR POWELL:   Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  bank s ta tement ,  the 

p la t inum c lass i c  account  o f  Mr  Z i z i  Kodwa,  MG Kodwa.  

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   Can I  re fe r  you then to  the  las t  en t ry  

on  tha t  par t i cu la r  s ta tement?  

MR POWELL:   Cer ta in ly.   That  i s  the  immedia te  t ransfe r,  
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c red i t  se t t lement  f i rs t  round G McKay and i t  i s  an  amount  

o f  th i r t y  f i ve  thousand.   Cha i r,  th is  th i r t y  f i ve  thousand is  

the  amounts  tha t  were  added . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  you ta lked about ,  ja .   

MR POWELL:   Which  brought  the  to ta l  up  to  one mi l l ion  s ix  

hundred and e igh ty  thousand.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  you ta lked about  i t .   I  remember.   

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   So  tha t  th i r t y  f i ve  thousand  is  not  

re fe r red  to  on  SP5 on page 293.   

MR POWELL:   No.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink  i t  must  be ,  sor ry.   No,  because  

tha t  i s  why you asked me to ,  ja .   

MR POWELL:   Cor rec t .   Cha i r,  th is  i s  the  one we d id  add 

ear l ie r  th is  morn ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR POWELL:   So  tha t  then br ings the  to ta l  up  to  1 .6  . . .  

one mi l l ion  s ix  hundred and e igh ty  thousand.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR POWELL:   Cha i r,  we d id  ask  tha t  we amend the  

document  to  re f lec t  the  new to ta l .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR POWELL:   And then Cha i r  you w i l l  reca l l  tha t  we a lso  

amended,  I  th ink  i t  was pa ragraph 11 o f  my a f f idav i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  I  made a  no te  next  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR POWELL:   Yes.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   The paragraph where  you had the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR POWELL:   Cor rec t ,  i t  was pa ragraph 11 Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   Mr  Powel l ,  can I  a lso  jus t  then take  

you to  parag raph  11 on page 282 and I  jus t  want  to  make  

sure  tha t  there  were  two amendments  made.   

MR POWELL:   Yes.   

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   One in  re la t ion  to  the  amount  o f  1645 

shou ld  ac tua l l y  read 1680.  10 

MR POWELL:   Cor rec t .   

ADV MOOSAJE SC:   And then the  re ference to  SP5,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t ,  in  paragraph 11?  

MR POWELL:   No Cha i r,  I  th ink  tha t  shou ld  re fe r  to  SP6.   

Apo log ies  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry,  what  page is  tha t?  

MR POWELL:   A t  the  end o f  paragraph 11 you w i l l  see  in  

b rackets  i t  re fe rs  to  SP5.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR POWELL:   Cha i r,  i f  you  can jus t  make tha t  SP6.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   SP6.   

MR POWELL:   Cor rec t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Thank you.   Thank you ve ry  much  

Mr  Powel l  fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f .   We apprec ia te  you coming  

to  us  as  the  commiss ion .   Thank you very  much.  
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MR POWELL:   Thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You are  now re leased.   

MR POWELL:   Thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you Mr  Chaska lson.  

ADV CHASKALSON SC:   Thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  I  am go ing  to  ad jou rn  fo r  about  ten 

m inutes  to  enab le  the  team re la t ing  to  the  o ther  mat te r  to  

se t  up  and then I  w i l l  come back.   We are  ad journed .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good a f te rnoon Ms Hofmeyr  once  aga in .   

Good a f te rnoon everybody.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Good a f te rnoon Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   I s  every th ing ,  i s  everybody  ready  

now? 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes,  I  th ink  we a re .   My learned f r iend i s  

cer ta in ly  here  and we have managed to  es tab l i sh  

connect ions w i th  Ms Myen i  who is  connected v ia  a  Zoom 

l ink  and as  you can see Cha i r  i s  v is ib le  in  the  room on the  

sc reen.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Good a f te rnoon Ms Myen i .  

MS MYENI :   Good a f te rnoon Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   We expected you to  be  he re  in  the  

morn ing .   That  d id  no t  happen and  I  am sure  your  counse l  

has to ld  you tha t  I  sa id  tha t  was unacceptab le .   You 
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unders tood tha t?  

MS MYENI :   Indeed Cha i rperson.   Indeed Cha i rpe rson.   I  

d id  ge t  a  ca l l  f rom the  advocate .   I t  was a  

m isunders tand ing ,  a  m iscommun ica t ion .   I t  was not  

in tended tha t  I  wou ld  no t  coopera te  w i th  the  commiss ion  

Cha i rperson and  what  he  exp la ined is  exact ly  what  

happened.   

 I  wou ld  l i ke  to  send my apo log ies  to  you 

Cha i rperson.   I t  was never  in tended to  d is respect  the  

commiss ion  and  the  sess ion  tha t  I  was inv i ted  to ,  to  10 

a t tend.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Ms Hofmeyr,  do  you want  

to  s ta r t  w i th  what  we shou ld  dea l  w i th  f i rs t?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r,  I  w i l l  do  so .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  am jus t  go ing  to  seek to  comple te  the  

aspect  tha t  was he ld  over  f rom the  las t  ev idence.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then hand over  to  my learned  f r iend,  

Mr  Se leka.   Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV HOFMEYR:   You w i l l  reca l l  I  fo reshadowed th is  

morn ing  tha t  the  mat te r  tha t  had to  be  dea l t  w i th ,  tha t  was 

he ld  over  f rom Ms Myen i ’s  las t  ev idence,  was the  quest ion  

o f  whether  her  ind ica t ion  o f  the  pr iv i lege aga ins t  se l f -



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 150 of 243 
 

incr im inat ion  had  been jus t i f ied  on  the  repeated occas ions  

in  wh ich  i t  was invoked dur ing  those th ree  days o f  

tes t imony.  

 Cha i r,  jus t  to  focus our  m inds.   The const i tu t iona l  

cour t  gave a  judgment  in  January  o f  th is  year  in  the  mat te r  

o f  the  Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion  versus Zuma.   In  tha t  i t  

ac tua l l y  dea l t  w i th  th is  quest ion  o f  the  pr iv i lege aga ins t  

se l f - incr im inat ion .   

 My lea rned f r iends have re fer red  to  tha t  judgment  in  

the  submiss ions we rece ived las t  Fr iday.   They quo te  many  10 

parag raphs o f  the  judgment ,  bu t  no t  the  parag raph tha t  I  

wou ld  l i ke  to  d raw to  your  a t ten t ion  jus t  to  f rame the  

submiss ions tha t  I  am go ing  to  make.   

 I t  i s  a t  paragraph  109  o f  the  Concord  j udgment  and 

what  i t  says  the re  is :  

 “ I t  l i es  w i th  a  w i tness be fore  a  commiss ion  to  

c la im pr i v i lege aga ins t  se l f - incr im inat ion .   In  

the  event  o f  do ing  so ,  the  w i tness  must  ra ise  

the  quest ion  o f  p r iv i lege w i th  the  Cha i rperson 

o f  the  commiss ion  and must  demonst ra te  how 20 

an answer  to  the  quest ion  in  i ssue wou ld  

breach the  pr iv i lege.   I f  the  Cha i rperson is  

persuaded,  he  or  she may commi t  the  w i tness  

no t  to  answer  the  quest ion .   P r iv i lege aga ins t  

se l f - incr im inat ion  is  no t  there  fo r  the  tak ing  by  
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the  w i tness.   There  must  be  su f f i c ien t  g rounds 

tha t  in  answer ing  a  quest ion ,  the  w i tness w i l l  

incr im inate  h imse l f  o r  herse l f  in  the 

commiss ion  o f  a  spec i f ied  cr ime. ”  

 Cha i r,  tha t  was  an ar t i cu la t ion  o f  the  law as  i t  

ex i s ted .   There  is  no  i nd i ca t ion  f rom the  Const i tu t iona l  

Cour t  tha t  i t  was purpor t ing  to  deve lop  the  law.   I t  was  

s ta t ing  the  l aw and the  pa r t  o f  tha t  tha t  I  emphas ise  is  tha t  

there  is  a  c lear  recogn i t ion  tha t  the  Cha i rpe rson  o f  the  

commiss ion  must  be  persuaded.   10 

 There  must  be  demonst ra t ion  by  the  w i tness tha t  

answer ing  the  pa r t i cu la r  quest ion  w i l l  l i ke ly  expose  them to  

a  charge on a  spec i f ied  c r ime.   So Cha i r,  aga ins t  tha t  

backdrop the  lega l  team o f  the  commiss ion  d id  submiss ions  

wh ich  were  then shared w i th  Ms Myen i  and her  lega l  team.   

 What  we d id  in  those submiss ions is  we went  

th rough the  prev ious t ranscr ip t  and Cha i r,  there  i s  a  bund le  

tha t  was made ava i lab le  to  yourse l f  las t  n igh t .   I  have 

made a  copy ava i lab le  to  my learned f r iend now.   The  

documents  tha t  cer ta in l y  everyone  has seen before .   20 

 The on ly  add i t ion  is  tha t  they are  now pag ina ted a t  

today ’s  p roceed ings,  and what  they beg in  w i th  a t  page 1  i s  

tha t  se t  o f  subm iss ions,  14  pages.   We go th rough the  

t ranscr ip t  and we  make submiss ions about  the  ins tances in  

wh ich  we submi t  Ms Myen i  invoke the  pr iv i lege  w i thout  
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jus t i f i ca t ion  and we make submiss ions as  to  our  conc lus ion  

wh ich  i s  tha t  the  pr i v i lege was abused on a  number  o f  

occas ions dur ing  the  course  o f  Ms Myen i ’s  ev idence.   

 We conc lude,  you w i l l  f ind  th is  a t  page 16 o f  the  

bund le  tha t  you have befo re  you Cha i r  and tha t  my learned  

f r iend has.   We say a t  paragraph 41 on page 16,  tha t  

Cha i r,  you warned Ms Myen i  tha t  the  consequence  o f  no t  

answer ing  quest ions was tha t  the  ve rs ion  o f  o ther  

w i tnesses,  wh ich  may imp l ica te  Ms Myen i  in  un lawfu l  

conduct .    10 

 I t  wou ld  then be uncontes ted  and desp i te  tha t  

warn ing  Ms Myen i  cont inued to  invoke the  p r iv i lege when 

there  was no lega l  bas i s  fo r  do ing  so  on  the  occas ions tha t  

we t raverse  in  the  submiss ions.   Then we conc lude by  

say ing  th is  means tha t  Ms Myen i  made a  cho ice  no t  to  

p rov ide  her  s ide  o f  the  s to ry,  desp i te  the  ser ious 

a l legat ions aga ins t  he r.   

 Those a l legat ions are  there fore  no t  s imp ly  

uncontes ted .   They have been  le f t  unanswered by  a  

w i tness who had no va l id  reason fo r  re fus ing  to  p rov ide  an  20 

answer.   Cha i r,  what  we a l so  d id  in  the  course  o f  las t  week 

is  we made ava i l ab le  to  our  lea rned f r iends a  l i s t  d is t i l l ed  

f rom the  submiss ions o f  the  spec i f i c  quest ions in  respect  

o f  wh ich  we ind ica ted  we wou ld  seek ru l ings  f rom you 

today Cha i r.   
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 Now my lea rned f r iend th rough the  a t to rney fo r  Ms  

Myen i  has made  submiss ions in  response.   Those came 

th rough on Fr iday las t  week and Cha i r,  you w i l l  f ind  those 

in  the  bund le  s im i la r ly.   They commence a t  page 28 o f  the 

bund le .   

 Cha i r,  the re  are  a  number  o f  lega l  i ssues tha t  a re  

ra ised in  the  course  o f  those  submiss ions and I  am 

cer ta in ly  in  a  pos i t ion  to  dea l  w i th  those aspects  th is  

a f te rnoon,  bu t  be fore  do ing  tha t ,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  fas t  

fo rward  because t ime is  a  luxury  t ha t  th is  commiss ion  can 10 

i l l  a f fo rd .   

 Cha i r,  I  s igna l led  be fore  the  l unch  break tha t  in  the  

in te res t  o f  t ime,  and g iven the  impor tance tha t  the  Eskom 

ev idence wh ich  has no t  ye t  been vent i la ted  w i th  Ms  Myen i ,  

s t i l l  takes p lace today.   

 What  I  was go ing  to  seek f rom you Cha i r,  i s  ru l ings  

tha t  wou ld  i f  you  are  so  pe rsuaded,  requ i re  Ms Myen i  to  

answer  those quest ions,  d is t i l l ed  f rom the  submiss ions on  

a f f idav i t  in  due course ,  sub jec t  to  a  d i rec t ion  f rom you on 

t im ing .   20 

 I t  i s  an  un for tunate  s ta te  o f  a f fa i rs ,  bu t  the  

commiss ion  is  l i te ra l l y  schedu led  to  comple te  i t s  ev idence,  

bar r ing  a  few except ions you ment ioned th is  morn ing ,  next  

Tuesday.   I t  i s  s imp ly  the  case tha t  we have run  out  o f  

t ime.    
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 Bu t  those are  the  quest ions in  respect  o f  wh ich  the  

lega l  team o f  the  commiss ion  submi ts  the  pr iv i lege was not  

jus t i f iab ly  invoked and in  respect  o f  wh ich  we accord ing ly  

ind ica ted  we wou ld  seek ru l ings  f rom you today and Cha i r,  

those quest ions in  the  bund le  be fore  you commence a t  

page 22.   

 Now Cha i r,  in  the  gap before  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry,  commence a t  page?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   22  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Us ing  the  top  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Apo log ies ,  yes  Cha i r.   There  a re  some 

numbers  a t  the  bo t tom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  commences,  the  top  pag ina t i on  page 

22.   I t  i s  a  se t  o f  s ix  pages and I  th ink  24  quest ions .   Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   A re  these quest ions connected in  

any way w i th  the  quest ions tha t  you dea l t  w i th  in  your  

submiss ions?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.   So e f fec t i ve ly  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  i s  a  summary to  the  submiss ions.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  what  happens is  the  submiss ions dea l  

w i th  qu i te  a  b i t  o f  the  de ta i l  o f  the  t ranscr ip t .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   
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ADV HOFMEYR:   What  happened in  the  course  o f  the 

ask ing  o f  the  quest ion  and the  answer  g iven by  Ms Myen i .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  p laces i t  in  contex t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   A l l  tha t  these  s ix  pages do is  they 

l i te ra l l y  ex t rac t  the  re levant  quest ions.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   And then fo r  conven ience,  they have 

been re ferenced in  the  foo tno tes  aga ins t  the  very  par t s  in  10 

the  t ransc r ip t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Where  i f  you  go there  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   You w i l l  f ind  the  quest ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.    

ADV HOFMEYR:   So  what  I  can be c lear  about  i s  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  quest ions tha t  were  p rev ious ly  

asked.  20 

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.   P rev ious ly  asked,  re fe renced in  

the  submiss ions . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 156 of 243 
 

ADV HOFMEYR:   As  be ing  quest ions in  respect  o f  wh ich  on 

the  submiss ion  o f  the  lega l  team . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV HOFMEYR:   There  was no t  a  jus t i f iab le  bas i s  fo r  

invok ing  the  pr i v i lege.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   And we have made our  submiss ions on  

tha t  we have rece ived the  response  f rom my learned f r iend.   

CHAIRPERSON:   So  the  response tha t  s ta r ts  a t  page 28.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Yes.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  a  response  a lso  to  those quest ions  

or  the  quest ions came a f te r?  

ADV HOFMEYR:   No,  they were  sent  w i th  the  submiss ions.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV HOFMEYR:   Bu t  the  response is  rea l l y  a  response to  

the  submiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Because there  are  po in t s  o f  law taken.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Cer ta in  debates  about  what  the  e f fec t  o f  20 

the  Const i tu t iona l  Cour t ’s  dec is ion  was.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Bu t  in  an  e f fo r t  to  move  th ings fo rward ,  I  

d id  engage my learned f r iend befo re  re turn ing  in  the  lunch 

break.   
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV HOFMEYR:   I  unders tand f rom h im tha t  the  pos i t ion  is  

as  fo l lows,  in  respect  o f  those quest ions . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV HOFMEYR:   On the  s ix  pages.   That  Ms Myen i  i s  now 

wi l l i ng  to  p rov ide  answers  on  a f f idav i t  to  those quest ions  

and those were  the  quest ions wh ich  dur ing  her  tes t imony 

she dec l ined to  answer  on  the  bas is  tha t  answer ing  wou ld  

l i ke ly  expose her  to  a  c r im ina l  cha rge.    

 She invoked the  pr iv i lege in  respect  o f  those,  bu t  10 

g iven tha t  she is  now wi l l i ng  to  p rov ide  an  answer  on  

a f f idav i t  to  those  quest ions,  i t  i s  no t  c lear  to  me tha t  you  

necessar i l y  need to  ru le  on  the  quest ion  bu t  I  am happy fo r  

my learned f r iend  i f  I  have conveyed in  any respect  what  I  

unders tood h im to  re la te  to  me about  Ms Myen i ’s  cur ren t  

pos i t ion  to  cor rec t  i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Bu t  i f  no t ,  my suggest ion  wou ld  be  s imp ly  

a  d i rec t ion  in  re la t ion  to  those  quest ions may  we l l  be  

su f f i c ien t .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   I f  we need to  debate  the  law or  anyth ing  

e lse ,  I  am happy to  do  so .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   But  in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime I  thought  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  i f  Ms Myen i  i s  now wi l l i ng  to  answer  

the  quest ion ,  p robab ly  the re  i s  no  need to  make any ru l ing  

and sub jec t  to  what  Mr  Buthe lez i  m ight  say  about  the  

proposa l  tha t  she prov ides answers  i n  an  a f f idav i t .   That  

wou ld  be  the  way to  go ,  g iven the  t ime const ra in t s  o f  the 

commiss ion .   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja ,  okay le t  me  hear  f rom Mr  Buthe lez i .   

I f  you  are  ab le  to  address me f rom there  i t  i s  f ine .   I f  you  10 

pre fe r  to  come to  the  pod ium,  tha t  i s  f ine  too .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   No Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  i s  f ine  there .  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   I  agree w i th  my learned f r iend.   We 

have dec ided tha t  we w i l l  submi t  v ia  a f f idav i t ,  responses to  

those quest ions.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  and you conf i rm tha t  your  c l ien t  i s  

now wi l l i ng  to  answer  those quest i ons?  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Indeed so  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   20 

ADV BUTHELEZI :   We have one request  o f  an  indu lgence,  

maybe perhaps w i th  a  b i t  o f  len iency in  te rms o f  the  t ime 

f rames,  because i t  i s  about  24  quest ions in  to ta l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV BUTHELEZI :   And some wi l l  need suppor t ing  
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documents  there to .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV BUTHELEZI :   We wou ld  l i ke  to  answer  them 

comprehens ive ly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV BUTHELEZI :   And avo id  ra i s ing  d i sputes  o f  fac ts  tha t  

we reca l l  the  mat te r  to  come back Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   Okay.   Wel l ,  in  tha t  event  I  

wou ld  no t  p ropose to  make any ru l ing  on  the  issue  o f  the  

invocat ion  o f  the  pr iv i lege because Ms Myen i  no  longer  10 

re l ies  on  tha t .    

ADV HOFMEYR:   Indeed.   

CHAIRPERSON:   And is  no  longer  re fus ing  to  answer  the  

quest ions.   So I  w i l l  address her  now and a f te r  tha t ,  I  am 

ready to  g ive  a  d i rec t i ve  wh ich  can be a  d i rec t i ve  i n  te rms 

o f  Regu la t ion  10 (6)  o f  the  regu la t ions o f  the  commiss ion .   

Ms Myen i ,  you r  counse l  has in fo rmed me tha t  you are  now 

wi l l i ng  to  answer  these quest ions and he has ind ica ted  tha t  

there  i s  a  des i re  to  answer  them comprehens ive l y  and you 

no longer  re ly  on  the  pr i v i lege aga ins t  se l f - inc r im inat ion  to  20 

re fuse to  answer  them.    

 You are  now wi l l i ng  to  answer  them.   Do you 

conf i rm tha t?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson,  I  do  conf i rm.   We have d i scussed  

w i th  Advocate  Bu the lez i .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay,  no  thank you.   I  apprec ia te  

tha t  change o f  a t t i tude.   I  apprec ia te  tha t  now you are  

w i l l i ng  to  respond to  the  quest ions comprehens ive ly.   In  

te rms o f  t ime f rame,  Mr  Buthe lez i  today is  what?   25  May.   

I f  we,  i f  I  say  submi t  by  5  June,  i s  tha t  f ine? 

ADV BUTHELEZI :   That  i s  doab le  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Sor ry?  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   I  wou ld  ask  because 5  June is  a  

Saturday Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   10 

ADV BUTHELEZI :   I  wou ld  ask  fo r  Monday the  7 t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Then Monday wou ld  be  7 t h?  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Yes Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   7  June?  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Yes Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .   

ADV BUTHELEZI :   The reason is  t ha t  Cha i r,  we o f ten  have 

de lays  w i th  pos i t ions  and d is tance and . . . [ in te rvenes ]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  no  tha t  i s  f ine .   That  i s  f ine .   Okay,  

then Ms Myen i ,  I  am go ing  to  i ssue a  d i rec t i ve  in  te rms o f  20 

Regu la t ion  10(6 )  o f  the  regu la t ions o f  the  commiss ion ,  

d i rec t ing  you to  de l i ver  to  the  commiss ion  an  a f f idav i t  in  

wh ich  you answer  these quest ions  by  on  or  be fore  Monday  

the  7 t h  o f  June,  and your  counse l  has ind ica ted  tha t  that  

t ime f rame is  f ine .   You unders tand? 



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 161 of 243 
 

MS MYENI :   I  do  unders tand Cha i rperson,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   The d i rec t i ve  tha t  I  there fore  

i ssue is  tha t  in  terms o f  Regu la t ion  10(6)  o f  the  regu la t ions 

o f  the  commiss ion ,  I  d i rec t  Ms Myen i ,  Ms Duduz i le  Cynth ia  

Myen i ,  to  de l i ver  to  the  Secre tary  o f  the  Commiss ion  on  or  

be fore  Monday,  7  June 2021 an a f f idav i t  o r  a f f i rmed  

dec lara t ion  in  wh ich  she answers  the  quest ions  wh ich  

have,  wh ich  are  inc luded in  th is  bund le ,  s ta r t ing  f rom page  

22.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Go ing  up to  page 27.   Okay,  tha t  i s  the 

d i rec t i ve .    

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r,  we have taken note  o f  

tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV HOFMEYR:   I t  now leaves fo r  me to  hand over  to  my 

learned f r iend.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   Maybe we cou ld  jus t  take  a  br ie f  

ad journment .   20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV HOFMEYR:   There  might  be  a  mov ing  o f  f i l es  e tce te ra  

tha t  needs to  take  p lace.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  okay.   Okay,  tha t  par t  Ms  Myen i  

re la ted  to  the  av ia t ion  work  s t ream which  inc ludes SAA.   
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The next  par t  re la tes  to  Eskom.   I  am go ing  to  ad journ  fo r  

f i ve  to  say ten  m inutes  and then when I  come back we w i l l  

then dea l  w i th  the  Eskom re la ted  i ssues.    

 You unders tand?  

MS MYENI :   Thank you Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  r igh t .   We ad journ .    

INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes Mr Seleka are you ready? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  am Chairperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   The oath was not  administered ear l ier to  

Ms Myeni  is i t  not? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  do not  th ink so Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Please administer the oath or  

aff i rmat ion to Ms Myeni .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your fu l l  names for the record.  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  th ink she is f rozen.   Can you hear  me Ms 

Myeni? 

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson I  can hear you wel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Can you hear my Registrar as wel l?   20 

She is going to ask … 

MS MYENI:   No I  d id not .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh she is going to… 

MS MYENI:   ( Inaudible).  

CHAIRPERSON:   She wi l l  ask you a quest ion just  now. 
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MS MYENI:   Thank you.  

REGISTRAR:   P lease state your fu l l  names for the record.  

MS MYENI:   Duduzi le Cynthia Myen i .  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any object ion to  taking the 

prescr ibed oath? 

MS MYENI:   I  do not  have any object ion.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you consider the oath binding on your 

conscience? 

MS MYENI:   I  do.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you solemnly swear that  the evidence you 10 

wi l l  g ive wi l l  be the t ruth;  the whole t ruth and nothing but  the 

t ruth;  i f  so please ra ise your r ight  hand and say,  so help me 

God. 

MS MYENI:   So help me God.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you very much.  We wi l l  be deal ing 

wi th the Eskom re lated evidence and Mr Seleka wi l l  put  

quest ions to you Ms Myeni .    Before she does so for the 

benef i t  of  the publ ic he wi l l  take a few minutes just  to 

or ientate the publ ic or remind them where you f i t  in – in 

regard to the issues of  Eskom and where your ev idence wi l l  20 

f i t  in.   Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chai rperson.   Ms Myeni  is 

cal led as a wi tness to test i fy in regard to the a l legat ions that  

are made are two – main ly two persons in relat ion to Eskom 

and in part icular the suspension of  the execut ives at  Eskom 
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in March 2015.  

 One of  the persons being Mr Nick Linnel l  has given 

evidence to the commission about a cal l  made to him by Ms 

Myeni  on the 6 t h  of  March 2015 to come to Pretor ia at  

President  – the president ia l  residence of  Mr Zuma – off ic ia l  

res idence of  Mr Zuma for a meet ing.    

 Ms – Mr Linnel l  has test i f ied that  he obl iged and went 

to Pretor ia on the same day of  that  cal l .   He had a meet ing 

there wi th Ms Myeni  according to him where he was told by 

Ms Myeni  that  the President  would l ike to in i t iate a 10 

commission of  inquiry or to have i t  in i t iated into Eskom’s 

affai rs  and that  Ms Myeni  has recommended to the President  

Mr Linnel l  to coordinate that  inqui ry.  

 The President  according to Mr Linnel l  could not  jo in  

that  meet ing and as they parted wi th – as he parted wi th Ms 

Myeni  there was an understanding that  there wi l l  be a 

meet ing in Durban on the 8t h of  March 2015 and that  Mr 

Linnel l  wi l l  be requi red to at tend to which he agreed.  

 That  meet ing of  the 8 t h d id take place at  which the 

second witness who test i f ied before the commission was also 20 

present  being Mr Tsotsi  and they both Mr Tsotsi  and Mr 

Linnel l  have related what t ranspi red in that  meet ing in regard 

to what was discussed,  role played by Ms Myeni  and the 

informat ion provided.  

 The second meet ing wi th the President  what  was 
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d iscussed in that  meet ing and what proposals were made for  

them to go away and implement part icular ly wi th the board.  

 So that  – that  is  in a nutshel l  the reasons why Ms 

Myeni  has been cal led to provide her version in response to 

that  evidence presented before the commission.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  a smal l  deta i l .   I  th ink the – I  th ink Mr 

Tsotsi  said that  the former President  Mr Zuma said to  him at  

the end of  the meet ing that  he should raise the issues that  

they have discussed at  the meet ing or the suspension of  the 

execut ives and the issue of  an inquiry wi th the board and he 10 

– that  is Mr Zuma would in turn raise the issue wi th – or 

issues wi th the Minister who was not  present  at  the meet ing.  

 So I  just  wanted to clar i fy that  part .   Okay al r ight .   So 

you – you understand Ms Myeni  where your  assis tance is  

requi red.   You understand the issues.  

MS MYENI:   I  do understand Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay a lr ight .   Now I  – I  am hoping that  

we wi l l  be able to hear you wi thout  any di ff icul ty wi th your  

mask on.   But  i f  we do not  hear you we would l ike you to  

consider i f  you are far f rom everybody tak ing i t  off .   But  i f  we 20 

can hear you and there is no problem then that  would f ine.   

Is that  f ine wi th you? 

MS MYENI:   I t  is f ine wi th me Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay al r ight .   Mr Seleka so far I  th ink I  can 

her.  
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ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Thank you Chai r.   The  -  the bundle 

we wi l l  use Chai rperson is Eskom Bundle 6  Ms Myeni  I  

bel ieve you have been emai led an electronic l ink to access 

this bundle – Eskom Bundle 6.    

MS MYENI:   Yebo Mr Seleka I  have Bundle 6.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes thank you very much.  Wel l  we do not  

have an aff idavi t  f rom you but  we have your statement to the 

Parl iamentary Por t fo l io Commit tee which is on page 183 of  10 

that  bundle.   I  be l ieve the hard copy page number ing is the 

same as the elect ronic version of  the bundle.   

 So you fol low the black paginat ion on the lef t  – the  

top lef t  hand side corner.  

MS MYENI:   I  do.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Are you there? 

MS MYENI:   I  am here on 180.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   183.  

MS MYENI:   Yes.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   You are there.  20 

MS MYENI:   I  am there.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you.    

MS MYENI:   Mr Seleka  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes Ma’am.  

MS MYENI:   May I  p lease address the Chairperson just  for  
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one second? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes you may do so Ms Myeni .  

MS MYENI:   (Speaking in  vernacular)  I  am appearing – 

commission.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .    

ADV SELEKA SC:   Chair  I  heard a part  of  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ms Myeni  has addressed me in Is iZulu.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Which I  happen to know at  least .   I  do not  

know many languages but  Is iZulu is my language.   10 

 Now I  am not  going to t ranslate what she wanted to 

say because i f  we had known we would have arranged for an 

interpreter.   But  she requests permission to respond in  

Is iZulu.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I  heard that .  

CHAIRPERSON:   She says because there are many people 

including her neighbours who may wish to hear exact ly what  

her side of  the story is because they have been hear ing a l l  

k inds of  al legat ions against  her.  

 Now of  course for  today a l l  we are deal ing wi th is the 20 

Eskom related evidence and not  everything.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Now I  th ink I  must  ask whether Mr 

Buthelezi  has anything to say.   Mr Buthelezi .  

ADV BUTHELEZI:    No Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   You have noth ing to say? 

ADV BUTHELEZI:    No Chai rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay Ms Myeni  we do al low people in th is 

commission to test i fy in thei r  languages but  we – we – i f  they 

are test i fy ing in a language other  than Is i  – in Engl ish – 

Engl ish then make arrangements for  an interpreter  who can 

interpret  for everybody.  

 So because you d id not  not i fy us that  you would l ike 

to use Is iZulu today no arrangements have been made or an 

interpreter to be avai lab le.    I  do understand IsiZulu and Mr 10 

Seleka may have an understanding of  Is iZulu – I  do not  know 

how far but  he I  th ink has some understanding.   I  have 

reason to bel ieve that  he would prefer that  the t ranslat ion or  

the language be the answers be in Engl ish.    

 So we have – we have that  problem and – and of  

course we do not  have t ime.  I f  th is  was last  year  maybe we 

could st i l l  adjourn and arrange an interpreter.   So I  th ink 

your  – you reason for wishing to give answers in  Is iZulu f rom 

what you have said and f rom what we know f rom your  

previous evidence is not  because of  any di ff icul ty wi th 20 

Engl ish i t  is s imple because you would l ike people who know 

you,  your neighbours and other  people maybe business 

associates to  hear  you explain your  side of  the story in  

Is iZulu.  

 I f  I  am correct  in that  understanding maybe there 
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might  be a way that  can be considered to take care of  your 

concern and I  am thinking aloud r ight  now so everybody wi l l  

have to indicate what they think about th is.  

 That  would be that  we agree that  you give your  

answers in Engl ish but  you – you feel  f ree af ter today to  

submit  a Zulu version of  your answers to the commission 

wi th a view that  the commission can consider maybe i t  can 

be part  of  the record of  the commission as an exhibi t  and 

maybe i t  may also be made avai lable on the websi te of  the 

commission for anybody who wishes to access i t  –  maybe 10 

journal ists might  – who wri te for Zulu media might  be 

interested and – and publ ished i t  – publ ish i t  in  Is iZulu 

newspapers.  

 In that  way 

1.  We wi l l  have been able to cont inue this evening wi th 

your evidence as planned but  at  the same t ime we wi l l  

make sure that  your desi re to put  your side of  the story 

in Is iZulu is addressed even i f  i t  is not  addressed the 

way you would have preferred.  

What do you th ink of  that? 20 

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson (speaking in vernacular) .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  okay.   And do – would – do you think 

you wi l l  later on maybe submit  a  Zulu version of  your  

answers or is that  something you wi l l  th ink about later? 

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson i t  is something that  I  wi l l  th ink 
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about  later.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   (speaking in vernacular) .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Alr ight .   Okay obviously you al l  

would have heard what I  explained to Ms Myeni  about  the 

logist ical  chal lenges of  accommodat ing Is iZulu in  

ci rcumstances when pr ior arrangements had not  been made 

because we do not  have an interpreter.    

 Her response is that  she appreciates the fact  that  

because the pr ior  arrangements were not  made i t  is going to 10 

be di ff icul t  and she agrees to give answers in Engl ish for the 

work of  the commission to cont inue and she wi l l  consider  the 

suggest ion later  whether to later  on furnish a Zulu vers ion of  

her answers.  

 (Speaking in vernacular)  Ms Myeni .   

MS MYENI:   (Speaking in vernacular) .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay alr ight .   Thank you very much.  Okay 

al r ight .   We may proceed now.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chairperson.   Ms Myeni  

Bundle – Eskom Bundle 6 as I  have al ready referred to has 20 

your statement and I  am drawing i t  to your at tent ion in order  

– in the event  that  you wish to refer to i t  you can certa inly do 

so.   I t  is  the only document that  the commission has that  

contains your version.   I t  is a statement which you have 

submit ted to the Par l iamentary Port fo l io Commit tee.  
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 You have seen i t  dated 5 March 2018.   

MS MYENI:   Yes Mr Seleka I  have seen i t  in f ront  of  me and 

i t  is my – indeed my statement.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   So that  –  that  statement runs f rom 

page 183 to 193.   And now I  want to  refer you to the aff idavi t  

of  Mr Nick Linnel l  – Nicholas Linnel l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Do you want to conf i rm with her f i rs t  i f  she 

has not  al ready done so that  th is is  – the statement that  she 

submit ted to the Port fo l io Commit tee of  Publ ic Enterpr ises in  

Parl iament in March 2018 and whether i t  is contents are t rue 10 

and correct .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes I  ….  

MS MYENI:   Chai rperson thank you very much I  – I  d id not  

go through l ine by l ine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MS MYENI:   To check i f  i t  was not  tampered wi th but  for now 

what I  see is what  I  have wri t ten.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   But  the one that  you had submit ted to 

Parl iament you had checked and you were happy that  i ts 

contents were correct? 20 

MS MYENI:   True.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MS MYENI:   Yes Chairperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   Thank you Chai r.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   You may cont inue then Mr Seleka.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.   I  suppose – wel l  we can admit  i t  

i f… 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us admit  i t  ja.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Should we? 

CHAIRPERSON:   Let  us do that  immediately ja.   I  should 

admit  as Exhibi t?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  wi l l  be Exhibi t  U16 – let  me see.   I  wi l l  

g ive you the number just  now Chai r.   I  just  want to see – i t  

wi l l  be Exhibi t  U16.5.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   This statement which is unsigned of  

Ms D Myeni  dated 5 March 2018 which starts at  page 183 of  

the bundle,  Eskom Bundle 6 is admit ted and wi l l  be marked 

as Exhibi t  U16.5.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Thank you Chairperson.  Ms Myeni  then 

shal l  we please go to the aff idavi t  of  Mr Nick Linnel l  on page 

30 of  the same bundle.    

MS MYENI:   Page 30? 

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ja 30.   I t  starts f rom page 30.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  where your  quest ions are start ing.  20 

MS MYENI:   Mr Seleka I  am going to ask somebody to assist  

me here.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:    Sorry Chai r.   Sorry Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV BUTHELEZI:    We have got  two sets of  paginat ion the 

red and the black.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh we use the black.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:    The black.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

ADV BUTHELEZI:    I f  she could just  then refer to the black 

which is on the top lef t  hand corner.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   Ms Myeni  wherever Mr Seleka refers 

you to  a page number look at  the black numbers at  the top 

lef t  corner of  each page.  You may disregard the red 10 

numbers.  

MS MYENI:   Thank you Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  i f  document  tha t  does not  have tha t  

numbers ,  then he  w i l l  te l l  you  and in  tha t  event ,  we w i l l  use  

red  numbers  on ly  fo r  tha t  document .   Otherwise ,  jus t  s t i ck  

to  the  b lack  numbers .  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   A re  you a t  page 30?  

MS MYENI :    I  am be ing  ass i s ted  to  ge t  in to  page 30,  

Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Se leka,  I  was wonder ing  

whethe r  i t  wou ld  no t  be  qu icke r,  because i t  i s  a  ve ry  

nar row issue.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We jus t  –  i f  you  lead he r,  jus t  te l l  me in  
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her  own words how th is  who le  meet ing  in  Durban came 

about ,  to  ta lk  about  the  Pre to r ia  meet ing  w i th  Mr  L inne l l  

and how the  one in  Durban came about ,  what  was  

d iscussed,  and then,  when she has done to  te l l  the  who le  

vers ion ,  then you ask  he r  quest i ons.   I t  m igh t  be  qu icker  

tha t  way.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  do  you th ink?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  I  cou ld  do  so ,  Cha i r.   I  have in  

m ind to  te l l  her  what  Mr  N ick  L inne l l  has  sa id .   I  cou ld  10 

summar ise  i t  fo r  he r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  we le t  her  jus t  te l l  her  s ide  o f  the 

s tory.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  way,  when you te l l  her,  you can 

say:   Wel l ,  here  are  the  d i f fe rences between your  vers ion  

and Mr  L inne l l ’s  vers ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . in  regard  to  the  Pre tor ia  meet ing  is  

what  he  says wh ich  you have not  inc luded.   What  do  you  20 

say about  tha t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then. . .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  i t  m igh t  make th inks  qu icke r.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Cer ta in ly,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja ,  tha t  a lso . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  have you found page 30,  Ms  

Myen i?  

MS MYENI :    I  have found page 30 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    Miss . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   Okay.   Thank you,  Cha i r.   10 

Ms Myen i ,  we,  as  are  ou t l ined in  the  in t roduct ion  se t t ing  

ou t  the  background,  there  are  two w i tnesses who have 

tes t i f ied  be fore  the  Commiss ion .   But  as  the  Cha i rpe rson is  

suggest ing ,  I  w i l l  g ive  you the  oppor tun i ty  to  te l l  the 

Cha i rperson your  vers ion  in  regard  to  the  two meet ings  

tha t  have been a l leged  before  the  omiss ion  to  have taken 

p lace,  par t i cu la r l y  by  Mr  N ick  L inne l l .    

 The one meet ing  he  re fers  to  i s  t he  one the  6 t h  

o f  March  2015  in  Pre tor ia  a t  the  Pres ident ’s  o f f i c ia l  

res idence to  wh ich  he  was ca l led ,  he  say,  by  you.   And 20 

then the  o ther  meet ing  is  on  the  8 t h  o f  March ,  aga in  to  

wh ich ,  acco rd ing  to  h im,  he  was ca l led  by  you to  meet  w i th  

the  Pres ident  a t  the  Pres ident ’s  o f f i c ia l  res idence.    

 H is  a f f idav i t s  had  been –  were  g iven to  you las t  

year  in  August .   And I  w i l l  you  the  oppor tun i ty  to  g ive  your  
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s ide  o f  the  s to ry  t o  the  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  you l i ke  tha t  Ms Myen i?   In  o ther  

words,  you jus t  te l l  the  s to ry  as  you know i t  how i t  came 

about  tha t  Mr  L inne l l  came to  mee t  w i th  you in  Pre tor ia  on  

the  6 t h  o f  March  and how the  meet ing  i n  Durban  a t  the  

Pres ident ’s  o f f i c ia l  res idence came about ,  what  was 

d iscussed and on –  and the  bas is  on  wh ich  the  meet ing  

ended.    

 And thereaf te r,  Mr  Se leka w i l l  then  te l l  you  what  

the  o ther  two w i tnesses  have sa id  in  regard  to  mat te rs  t ha t  10 

may not  be  common cause between you and them.   And 

then g i ve  you a  chance to  respond  to  what  they have sa id .   

I s  tha t  f ine  w i th  you?  

MS MYENI :    That  i s  f ine ,  Cha i rperson.   Even i f  he  leads  

me . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    . . . to  ident i f y  those . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    . . . those areas tha t  perhaps are  cont rad i c t ing  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS MYENI :    . . .on  the  vers ion  fo r  Mr  L inne l l .  –  N ick  L inne l l  

and Mr  Tsots i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    But  . . . [ in te rvenes]  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 177 of 243 
 

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  f ine  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    . . .w i l l i ng .  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay I  th ink  jus t  te l l  us .   I t  m ight  take  

about  15-minutes  or  so ,  depend ing  –  bu t  jus t  te l l  us  how 

every th ing  happened and then he w i l l  ask  you ques t ions.  

MS MYENI :    So ,  Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MS MYENI :    . . .do  no t  be  su rpr i sed as  I  say  th is  because I  

have got ten  –  I  have to  say i t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MS MYENI :    I  h igh l igh ted  befo re  the  Commiss ion .   I  a lso  

h igh l igh ted ,  I  th ink  i t  was  te lephon ica l l y  and even to  the  

journa l i s ts  tha t  i t  i s  un for tunate  tha t  [ speak ing  vernacu lar ]  

by  Eskom,  we are  no t  de lv ing  in to  the  rea l  i ssues  tha t  led  

to  Mr  Tsots i  meet ing  me f i rs t .    

 I f  then we wan t  to  take  the  rou te  o f  jus t  

h igh l igh t ing  the  meet ings because there  was Mr  Zuma in  

those meet ings,  i t  can  be done so  Cha i rpe rson.   But  what  

i s  impor tan t  here .   How d id  I  ge t  to  meet  Mr  Tsots i?   He d id  20 

no t  te l l  you  or  he  d id  no t  address th is  Commiss ion .    

 I  d id  a lso  ra i se  the  fac t  tha t  in  –  fo r  me to  

address you Cha i rperson,  Mr  Tsots i  no t  have mis lead you 

because when he came to  me he had gone to  somebody 

e lse  and say to  ge t  the  meet ing  fac i l i ta ted  fo r  h im to  Mr  
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Zuma.    

 The purpose [speak ing  vernacu la r ]  . . .Eskom. . .  

[ speak ing  ve rnacu lar ]   Cha i rperson,  I  have h igh l igh ted  th is .   

There  was an in te rmed ia ry.   There  was a  person who  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay hang on Miss  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on Ms Myen i .   You sa id  someth ing  

in  i s iZu lu .   You w i l l  have to  t rans la te  i t  so  tha t  Mr  Se leka  

and o thers  can hear  what  you were  say ing  about  tha t  par t .  10 

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   I  h igh l igh t  someth ing  and 

then I  t ry  to  t rans la te  i t  bu t  in  the  in te res t  o f  t ime 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h ’m.  

MS MYENI :    There  was somebody,  Cha i rperson ,  tha t  I  

requested tha t  tha t  person be ca l l ed  as  we l l .   That  person 

who was the  l ink  be tween me and Mr Tsots i .   But  i f  we want  

to  p lease those l i ke  to  hear  Mr  Zuma pres id ing  over  a  

meet ing  w i th  Mr  Tsots i .   I t  i s  m is lead ing  and i t  i s  

sensua l ised o f  Mr  Zuma’s  invo lvement  o r  my invo lvement  20 

to  ge t  –  because we are  ta lk ing  about  me [speak ing  

vernacu lar ]    

 I  am go ing  to  be  very  c lea r  he re .   I  was never  in  

any board  o f  Eskom.   I  had no in te res t  a t  Eskom.   The 

person who had prob lems a t  Eskom is  Mr  Tsots i .   Those  
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p rob lems were  h igh l igh ted  but  when he came to  me,  he  

never  sa t  w i th  me.    That  i s  the  prob lem we have but  I  took  

i t  as  a  co l league tha t  a  co l league comes to  me.    

 That  a  co l league comes to  me,  he  wants  an  

ass is tan t ,  he  wants  to  meet  w i th  Pres ident  Zuma.   As a  

mat te r  o f  fac t ,  cha i rperson.   Mr  Tsots i  had gone w i th  

another  Ind ian  pe rson to  meet  a  cer ta in  lady  to  ask  fo r  the  

meet ing .   The lady sa id :   No,  I  am not  in te res ted  to  ask  fo r  

a  meet ing  w i th  P res ident  Zuma.   I  was the  second person 

to  say:   Okay he v is i ted  the  co l league.   I s  the  cha i rperson 10 

o f  an  SOE.   I  can ass i s t .    

 And tha t ,  Cha i r  –  th is  who le  th ing  is  what  so  

dramat ized by  h im lead ing  the  prophets  o f  say ing  th ings  

tha t  a re  inaccura te .   There fore ,  the  meet ing(? )  take  p lace.   

In  a l l  the  areas tha t  have ment ioned in  Durban as  we l l  as  

in  Pre tor ia  meet ings d id  take  p lace.   But  these meet ings 

took p lace a t  the  behest  o f  Mr  Zo la  Tsots i  as  my co l league  

because we cha i red  the  SOE’s .    

 But  in  te rms o f  –  mat te rs  o f  in te res t  in  the  a f fa i rs  

o f  Eskom.   I  have too  many t roub les  or  p rob lems or  20 

cha l lenges and  many respons ib i l i t i es  a t  SAA to pay  

a t ten t ion  to  i ssues a t  Eskom.   There fore ,  Cha i r,  the  

meet ings d id  take  p lace.   I  w i l l  no t  remember  the  contex t  o f  

the  meet ings bu t  the  issues o f  the  execut ive  tha t  i s  

h igh l igh ted  or  was h igh l igh ted ,  I  th ink  Mr L inne l l  was  
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cor rec t  to  say he  was respons ib le  fo r  anyth ing  and  

every th ing  tha t  happened to  Eskom.    

 Mr  Se leka,  the  las t  par t  tha t  I  am go ing  to  say 

tha t .   Mr  L inne l l ’s  v iew and Mr  L inne l l ’s  vers ion  and  

a f f idav i t  i s  h i s .   I  have a  s ta tement  be fo re  you,  

Cha i rperson.   I t  is  my s ta tement .   I t  i s  my vers ion .   I t  i s  my 

to ta l  reco l lec t ion  o f  the  events .   But  I  was  deep ly  

d isappo in ted  to  learn  tha t  Mr  Zo la  Tsots i  wanted to  use me 

to  h ide  beh ind  i ssues o f  co r rup t ion  tha t  he  was invo lved in  

a t  Eskom h imse l f .    10 

 There  is  a  s ta tement  Cha i r  tha t  I  sa id  he  is  

m isrepresent ing . . .   H is  vers ion  was inaccura te .   Jus t  

because [speak ing  ve rnacu lar ]   That  i s  no t  what  I  –  I  was 

b i t (? )  by  Mr  Tso ts i .   Mr  Tsots i  d id  no t  ins t ruc t  me to  

fac i l i ta te  a  meet ing  fo r  h im to  ask  the  fo rmer  Pres ident  to  

f i re  peop le .   I  have never  been ins t ruc ted  by  Mr  Zuma in  

any p lace or  take  ins t ruc t ions about  how the  funct ion ing  o f  

any en t i t y  o f  government  shou ld  be .   Who to  h i re .   Who to  

f i re .   That  has never  been.    

 So,  I  th ink  in  a  nu tshe l l  Cha i r.   Meet ings d id  take  20 

p lace but  i t  was a t  the  behest  o f  the  Cha i rpe rson o f  Eskom.   

No meet ing  took p lace a t  the  behest  o f  Buth i (? )  Zu lu(? ) .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Now,  Mr  L inne l l  sa id  tha t  i t  was  

on the  6 t h  o f  March  2015 when the  meet ing  –  when he had 

a  meet ing  w i th  you in  Pre tor ia  a t  the  o f f i c ia l  res idence o f  
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Mr  Zuma.   Now does tha t  da te  r ing  a  be l l  w i th  you?  You 

have no prob lem tha t  tha t  i s  the  da te  o f  the  meet ing? 

MS MYENI :    I  have a  p rob lem,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MS MYENI :    Because I  do  no t  have my d ia ry  here  w i th  me.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    O therwise ,  Char.   Fo r  every  meet ing  we wou ld  

have . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MS MYENI :    . . . I  a lways had a  d ia ry  where  I  wou ld  wr i te  the  10 

minutes  or  whatever  no tes  o f  a  par t i cu la r  meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS MYENI :    So  I  cannot  say  on  the  face  tha t  there  was a  

meet ing  a t  Mah lamba Nd lopfu ,  the  o f f ic ia l  res idence.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    I  cannot  say  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   The one tha t  we have been to ld  tha t  

was on the  8 t h  o f  March  in  Durban ,  tha t  da te  a lso ,  i s  your  

answer  the  same or  tha t  you know to  have on the  8 t h ?  

MS MYENI :    My answer  wou ld  be  the  same,  Cha i r.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS MYENI :    My answer,  Cha i rperson,  wou ld  be  the  same.   

I  want  to  h igh l igh t  someth ing  Cha i r  w i th  your  pe rmiss ion  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MS MYENI :    . . .w i thout ,  aga in ,  tak ing  a  lo t  o f  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  h ’m?  

MS MYENI :    I f  I  had  been  in  the  area,  l i ke  fo r  ins tance,  

Cha i r.   As  the  pe rson who was runn ing  the  foundat ion .   The 

foundat ion  is  an  NGO.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    I f  I  was in  Pre tor ia  o r  in  Johannesburg  fo r  a  

meet ing  or  fo r  o ther  reasons(?)  and there  emerges  a  need 

fo r  us  to  have a  meet ing  o f  the  foundat ion ,  i t  was cost  

e f fec t i ve  fo r  me  to  go  and meet  the  persons  o f  the 10 

foundat ions.   So i f  there  are  o ther  meet ings a longs ide  w i th  

those –  tha t  meet ing ,  there  was no prob lem wi th  me 

do ing . . .   [Speaker  i s  unc lea r ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MS MYENI :    So  i t  i s  no t  l i ke  tha t .   One wou ld  leave one ’s  

res idence to  go  and have a  mee t ing  because the re  is  a  

persona l  in te res t  on  a  mat te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay now . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    Espec ia l l y  w i th  a  mat te r  o f  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Now is  my unders tand ing  cor rec t  20 

tha t  what  you a re  say ing  is  tha t  Mr  Zo la  Tsots i  was the  

Cha i rperson o f  the  Eskom Board ,  was the  person who 

approved you and he asked you  to  fac i l i ta te  a  meet ing  

be tween h imse l f  and Mr  Zuma?  I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :    No.   No,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    There  is  a  m idd le(? )  pe rson. . .  [Speaker  

unc lea r [  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja?  

MS MYENI :    . . . tha t  approached me . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MYENI :    . . . to  meet  Mr  Tsots i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    That  person was sent  by  Mr  Tsots i  to  me.   I  

have no te lephone number  o f  Mr  Tsots i  to  submi t .   I  d id  no t  10 

know Mr  Tsots i .   I  knew h im as the  Cha i rpe rson o f  Eskom.   

So i t  was the  person tha t  I  was say ing  [speak ing  

vernacu lar ]  Cha i rpe rson.   We keep ta lk ing  around th is  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  te l l  us  who tha t  person is .  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  no ,  no ,  no .   I  do  no t  want  to  

incr im inate  myse l f  Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [ laughs]  

MS MYENI :    . . .by  ment ion ing  the  names o f  the  peop le .   

That  in fo rmat ion  -  th is  Commiss ion  shou ld  have  asked:   20 

How d id  he  get  the  appo in tment  w i th  me. . .   Because in  h is  

appearance,  he  never  ment ioned tha t .   He met  me wi thout  

any o ther  person .   We met  together  w i th  the  Pres ident . . .  

[Speaker  unc lea r ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]  
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MS MYENI :    I  l i s tened to  what  he  wanted.   I  l i s tened to  –  I  

l i s tened to  h is  p rob lems,  what  he  wanted and  I  took  

every th ing  he  sa id  Cha i r.   I  have no reason to  doubt  what  

he  was ask ing  o r  I  had no reason  to  go  and ver i f y  why he 

wanted to  meet  the  Pres ident  and  o ther  person who wants  

to  meet  the  Pres ident .   

CHAIRPERSON :    So  . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

MS MYENI :    So I  d id  no t  a lso  no t  know tha t  i t  wou ld  be  a  

c r ime fo r  h im to  meet  the  Pres ident .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you say he  d id  no t  te l l  you  why he  10 

wanted to  meet  the  Pres ident?  

MS MYENI :    H imse l f ,  Cha i r,  d id  no t  te l l  me the  o the r  

vers ion  o f  h is  p rob lems a t  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    Bu t  the  f i rs t  th ings tha t  he  sa id  to  me ,  to  ask  

fo r  an  appo in tment  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    . . .because I  was re luc tan t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    I  was re luc tan t .   You know,  Cha i rperson.   I  20 

have a  hundred and one reasons why I  was re luc tan t .   But  

I  sa id  le t  me go and meet  h im . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    . . .because the  person d id  no t  come to  me 

once or  tw ice .   The person tha t  he  sent  to  me.    
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CHAIRPERSON :    What  d id  he  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    Then,  eventua l l y,  I  went  to  meet  h im 

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  d id  th is  person . . . [ in te rvenes ]  

MS MYENI :    There  was no Mr  L inne l l .   There  was no  

Mr  Zuma.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  d id  th is  pe rson say to  you?  D id  he  

or  she say Mr  Tso ts i  wou ld  l i ke  to  meet  w i th  you?  

MS MYENI :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.   He  wants  me to  adv ise  h im 

and a lso ,  he  had some cha l lenges there .   He does not  have  10 

a  lega l  adv i so r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    And he asked me tha t  I  must  a lso  adv ise  the  

Cha i rperson as  to  who we a r r i ved a t  appo in t ing  a  lega l  

adv isor  as  the  board .    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    So  I  sa id  those are  i ssues tha t  can be  

d iscussed.   I  do  no t  have a  prob lem wi th  tha t .   Then he 

sa id  he  has issues,  he  has go t  p rob lems and they knew(?) ,  

l i ke . . .  fo r  do ing  a l l  tha t  –  the  necessary  process o f  ge t t ing  20 

a  lega l  adv i ce .   Oh,  sor ry,  a  lega l  adv i so r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    Then I  sa id  to  h im in  o rder  fo r  you to  do  tha t ,  

you need your  board .   You cannot  appo in t  somebody 

w i thout  a  board  reso lu t ion .   So I  to ld  h im a f te r  meet ing  
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w i th  h im –  okay  dur ing  the  meet ing ,  our  meet ing ,  tha t  I  

sa id :   I f  you  are  to  do  th is ,  you w i l l  need the  board .   The 

board  must  be  on  your  s ide .   And your  board  must  see the  

need i f  you fee l  there  is  a  need fo r  h im to  appo in t  a  lega l  

adv isor,  the  board  must  be  on  your  s ide .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    And then when. . .   Sor ry,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    Go ahead.  

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  I  th ink  you a re  now ta lk ing  about  the  10 

meet ing  be tween yourse l f  and Mr  Tsots i .  

MS MYENI :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  was s t i l l  ta lk ing  about  the  meet ing 

be tween yourse l f  and the  pe rson tha t  you have so  fa r  no t  

named who was  –  who sought  to  fac i l i ta te  a meet ing  

be tween yourse l f  and Mr  Tsots i .   So tha t  i s  the  one tha t  I  

was s t i l l  a t .   So,  d id  tha t  person s imp ly  say:   Mr  Tsots i  

wou ld  l i ke  to  meet  w i th  you to  d iscuss cer ta in  i ssues 

w i thout  te l l ing  you what  i ssues?  

MS MYENI :    He d id  no t  e lude  to de ta i l ing  i t  o r  –  our  20 

meet ing  bu t  he  appeared to  be  say ing  he  has cha l l enges -  

Mr  Tsots i  has cha l lenges a t  Eskom.   He wou ld  l i ke  to  

d iscuss w i th  h im.   In  any case,  Cha i r,  rea l l y,  you w i l l  reca l l .   

Ms Rantho who d id  ind i ca te  tha t  as  SOE’s  we had the  

Cha i rperson Rantho tha t  was in t roduced.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Misses who?  

MS MYENI :    So  the  cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry.   Misses who?  

MS MYENI :    The  lady in  Par l iament ,  Mr  Cha i r.   The  lady in  

Par l iament .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  one is  the  lady in  Par l iament?  

MS MYENI :    The one tha t  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MR BUTHELEZI :    Cha i rperson,  Ms  Rantho.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  Ms Rantho.   Ms Rantho.   Okay.   Yes,  

cont inue.    10 

MS MYENI :    No,  he  d id  –  she d id  ind i ca te  tha t  the 

cha i rpersons wou ld  in te rac t .   Obv ious ly,  Cha i r,  you  wou ld  

perhaps unders tand what  one cha i rperson has done and  

another  SOE and  another  one has done th is  o r  another  one 

has gone th rough  a  cer ta in  b ig  cha l lenge or  someth ing  l i ke  

tha t .   And then you wou ld  share  and compare  no tes .   But  

no t  dec id ing  fo r  each o ther  because you cannot  –  you can 

never  go  and dec ide  fo r  another  SOE,  Cha i r.   You  cannot  

p res ide  over  another  SOE. . .  [Speaker  unc lea r ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   So as  I  unders tand i t  and I  want  20 

you to  cor rec t  me  i f  I  am wrong.   The person,  tha t  you are  

no t  name,  approached you and sa id  Mr Tsots i  wou ld  l i ke  a  

meet ing  w i th  you .   He has some cha l lenges a t  Eskom and  

you agreed to  meet  w i th  Mr  Tsots i .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And tha t  was the  end o f  your  

d iscuss ion  w i th  th is  o ther  pe rson?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i r,  no ,  no ,  no .   No ,  no ,  no .   Cha i r?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    So r ry.   I t  i s  no t  tha t  Mr  Tsots i  wants  to  you 

see,  he  has cha l l enges a t  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  what  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    Mr  Tsots i  wou ld  l i ke  to  see you?  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    He  wou ld  l i ke  to  unders tand cer ta in  th ings 10 

f rom you.   He wou ld  a lso  wants  to  know how you went  

about  appo in t ing  your  –  the  lega l  adv isor  in  your  board .   

So I  thought  i t  was an open d iscuss ion .   That  i s  why.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay,  okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   And 

then your  response was to  agree to  a  meet ing  w i th  

Mr  Tsots i?  

MS MYENI :    Not  the  f i rs t  t ime . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS MYENI :    . . .when tha t  person ca l led  bu t  the  second  

t ime,  I  agreed.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   And th is  person was speak ing  to  

you over  the  phone and not  in  a  meet ing?  

MS MYENI :    No,  i t  was in  –  i t  was over  the  phone.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Over  the  phone.   Okay a l r igh t .    

MS MYENI :    I t  was ove r  the  phone.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    And you have a  reco l lec t ion  o f  whethe r  

th is  was before  March in  2015 o r  whether  i t  was  even in  

2014?  

MS MYENI :    No,  Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You cannot  remember?  

MS MYENI :    I  wou ld  be  ly ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay tha t  i s  a l r i gh t .  

MS MYENI :    I  wou ld  be  ly ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  wou ld  –  your  –  i s  you r  reco l lec t ion  

tha t  you –  i t  d id  no t  take  long a f te r  you had agreed to  meet  10 

Mr  Tsots i  tha t  the  two o f  you met?  

MS MYENI :    Yes,  Cha i r  bu t  a l l  was dependent  on  my  

ava i lab i l i t y  in  Johannesburg .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MYENI :    I  was not  go ing  to  f l y  to  Joburg  to  go  and  

meet  w i th  Mr  Tsots i ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r igh t .   Now -  we w i l l  p roceed to  

hear  about  you r  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Tsots i .   Now you a re  go ing  

to  have to  te l l  me who the  person is  because f rom what  

your  d iscuss ion  was in  te rms o f  your  ev idence between 20 

yourse l f  and th is  o ther  person,  i t  seems tha t  i t  was an  

innocuous d i scuss ion .   That  i s  why you a lso  had no 

prob lem agree ing  to  meet  w i th  Mr  Tsots i .    

 A l l  th is  person sa id  was:   Mr  Tsots i  wou ld  l i ke  to  

meet  w i th  you.   He has some cha l lenges a t  Eskom and he 
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wou ld  l i ke  to  know how you went  about  appo in t ing  a  lega l  

adv isor  a t  SAA.   Do you unders tand?  

MS MYENI :    I  unders tand,  Cha i rperson.   What  I  have seen 

here . . .   Maybe  w i th  your  permiss ion ,  Cha i r.  [aud io  

record ing  is  sw ing ing /warp ing ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    On page. . .   o f  Mr  L inne l l .   On page 28  o f  h is  

a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  i s  on  page 28?  What  i s  the  

number  a t  the  top ,  the  b lack  number  a t  the  top?  10 

MS MYENI :    I t  i s  06028.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .28   [Microphone not  sw i tched on]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A re  you look ing  a t  the  red  numbers?  

MS MYENI :    I  am look ing  a t  the  b lack  numbers ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mis te r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    I t  i s  a t  the  end o f  Mr  L inne l l ’s  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A f f idav i t .  

MS MYENI :    . . .a ff idav i t .   I t  i s  paragraph 6 ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Parag raph?  20 

MS MYENI :    Paragraph 6 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    S ix?  

MS MYENI :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   Wel l ,  parag raph 6  i s  a t  page  

31 in  te rms o f  the  b lack  numbers  bu t  parag raph –  page 28  
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in  te rms o f  the  red  numbers  on  my bund le .   I s  tha t  the 

same wi th  you,  Mr  Se leka?  

MS MYENI :    On . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Sor ry,  I  am. . .   She is  re fe r r ing  to  a  

d i f fe ren t  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A f f idav i t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  i s  a  s ta tement .   I t  i s  a  supp lementa ry  

s ta tement  o f  Mr  L inne l l .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  i t  in  th is  bund le?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  i s  in  th is  bund le ,  page 28,  the  b lack 

pag ina t ion  a t  the  top  o f  the  page.   So you are  go ing . . .   

Yes,  the  Cha i r  w i l l  have to  go  back .   So . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l . . .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    I t  s ta r ts  on  page 27,  Cha i r.   Page 27  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  see there  is  a  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Second supp lementary  a f f idav i t  to  the 

commi t tee  . . . [ in te rvenes]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    . . .Por t fo l io  Commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay  yes now I  am there  Ms Myen i .   I  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 192 of 243 
 

am a t  parag raph 6  a t  page 28.   That  i s ,  ac tua l l y  –  oh ,  ja .   I t  

i s  h is  second supp lementary  s ta tement .   Yes,  I  am there .    

MS MYENI :    Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes?  

MS MYENI :    . . . th is  i s  the  person tha t  –  tha t  i s  the 

cha i rperson –  tha t  i s  the  person tha t  i s  named the re  

. . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS MYENI :    . . .a t  the  end o f  pa rag raph 6 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

MS MYENI :    I t  i s  pu t  in  inver ted  commas.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   That  person  was – 

have been ment ioned in  th is  Commiss ion  as  hav ing  been 

present  a t  the  Durban meet ing .   He is ,  in  te rms o f  

parag raph 6 ,  the  person you are  re fer r ing  to ,  i s  re fe r red  to  

as  Jabu Maswangany i .   He was re fer red  to  by  Mr  Tsots i .   I  

th ink  a lso  by  Mr  L inne l l  i f  I  am not  m is taken.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  cer ta in ly  by  Mr  Tsots i .   Okay  so  tha t  

i s  the  person who approached you and sa id  Mr Tsots i  20 

wou ld  l i ke  to  have a  meet ing  w i th  you because he has 

some cha l lenges a t  Eskom but  he  wou ld  a l so  l i ke  to  know 

how you went  about  appo in t ing  a  lega l  adv isor.   I s  tha t  

r igh t?  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   And then your  meet ing  w i th  

Mr  Tsots i ,  a t  your  f i rs t  meet ing  then.   Would  you l i ke  to  te l l  

me what  was d i scussed between  he two o f  you in  tha t  

meet ing?  

MS MYENI :    Look,  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  want  to  –  look ,  I  do  no t  

want  th ings to  g ive  you inaccura te  s ta tements  here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    I  am before  a  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MS MYENI :    A d isc ip l inary  inqu i ry  tha t  I  must  –  where  the  10 

repor ts  come about ,  I  must  temper  every th ing  I  say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  have the  m inutes .   I  do  no t  have 

minutes  o f  any meet ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    . . . tha t  took p lace in  any p lace w i th  Mr Tsots i .   

But  a l l  I  am say ing  is  tha t .   The s ta tement  tha t  I  submi t ted  

to  Par l iament  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    . . .and the  s ta tement  tha t  i s  be fore  you,  20 

Cha i rperson . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  

MS MYENI :    . . . i t  con ta ins  eve ry th ing  tha t  I  remember  a t  

the  t ime and tha t  I ,  in  my unders tand ing ,  was the  vers ion  

tha t  I  wou ld  ra i se  my hand and take an oath  to  say th i s  i s  
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what  my unders tand ing  was.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r i gh t .   Mr  Se leka,  do  you want  to  

take  i t  f rom there? 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you,  Cha i r.   Ms Myen i ,  le t  us  go  

back to  Mr  L inne l l ’s  ve rs ion .   I t  was not  c lear  to  me – le t  us  

look  a t  paragraph  5  on  page 31.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  why do you not  jus t  pu t  the  

quest ion  w i thout ,  Mr  Se leka . . . [ in tervenes]  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    H ’m.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .and her  to  look?  Jus t  say  what  

Mr  L inne l l  says .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  i s  r igh t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.    

ADV SELEKA SC :    That  i s  f ine .    

MS MYENI :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  go ing  to  be  fas te r.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    So you wou ld  have seen f rom h is  

a f f idav i t  p resented to  you las t  yea r,  tha t  he  –  he  ta lks  

about  a  meet ing  to  wh ich  you ca l led  h im on the  20 

6 t h  o f  March 2016  in  Pre tor ia .   I  know you say you  do not  

have a  reco l lec t ion  o f  the  da te  bu t  do  you conf i rm the  

meet ing  hav ing  taken p lace in  Pre tor ia ,  you and h im a t  the 

Pres ident ’s  o f f i c ia l  res idence?  

CHAIRPERSON :    She has conf i rmed the  meet ings.   You 
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con f i rmed tha t  the  two meet ings d id  take  p lace.  

MS MYENI :    I  con f i rmed the  meet ings bu t  I  cannot  conf i rm 

the  da tes .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  tha t  i s  a l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   I s  i t  t rue  tha t  you were  the  one who 

ca l led  Mr  L inne l l  and asked h im to  come to  Pre tor ia  fo r  the  

meet ing?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  wherever  I  wou ld  be ,  i f  I  am in  

tha t  par t i cu la r  a rea  a t  tha t  par t i cu la r  t ime and there  is  

need fo r  a  meet ing  I  wou ld  use the  same – the  venue,  I  10 

wou ld  use the  t ime because,  Cha i r,  l i ke  I  sa id  to  you,  i t  

was cost -e f fec t i ve  me to  have meet ings i n  Jo ’bu rg  when I  

am in  Jo ’bu rg .   I f  I  go  to  Cape Town I  met  N ick  L inne l l ,  he  

s tays  in  Cape Town,  we met  a lso  i n  Cape Town so  i t  i s  no t  

l i ke  we met  once  or  on ly  in  Pre tor ia  o r  th is  spec i f i c  da te .   

So we met  many t imes w i th  Mr  L inne l l  whether  in  the  ho te l  

where  I  wou ld  be  s tay ing  or  in  a  res taurant  –  l i ke ,  fo r  

ins tance,  in  Cape  Town we wou ld  meet  in  a  res taurant  o r  a t  

the  Pres ident ’s  p lace ,  we met  h im as we l l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  no  bu t  …[ in tervenes]  20 

MS MYENI :    And  in  Durban,  and in  Durban.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am jus t  ask ing  about  how the  Pre tor ia  

meet ing  be tween the  two o f  you came about .   He sa id  tha t  

you ca l led  h im and to ld  h im tha t  –  and asked h im to  come 

to  Pre tor ia  to  meet  w i th  you and the  Pres ident  and  I  th ink  
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he  sa id  you sa id  you wou ld  exp la in  to  h im when he  ar r i ved 

in  Pre tor ia  what  i t  was about ,  i f  I  am not  m is taken.   So I  

jus t  want  to  conf i rm tha t  you accept  tha t  tha t  is  what  

happened.  

MS MYENI :    I  accept  tha t  I  wou ld  have ca l led  h im fo r  a  

meet ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    Bu t  as  the  res t  o f  the  contents  o f  the  meet ing  

and what  have you,  no ,  Cha i r,  I  w i l l  no t  be  ab le  to  conf i rm.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   In  o ther  words,  you d id  no t  say  to  10 

h im when you ca l led  h im,  you d id  no t  say  tha t  the  purpose 

why you were  ca l l ing  h im was so  tha t  he  cou ld  meet  w i th  

the  Pres ident?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You do not  remember?  

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  remember.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  i t  poss ib le  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    Cha i r ,  N ick  was –  we were  work ing  together  

fo r  the  board  o f  SAA.   There fore  my phone ca l l s  w i th  h im 

were  a l l  a re  go ing  so  I  can say tha t  th is  pa r t i cu la r  ca l l  was 20 

fo r  th is ,  th is  par t i cu la r  ca l l  was fo r  th is .   I  cannot  say  tha t  

because a l so ,  Cha i r,  N ick  L inne l l  as  a  consu l tan t  he  was 

a lso  consu l t ing  w i th  Gauteng,  so  I  cannot  say  come to  the  

Pres ident  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  I  wou ld  know i f  i t  i s  in  Gauteng,  I  

wou ld  a l so  know whether  I  want  to  meet  on  SAA mat te rs .   
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So  I  can spec i f i ca l l y  on  th is  par t i cu la r  da te  I  asked h im to  

leave Cape Town to  come and meet  the  Pres ident  because 

the  Pres ident  wants  to  meet  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    I  cannot  conf i rm tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  the  pos i t ion  tha t  you cannot  conf i rm 

but  you cannot  say  what  he  is  say ing  is  no t  t rue  or  a re  you  

say ing  i t  i s  no t  t rue ,  you can remember  qu i te  c lea r ly  you 

never  sa id  tha t  to  h im? 

MS MYENI :    I  cannot  –  tha t  i s  h is  vers ion ,  Cha i r.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MS MYENI :    And I  w i l l  respect  h is  vers ion .   My ve rs ion  is  

tha t  I  wou ld  mee t  Mr  L inne l l  a t  any g iven t ime,  when he 

v is i t s  Jo ’burg ,  when I  am in  Jo ’burg  and we a lways met  –  

we a lways had reasons to  meet .   I f  there  was a  board  

meet ing ,  there  was someth ing  we  wanted to  f ind  ou t  f rom 

h im,  he  wou ld  be  ava i lab le  on  emai l  o r  on  phone ca l l  bu t  i f  

he  is  in  Gauteng h imse l f  o r  coming to  us  as  SAA he wou ld  

come so  I  canno t  say  th i s  pa r t i cu la r  day I  ca l led  h im and 

sa id  p lease come,  the  Pres ident  wants  to  meet  you.   No,  20 

Cha i r,  I  cannot  conf i rm tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now he sa id  tha t  you r  ca l l  was on the  

bas is  tha t  he  must  bas ica l l y  –  i t  was so  urgent  tha t  he  had 

to  d rop every th ing  and come to  Pre tor ia  and as  a  resu l t  he  

dropped every th ing ,  f lew to  Pre to r ia  the  same day.   What  
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do  you say about  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    I t  i s  h is  ve rs ion ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  i s  h is  vers ion .   And he says when he 

came the  two  o f  you had a  meet ing  and  but  you sa id  tha t  

the  Pres ident  was go ing  to  jo in  the  two o f  you in  a  meet ing  

or  you were  go ing  to  have a  meet ing ,  the  two o f  you were  

go ing  to  have a  meet ing  w i th  the  Pres ident  bu t  wh i le  you  

were  wa i t ing  to  be  ca l led  to  mee t  w i th  the  Pres ident  you  

br ie fed  h im about  what  th is  who le  meet ing  was to  be  about  

and he sa id  tha t  you sa id  tha t  the  Pres ident  wanted an  10 

invest iga t ion  or  inqu i ry  to  be  invest iga ted  in to  the  a f fa i rs  o f  

Eskom.   I  th ink  he  was not  happy w i th  Eskom and you had  

recommended to  the  Pres ident  o r  you  were  go ing  to  

recommend to  the  Pres ident  tha t  he  wou ld  be  the  r igh t  

person to  coord ina te  tha t  inqu i ry  o r  conduct  tha t  enqu i ry.   

What  do  you say to  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    Th is  Commiss ion  loves Mr  Zuma,  i t  rea l l y  

adores Mr  Zuma even on mat te rs  tha t  had noth ing  to  do  

w i th  h im,  i t  d rags  h is  name in to  tha t  mat te r .   Cha i rperson,  I  

cou ld  [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  hang on …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    [ inaud ib le  –  speak ing  s imu l taneous ly ]  to  

recommend …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on.  

MS MYENI :    Sor ry ,  Cha i rperson,  sor ry .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Hang on,  hang on,  i t  i s  no t  the  

Commiss ion ,  i t  i s  w i tnesses who come to  the  Commiss ion  

to  say th ings about  peop le ,  i t  i s  no t  the  Commiss ion ,  i t  i s  

Mr  L inne l l  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Cha i r ,  fo r  the  cor rec t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I t  was Mr  L inne l l  who to ld  us  tha t  i t  was 

not  the  Commiss ion  wh ich  came up w i th  tha t .  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Cha i rpe rson,  fo r  the  co r rec t ion .   

[ speak ing  in  the  vernacu lar ] .   One,  Cha i r ,  Mr  Zuma wou ld  

no t  have taken any recommendat ion  f rom a  Cha i rperson o f  10 

another  SOC to  recommend i t  to  h im.   F i rs t  and fo remost ,  

Cha i r ,  the  board  does not  repor t  to  the  Pres ident ,  no  board  

repor ts  to  the  Pres ident .    

The board ,  Cha i rperson,  repor t s  to  the  m in i s te r .   I  

do  no t  know how –  I  do  no t  know a  p rocess where  the  

board  wou ld  jump the  m in is te r  and go and repor t  o r  take  

adv ice  f rom another  Cha i rperson o f  another  board  to  

recommend tha t  the  invest iga t ion  must  be  done,  th is  i s  the  

r igh t  person fo r  th is  job .    

Cha i r ,  some o f  these th ings tha t  we wou ld  s i t  and 20 

l i s ten  to  a re  hearsays,  some are  goss ips ,  some are 

s ta tements  m is lead ing  the  Commiss ion .   But ,  Cha i r ,  I  am 

g lad  tha t  I  am here  be fo re  you  to  ensure  tha t  I  c la r i f y  

i ssues.  

The board  is  governed by  someth ing  ca l led  shareho lder  
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compact ,  Mr  Tsots i  wou ld  have abd ica ted  h is  respons ib i l i t y  

to  go  and get  ins t ruc t ions f rom another  Cha i rperson o f  the  

board ,  one,  o r  to  take  ins t ruc t ions  f rom the  Pres ident .   I t  

wou ld  be  undermin ing  the  m in i s te r  by  Mr  Tsots i  to  have  

done tha t .   I t  i s  a  l ie ,  i t  i s  m is lead ing  the  Commiss ion  and 

the  fac ts  o f  the  mat te r ,  Cha i rpe rson,  i s  tha t  Mr  Tsots i  d id  

want  to  ge t  ass is tance f rom a  lega l  exper t ,  any lega l  

person.   I  obv ious ly  shared w i th  Mr  Tsots i  how Mr  L inne l l  

was ass is t ing  us  and Mr  L inne l l  had a  ro le  a t  our  board  a t  

SAA in  te rms o f  h is  adv ice  to  the  board  bu t  I  do  no t  know 10 

tha t  Mr  L inne l l  wou ld  –  or  Mr  Tsots i  wou ld  go  to  the  

Pres ident  and ge t  ins t ruc t ions f rom the  Pres ident ,  I  do  no t  

know.   I  deny anyth ing  to  tha t  e f fec t ,  Cha i r,  I  honest ly  do  

no t  unders tand.  

CHAIRPERSON :    When you met  w i th  Mr  Tsots i ,  jus t  the  

two o f  you,  what  request ,  i f  any ,  d id  Mr  Tsots i  make to  

you?  D id  he  request  you to  do  any th ing?  

MS MYENI :    He asked –  Cha i rperson,  i t  was pub l i c  

knowledge tha t  there  were  too  many th ings go ing  around in  

a lmost  a l l  the  SOEs,  so  he  asked us  how we are  dea l ing  20 

w i th  mat te rs ,  how we go about  do ing  cer ta in  th ings  I  sa id 

you know what ,  we,  as  the  board ,  we took a  dec is ion  tha t  

we w i l l  do  every th ing  by  the  book,  we w i l l  fo l low what  

needs to  be  done in  te rms o f  corpora te  governance,  in  

te rms o f  consu l ta t ion .   Consu l ta t ion  by  –  w i th  who?   
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Consu l ta t ion  w i th  the  Min is te r,  no t  consu l ta t ion  w i th  the  

Pres ident .    

CHAIRPERSON :    D id  he  …[ in te rvenes]  

MS MYENI :    Then I  sa id  to  h im in  every th ing  you w i l l  do ,  

even i f  you consu l t  the  m in is te r  o r  in fo rm the  min is te r  o r  

request  the  m in i s te r ’s  pe rmiss ion  to  do  whatever  you want  

to  do  in  the  company,  you have to  have your  board  by  your  

s ide  because,  Cha i r,  Mr  L inne l l  was appo in ted  th rough the  

board  reso lu t ion ,  i t  was not  Dudu ’s  f r iend o r  N ick  L inne l l  

Mr  F ix  o f  Dudu.   No,  i t  was a  board  reso lu t ion  to  appo in t  a  10 

lega l  adv i ser  and  there fore  I  sa id  to  Mr  Tsots i  i f  you  want  

the  se rv i ces  o f  Mr  L inne l l ,  every th ing  –  your  s to ry  must  be  

very  s t ra igh t fo rward ,  Mr  L inne l l  i s  a  very  s t ra igh t fo rward  

and an honest  man.   That ,  I  can  say i t  pub l i c ly,  he  is  

honest ,  he  does not  take  shor t  cu ts ,  he  wants  eve ry th ing  

done by  the  book ,  so  tha t  I  adv ised Mr  Tsots i .   But  a t  the  

back o f  th is ,  I  d id  no t  know tha t  he  h imse l f  in  the  [speak ing  

in  the  vernacu lar ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    [Laughs]  [ speak ing  in  the  ve rnacu lar ]  Ms  

Myen i .    20 

MS MYENI :    Cha i r… 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ms Myen i  sa id  someth ing  in  i s iZu lu  and 

she was leav ing  i t  to  me to  unders tand or  in te rpre t ,  so  I  

sa id  she must  in te rpre t  herse l f  what  she was say ing .   Ms  

Myen i ,  te l l  everybody what  the  Zu lu  par t  was.  
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MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  there  is  no  d i rec t  t rans la t ion  on  

what  i s  [ speak ing  in  the  vernacu la r ]  a l l  I  can  say,  Cha i r ,  i s  

tha t  Mr  Tsots i  d id  no t  –  he  was not  open to  me,  Cha i r ,  in  

te rms o f  be ing  honest  to  say  tha t  he  has p rob lems,  

persona l  p rob lems tha t  emanates  f rom h is  b reach  o f  h is  

ro le  as  a  Cha i rpe rson.   That  i s  where  I  go ing  b lank  w i th  i t  

and I  was honest  w i th  h im and I  was d iscuss ing  issues w i th  

h im th ink ing  tha t  every th ing  is  above board  bu t  he  was not  

te l l ing  me tha t  he  had h is  own persona l  cha l lenges tha t  he  

had to  account  about  to  e i ther  the  board  or  the  m in is te r  10 

h imse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  he d id  no t  ask  you to  se t  up  a  

meet ing  or  fac i l i ta te  a  meet ing  be tween h imse l f  and the  

Pres ident  o r  d id  he?  

MS MYENI :    He d id ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    He d id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And what  was your  response?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i r ,  even anyone who wants  a  meet ing  w i th  

the  Pres ident  I  passed on the  message to  say so  and so  20 

wou ld  l i ke  to  have a  meet ing  w i th  you.   Now the  prob lem is  

tha t  when  person wants  a  meet ing  w i th  the  Pres ident  i t  i s  

no t  my duty  to  say p lease exp la in  why you want  a  meet ing  

bu t  my respons ib i l i t y  wou ld  be  say pu t  i t  in  wr i t ing  so  tha t  

you make the  fo rmal  request .   He sa id  no ,  i t  must  be  a  
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meet ing  wh ich  is  an  open meet ing ,  i t  i s  no t  anyth ing  tha t  i s  

un toward  tha t  I  need to  make i t  fo rmal .   Now in  as  fa r  as  I  

am concerned,  Cha i r ,  there  are  comrades tha t  wou ld  ask  

fo r  a  meet ing  w i th  the  Pres ident ,  there  a re  peop le  who  

wou ld  come and  want  to  meet  the  Pres ident  fo r  cer ta in  

adv ice  on  o the r  mat te rs .   I f  I  knew what  Mr  Zo la  Tsots i  

wanted to  meet  the  Pres ident  about ,  indeed,  Cha i r ,  I  wou ld  

have sa id  take  your  m in i s te r  to  Mr  Zuma.   I  wou ld  have 

adv ised h im tha t  way,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  what  adv ice  i f  any  d id  you g ive  h im 10 

or  d id  you say you were  go ing  to  fac i l i ta te a  meet ing  

be tween h im and the  Pres ident  o r  d id  you not  agree to 

fac i l i ta te  such a  meet ing?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  when I  had the  foundat ion  

meet ing  in  Durban I  was a t  the  Pres ident ’s  p lace  in  

Durban,  we were  go ing  to  have a  foundat ion  meet ing  and  

tha t  i s  where  I  asked h im to  come.   I  sa id  to  h im I  wou ld  be  

meet ing  the  Pres ident  a t  tha t  par t i cu la r  p lace .   He can 

come back.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   Mr  Se leka,  take  i t  f rom 20 

there .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes,  Cha i r ,  le t  me approach th is  mat te r  

d i f fe ren t ly ,  Ms Myen i .   Ms Myen i ,  you have seen the  

a f f idav i t s  o f  Mr  L inne l l  and he has tes t i f ied  about  the  two  

meet ings.   Le t  us  leave as ide  fo r  the  moment ,  Mr  Tsots i ,  i f  
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you  concent ra te  on  Mr  L inne l l ,  do  I  unders tand you 

cor rec t l y  tha t  you cannot  deny what  he  is  say ing  in  h is  

a f f idav i t?  

MS MYENI :    I  have not  read Mr  L inne l l ’ s  a f f idav i t ,  Mr  

Se leka.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  you w i l l  have to  pu t  to  her  the  

por t ions  o f  what  he  says.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  poss ib le  w i thout  go ing  to  the  pages  10 

un less  i t  i s  rea l l y  necessary.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Indeed,  Cha i r ,  I  w i l l  cer ta in l y  do  so .   

So Ms Myen i ,  we  have ta lked about  the  meet ing ,  the  f i rs t  

meet ing  in  Pre tor ia ,  Mr  L inne l l  has  g iven a  da te  fo r  tha t  

meet ing ,  the  Cha i rperson has touched on the  contents  o f  

tha t  meet ing .   A t  the  end o f  tha t  meet ing  –  we l l ,  I  

unders tood your  –  ra ther ,  le t  me,  be fore  I  go  to  the  end,  I  

unders tand your  response to  the  Cha i rpe rson tha t  you  

cannot  deny tha t  meet ing ,  tha t  i s  Mr  L inne l l ’ s  vers ion ,  o r  

a f f idav i t .   A t  the  end o f  tha t  meet ing  he  says he  20 

unders tood f rom you tha t  he  has to  a t tend to  a  meet ing  in  

two days t ime on  the  8  March 2015 in  Durban,  aga in  w i th  

the  Pres ident .   

CHAIRPERSON :    I  th ink  i t  i s  more  than tha t ,  Mr  Se leka,  I  

th ink  he  sa id  she to ld  h im.  
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ADV SELEKA SC :    Cor rec t ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :   That  there  w i l l  be  a  meet ing  in  Durban on  

the  8 t h  and he shou ld  go  to  tha t  meet ing  in  o rder  to  meet  

the  Pres ident  because he sa id  to  Ms Myen i  u l t imate ly  wh i le  

the  two o f  you  were  d i scuss ing  you lea rn t  tha t  the  

Pres ident  had le f t  fo r  Durban w i thout  you be ing  ca l led ,  the  

two o f  you be ing  ca l led  to  meet  h im.   He says i t  was a t  tha t  

s tage tha t  you then sa id  to  h im tha t  there  was go ing  to  be  

a  meet ing  in  Durban  on  the  8 t h  a t  the  Pres ident ’s  o f f i c ia l  

res idence,  he  shou ld  come to  tha t  meet ing  and he says he  10 

agreed.  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  do  you say to  tha t  par t  o f  h is  

ev idence?  

MS MYENI :    That  i s  h is  ev idence,  Cha i r ,  I  have got  

no th ing  to  say.  

CHAIRPERSON :    On your  vers ion  what  d id  the  two  o f  you 

ta lk  about  wh i le  you were  meet ing  because he has to ld  

…[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    I  cannot  remember ,  I  cannot  remember  what… 20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Because he has  to ld  me what  the  two o f  

you were  ta lk ing  about  and he sa id  you were  br ie f ing  h im  

on the  reason why you asked h im to  come to  Pre tor ia  and  

what  the  Pres ident  was concerned about  in  Eskom and  

because the  meet ing  invo lv ing  the  two o f  you and the  
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P res ident  d id  no t  take  p lace in  Pre tor ia  and you learn t  tha t  

the  Pres ident  had le f t  fo r  Durban  you then sa id  he  shou ld  

come to  Durban because there  was go ing  to  be  a  meet ing  

in  Durban on the  8 t h  a t  the  Pres ident ’s  o f f i c ia l  res idence.   

That  i s  h is  vers ion .   What  i s  you r  vers ion  o f  what  the  two 

o f  you ta lked about  in  tha t  meet ing? 

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  have my minutes  o f  the  con tent  o f  

our  d i scuss ion  so  I  –  my vers ion  o f  th is  who le  th ing  is  tha t  

I  have met  Mr  L inne l l  on  a  number  o f  occas ions fo r  SAA 

mat te rs ,  no t  fo r  Eskom mat te rs .   I f  i t  was fo r  Eskom mat ter  10 

Mr  Zo la  Tsots i  wou ld  have met  –  wou ld  have been  in  tha t  

meet ing  and Mr  Tsots i  wou ld  have been d iscuss ing  issues  

o f  Eskom wi th  Mr  L inne l l .   So  I  deny tha t  I  wou ld  meet  h im  

and d iscuss Eskom mat te rs  because I  d id  no t  h i re  o r  the 

board  had not  appo in ted  Mr  L inne l l  fo r  Eskom so there  

wou ld  no t  be  t ime wasted and h is  hours  wasted on  Eskom 

mat te rs  on  one on one between us .   So,  Cha i r ,  I  do  no t  

agree tha t… 

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you do not  remember  what  the  

d iscuss ion  was about  be tween the  two o f  you?  20 

MS MYENI :    I  w i l l  no t  remember ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    You w i l l  no t  remember .  

MS MYENI :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :   You have sa id  –  you have sa id  yourse l f  

tha t  Mr  L inne l l  i s  an  honest  man.   Have you got  any  reason  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 207 of 243 
 

why he wou ld  say tha t  you sa id  cer ta in  th ings  in  tha t  

meet ing  i f  you  d id  no t  say  those th ings?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  as  I  sa id  to  you when I  

addressed you a t  the  beg inn ing ,  I  a lso  [ ind is t inc t ]  there fore  

my vers ion  must  be  taken as  we l l  as  honesty  as  I  am 

put t ing  i t  be fore  the  Commiss ion  bu t  I  cannot  he lp  i t ,  

Cha i r ,  my co lour  suggests  immedia te ly  tha t  I  cannot  be  

honest ,  I  am a cr im ina l  f rom the  co lour  o f  my sk in ,  

there fo re  my vers ion  –  when I  say  Mr  L inne l l  i s  an  honest  

man,  I  have worked w i th  h im,  i t  does not  mean tha t  when I  10 

say Mr  L inne l l  i s  an  honest  man then my vers ion  o f  the  

day ’s  meet ing  and h i s  vers ion ,  i f  they  cont rad ic t  each  

o ther ,  i t  means he is  d ishonest  by  tha t  par t i cu la r  aspect .   

On ly  know honesty  i s  ve ry  b road,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MS MYENI :    So  I  am say ing  I  do  no t  remember .   I f  I  had 

my d ia ry ,  i f  I  recorded myse l f  on  the  d i scuss ions we had I  

wou ld  s tand up and conf i rm what  he  sa id .   I t  i s  h is  vers ion ,  

Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Se leka?  20 

ADV SELEKA SC :    Thank you ,  Cha i r .   Ms Myen i ,  Mr  

L inne l l  goes on to  say –  and I  w i l l  go  now to  the  meet ing  o f  

the  10 t h  –  I  mean,  the  8 t h ,  sor ry ,  Cha i r ,  o f  the  8  March  

2015 tha t  the  same d iscuss ion  tha t  s ta r ted  be tween the  

two o f  you a t  the  meet ing  o f  the  6 t h  cont inued in  Durban  
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and th i s  d i scuss ion  re la ted  to  t he  Pres ident ,  the  then 

Pres ident ,  seek ing  to  have an inqu i ry  in i t ia ted  in to  Eskom’s  

a f fa i rs ,  one.  

 And number  two,  hav ing  to  have th ree  execut ives  o f  

Eskom suspended.   Your  comment  on  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    No,  comment ,  Mr  Se leka.   I  deny what  i s  

be ing  sa id ,  there  is  no  Pres ident  tha t  go  in to  a  s ta tement  

l i ke  tha t  to  say these a re  the  th ings tha t  you must  go  and 

do.   The Pres ident  wou ld  ta lk  to  the  m in is te r  and the  

m in is te r  wou ld  ta lk  to  the  Cha i rpe rson,  so  I  do  no t  know 10 

about  tha t  par t i cu la r  s ta tement  and I  – i t  i s  no t  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  s ta r t  here  be fore  we go to  the  

content  o f  the  meet ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  L inne l l  tes t i f ied  tha t  when he ar r i ved  

a t  the  Durban o f f i c ia l  res idence o f  the  Pres ident  on  the  8 t h  

you were  a l ready there ,  I  cannot  remember  whethe r  he  sa id  

Mr  Tsots i  was a l ready there  or  whether  Mr  Tsots i  a r r i ved  

la te r  than h im but  he  sa id  –  they sa id  there  were  two  20 

meet ings,  so  to  speak.   The one,  wh ich  was the  f i rs t  one,  

was a t tended by  yourse l f  by  Mr  L inne l l ,  by  Mr  Tsots i ,  by  

your  son and I  th ink  e i the r  Mr  Tso ts i  o r  Mr  L inne l l  o r  bo th  

o f  them a lso  sa id  there  was Mr  Jabu Maswangany i ,  e i ther  

one o f  them,  d id  no t  know the  su rname,  bu t  sa id  Jabu o r  
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the  o ther  –  or  bo th  sa id  Jabu but  la te r  on  i t  t ransp i red  tha t  

i t  was Jabu Maswangany i .   Do you –  what  do  you say about  

the  peop le  tha t  Mr  L inne l l  says  a t t ended the  f i rs t  meet ing?  

He sa id  tha t  f i rs t  meet ing  d id  no t  have Mr  Zuma,  i t  was jus t  

a  d iscuss ion  among yourse l ves about  the  issues tha t  you 

were  go ing  to  d iscuss once you were  in  a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  

Zuma.    

So he says the re  was a  d iscuss ion  w i thout  Mr  Zuma 

a t  tha t  s tage and  you p layed the  ro le  o f  Cha i rperson,  i f  I  

reca l l  co r rec t l y ,  in  tha t  meet ing  by  wh ich  I  d id  no t  10 

unders tand them to  say you were  e lec ted  fo rmal l y  a t  the  

Cha i rperson but  they sa id  you were  the  one who was do ing  

most  o f  the  ta lk ing  and what  was d iscussed was tha t  there  

was a  need fo r  an  inqu i ry  in to  the  a f fa i rs  o r  invest iga t ion  

in to  the  a f fa i rs  o f  Eskom because  there  were  prob lems a t  

Eskom and tha t  there  was a  need fo r  the  suspens ion  o f  

cer ta in  execut ives  and on ly  th ree  execut ives  were  

contempla ted .   A t  tha t  s tage the  names might  no t  have 

been ment ioned but  the i r  por t fo l ios  or  the i r  pos i t ions  wou ld  

have been ment ioned.   I  am not  sure  whether  the  names  20 

were  ment ioned la te r  in  the  mee t ing .   What  do  you say 

about  tha t ,  in  terms o f  who was  a t  the  meet ing  and in  

te rms o f  the  g is t  o f  what  the  issues were  tha t  were  be ing  

d iscussed?  
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MS MYENI :    You see,  Cha i r ,  i t  was a  p i t y  tha t  I  was 

brought  up  to  respect  peop le ,  espec ia l l y  adu l ts  bu t  to  say  

uTsots i  i s  becoming –  was mis lead ing  and not  te l l ing  the  

t ru th .   But  a lso ,  Cha i r ,  I  exp la ined he re  my son ’s  ro le  on  

tha t  par t i cu la r  day.   He drove me to  the  Pres ident ,  tha t  was 

h is  ro le ,  he  is  an  adu l t ,  Cha i r ,  bu t  he  was not  go ing  to  

p res ide  on  meet ings un inv i ted ,  tha t  i s  a  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  he  was 

a t  the  meet ing .   Sor ry ,  the  meet ing  p lace,  no t  in  the 

meet ing .    

 Second ly ,  Cha i rperson,  why was I  go ing  to  be  an  10 

e lec ted  Cha i rperson o f  somebody who is  the  one who has a 

prob lem in  an  SOE?  Cha i r ,  i t  i s  no t  t rue  –  tha t  honest ly ,  

these goss ips  shou ld  no t  be  en te r ta ined,  i t  i s  abso lu te ly  

no t  t rue ,  i t  i s  b la tan t  l ie .   Cha i rperson,  the  person who had  

a  prob lem is  Zo la  Tsots i  a t  Eskom,  i t  was not  Dudu Myen i .    

 So  Zo la  Tsots i  met  w i th  L inne l l  and they were  to  

d iscuss the  issues a t  Eskom themse lves.   Why wou ld  I  

even d iscuss or  p res ide  ove r  a  meet ing  about  p rob lems 

wi th  execut ives?  I  do  no t  even know those execut ives .   I  

even ind i ca ted ,  Cha i r ,  tha t  in  fac t  i t  was  a t  th is  20 

Commiss ion  tha t  the  on ly  person I  knew was the  fo rmer  DG 

o f  Pub l ic  Enterpr ises.   I  on l y  met  Koko th rough th i s  

Commiss ion .   I  have never  met  h im person.   Why wou ld  I  

even know the i r  per fo rmance,  tha t  I  wou ld  even go to  the  

ex ten t  o f  say ing  th is  one must  be  suspended,  th is  one must  
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be  suspended?  I t  i s  a  l ie .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    I  deny a l l  th is ,  I  deny a l l  o f  th is ,  there  was a  

meet ing ,  the  Pres ident  was not  go ing  to  jo in  us  in  a  

meet ing ,  Cha i r .   He came,  he  d id  a l l  the  p leasant r ies ,  he  

greeted us .   Yes,  the  th ree  o f  us  were  in  tha t  meet ing .   I  

cannot  even remember  whether  Jabu was there  or  no t .   

Perhaps he was  there ,  I  wou ld  have to  go  back  to  my 

notes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  10 

MS MYENI :    Bu t ,  Cha i r ,  i f  somebody g ives me minutes  o f  

tha t  meet ing  wh ich  I  was pres id ing  on  tha t  meet ing  as  a 

Cha i rperson,  I  wou ld  be  very  g lad .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Now …[ in tervenes]  

MS MYENI :    Not  t rue .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wi th  regard  to  your  son you say  he  was 

in  the  p lace or  res idence but  no t  in  the  meet ing  and 

because he was dr iv ing  you.   They a l so  made i t  c l ear  tha t  

he  d id  no t  pa r t i c ipa te  in  the  meet ing  bu t  they sa id  he  was  

in  the  meet ing  bu t  he  was qu ie t ,  he  was not  tak ing  par t ,  he  20 

d id  no t  speak.   That  i s  what  they sa id  bu t  a re  you say ing  

tha t  tha t  meet ing  d id  no t  d iscuss the  issue  o f  an  

invest iga t ion  or  i nqu i ry  in to  cer ta in  Eskom mat te rs  and tha t  

i t  d id  no t  d iscuss the  need fo r  t he  suspens ion  o f  cer ta in  

execut ives  a t  Eskom? 
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MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  have minutes  o f  the  meet ing ,  Cha i r .   

A l l  can  say is  tha t  i s  one o f  the  meet ings where  Zo la  Tsots i  

wanted me to  in t roduce h im to  Mr  L inne l l ,  wh ich  I  d id  and  

in  te rms o f  the  contents  o f  the  meet ing  in  Durban I  cannot  

say  what  was d i scussed in  de ta i l  bu t  indeed he wanted 

ass is tance f rom Nick ,  bu t  Cha i r  as  I  sa id  N ick  was not ,  

N ick  L inne l l  was  not  go ing  to  jus t  jump in  and ass is t  Mr  

Tsots i .    The process needed to  be  fo l lowed and I  

emphas ise  th is ,  so  I  deny Cha i r  tha t  I  Cha i red  any meet ing 

a t  the  Pres ident  Zuma house,  and  I  deny tha t  Mr  Zuma was 10 

go ing  to  p res ide  in  the  same meet ing .  We had a  foundat ion  

meet ing  on  tha t  day,  in  tha t  p lace .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  you say you ,  you cannot  remember  

what  i ssues were  d iscussed in  tha t  meet ing ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MS MYENI :    I  remember  tha t  I  never  Cha i red  anyth ing  tha t  

i s  the  s ta r t ing  po in t  and I  remember  tha t  I  was  not  a t  

l iber ty  to  d iscuss issues o f  suspens ions a t  an  inqu i ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

MS MYENI :    I  had no ro le  and no in te res t  in  Eskom,  the  20 

person who approached me was ass is ted  and I  in t roduced 

h im to  N ick  L inne l l ,  any th ing  e lse  tha t  t ransp i red  a f te r  tha t  

i t  was between the  two o f  them.   I f  I  was s i t t ing  in  tha t  

meet ing ,  when  they were  d iscuss ing ,  I  wou ld  be  

emphas is ing  the  po in t  tha t  there  are  no  shor t cu ts  in  
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dea l ing  w i th  issues o f  corpora te  governance in  any SOE.  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  –  bu t  you say you do not  have a  

reco l lec t ion ,  whe ther  in  th is  meet ing ,  in  wh ich  you were  

present  the  need  fo r  an  inqu i ry  o r  invest iga t ion  in to  the  

a f fa i rs  o f  Eskom was d i scussed.   You say you have no  

reco l lec t ion  o f  whether  tha t  was d iscussed,  even i f  i t  was  

be ing  d iscussed between the  two o f  them.  

MS MYENI :    I f  i t  was the  two o f  them Cha i r  tha t  wou ld  

have been pe rhaps the i r  content  o f  the  d iscuss ion ,  bu t  I  

wou ld  no t  be  par t y  to  tha t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you were  i n  the  meet ing ,  you wou ld  

have heard  what  they were  say ing .  

MS MYENI :     O f  course  Cha i r,  I  –  none o f  them knew each 

o ther  Cha i rperson.  So I  in t roduced N ick ,  to  Zo la  and Zo la  

to  N ick .   So whatever  tha t  was to  be ,  bu t  Cha i r  my ro le  was  

to  ensure  tha t  Zo la  Tsots i  knows tha t  i t  i s  no t  go ing  to  be  

l i ke  they have met  then the  next  day Mr  L inne l l  i s  par t  o f  

Eskom’s  lega l  adv ice ,  no .   

So,  obv ious ly,  there  wou ld  have been many o ther  

th ings tha t  cou ld  have been d iscussed but  the  issue  o f  the 20 

inqu i ry  was not  go ing  to  be  someth ing  tha t  I  wou ld  take  an 

in te res t  in ,  what  i s  the  ga in  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And a lso  the  issue o f  the  suspens ion  o f  

cer ta in  execut ives  a t  Eskom,  are  you say ing  you have no  

reco l lec t ion  o f  whether  tha t  i ssue was d iscussed  a t  the  
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meet ing?  

MS MYENI :    No,  no  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Or  a re  you say ing  de f in i te ly  i t  was not  

d iscussed?  

MS MYENI :    No Cha i r,  Cha i r  I  deny any invo l vement  in  the  

issues o f  Eskom in  te rms o f  inqu i ry,  in  te rms o f  suspend ing  

any o f  the  execut ives  a t  Eskom.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  the  vers ion  g iven by  Mr  Tsots i  and 

Mr  L inne l l  i f  I  reca l l  cor rec t l y,  i s  tha t  a f te r  th is  f i rs t  meet ing  

had d i scussed issues you wa i ted  to  meet  w i th  Pres ident  10 

Zuma and tha t  a t  a  ce r ta in  s tage  a f te r  wa i t ing  fo r  some 

t ime you were  a l l  then -  you a l l  moved to  anothe r  room 

where  you wa i ted  fo r  about  f i ve  m inutes  and Mr  Zuma then 

came in ,  and then another  meet ing  took p lace now wi th  Mr  

Zuma present ,  wh ich  d iscussed the  same issues.  

And wh ich  ended  on the  bas i s  tha t  Mr  Zuma sa id  t o  

Mr  Tsots i ,  Mr  Tsots i  must  go  back to  h is  Board  and ra i se  

the  issue o f  an  inqu i ry  o r  invest i ga t ion  in to  the  a f fa i rs  o f  

Eskom and ra ise  the  issue o f  the  need fo r  the  suspens ion  

o f  the  th ree  execut ives  who were  be ing  d iscussed,  and 20 

then he sa id  he  h imse l f  wou ld  br ie f  o r  b r ie f  the  Min is te r  o r  

ra ise  the  issues w i th  the  Min is te r.    

That  i s  what  Mr  Tsots i  sa id  tha t  i s  how the  meet ing  

ended but  he  d id  say,  Mr  Zuma came and he l i s tened and  

he even asked Mr  Tsots i  whether  he  knew which  execut ives  
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those tha t  they were  ta lk ing  about ,  and Mr  Tsots i  sa id  yes  

he  knew.   

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  [ speak ing  in  vernacu lar ] ,  no 

sor ry  Cha i rperson,  Cha i rperson I  deny the  vers ion  tha t  i s  

be ing  pu t  be fore  me.   Indeed,  Mr  Pres ident ,  Zuma d id  greet  

tha t  peop le  and then he d id  indeed,  the  worke rs  a t  leas t  

in t roduce eve ryone,  i t  was not  a  meet ing  w i th  h im  a lone,  

there  were  lo ts  o f  –  I  deny tha t  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Excuse me,  when he came in  and 

greeted were  you s t i l l  i n  the  same meet ing  in  wh ich  you 10 

had  been  s ince  the  ar r i va l  o f  Mr  L inne l l ,  Mr  Tsots i  o r  d id  

you move to  another  meet ing ,  and tha t  i s  where  Mr Zuma 

came and greeted everybody?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  I  th ink  i t  w i l l  be  to  the  benef i t  o f  

those tha t  m ight  want  to  be l ieve  cer ta in  vers ions ,  in  tha t  

p lace  Cha i r  where  we were  the re  are  a  few lounges.   So  

you s i t  in  a  lounge,  wh ich  cou ld  be  a  smal le r  lounge and  

then when the  meet ing  is  f in ished ,  in  a  b igger  lounge,  you  

are  moved to  another  lounge so  tha t  you a l low maybe one 

person to  s i t  in  a  smal l  lounge.  20 

I f  you are  many you are  g i ven a  b igger  lounge,  so  

the  mov ing  o f  rooms,  I  do  no t  a t t r ibu te  to  tha t  tha t  i t  was a  

movement  to  a l low tha t  maybe i t  is  now prepara t ion  fo r  a  

second meet ing ,  i t  i s  a  l ie .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  are  you say ing  tha t  yes ,  you d id  
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move f rom one room to  another  bu t  what  you a re  deny ing  is  

tha t  the  mov ing  was fo r  the  purpose o f  a l l  o f  you meet ing  

Pres ident  Zuma or  a re  you say ing  there  was no mov ing  a t  

a l l?  

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  know whethe r  there  was mov ing  and I  

do  no t  know whether  we sa t  in  one p lace but  Cha i r  Mr  

Zuma does not  need –  we l l  dur ing  tha t  t ime,  he  wou ld  no t  

necessar i l y  s i t  in  one p lace and then peop le  come to  h im.  

He wou ld  be  the  one coming or  knock ing  in  any o ther  room 

where  there  are  peop le  to  g reet  those peop le  and then say  10 

some p leasant r ies  i f  i t  i s  peop le  he  knew.   

I f  he  d id  no t  know peop le  w i l l  in t roduce themse lves  

and then he wou ld  then leave  and  go to  another  room and  

do the  same.   So I  cannot  say  we moved or  we  d id  no t  

move but  the  issue o f  P res ident  Zuma be ing  present  in  

mat te rs  o f  Eskom,  l i ke  how i t  i s  be ing  exp la ined by  Mr  

L inne l l  and Mr  Tsots i ,  I  deny.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  what  -  par t  o f  what  wou ld  be  

s t range as  I  look  a t  what  you are  te l l ing  me is  tha t  on  your  

vers ion  he re  are  two meet ings  tha t  took p lace a t  the  20 

o f f i c ia l  res idences o f  the  Pres iden t .   One meet ing  be tween  

yourse l f  and Mr  L inne l l ,  in  Pre tor ia ,  a t  the  o f f i c ia l  

res idence o f  the  Pres ident .   The o ther  meet ing  tak ing  p lace 

in  Durban a t  the  o f f i c ia l  res idence  o f  the  Pres ident ,  and ye t  

on  your  vers ion ,  the  Pres ident  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  these 
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meet ings.   

So why were  these meet ings be ing  he ld  in  h is  

res idence on each occas ion ,  i f  he  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  

these meet ings.  

MS MYENI :    Thank you,  Cha i r  I  th ink  I  exp la ined the  f i rs t  

s ide  o f  reasons  why i t  cou ld  have been the  p lace.   In  

Durban we had a  foundat ion  meet ing .   I  was to  meet  Zo la  

Tsots i ,  I  was to  meet  N ick  L inne l l  fo r  the  conven ience,  fo r  

my conven ience.   

I  exp la ined to  them where  I  was go ing  to  be  fo r  the  10 

day,  and there fo re  we met  them but  a lso  Cha i r,  in  par t ,  i t  

was impor tan t  fo r  Mr  Tsots i  a t  h is  request  to  meet  

Pres ident  Zuma,  wh ich  he  d id .  So I  am say ing…inte rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    D id  he  meet  Pres ident  Zuma in  Durban?  

MS MYENI :    I t  was not  –  Cha i rperson,  so r ry  I  spoke over  

you.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  I  was ask ing  whether  he  -  Mr  Tsots i  

met  Pres ident  Zuma in  Durban on tha t  day?  

MS MYENI :    Yes,  Cha i rpe rson.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  cont inue,  you were  say ing  20 

someth ing  and I  in te r rup ted  you.  

MS MYENI :    I  am say ing  Cha i rperson,  i t  was  not  a  

co inc idence tha t  when I  am in  Gauteng there  is  a  need fo r  

me to  meet  Pres ident  Zuma,  then why –  perhaps he is  the  

area,  bu t  a f te r  meet ing ,  then I  am ab le  Cha i r  to  request  
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tha t  I  see whoever  tha t  I  am supposed to  see.   

L ike ,  fo r  ins tance in  Durban we have our  own  

meet ing  in  Durban fo r  the  foundat ion  bu t  i t  was oppor tune  

fo r  me Cha i r  to  pu t  Mr  Tsots i  in  charge w i th  P res ident  

Zuma per  h i s  request .   Hence,  there  was the  presence o f  

the  fac i l i ta to r,  Mr  Maswangany i .   So i t  i s  no t  l i ke  the  venue  

tha t  was be ing  used Cha i r,  was be ing  used because in  a l l  

the  meet ings Mr  Zuma wou ld  have  been present .    

But  Cha i r,  i t  looks  l i ke  Cha i r  I  am be ing  made to  be  

hav ing  such author i t y  tha t  whenever  someth ing  l i ke  tha t  –  10 

th is  was the  Pres ident  o f  the  count ry  Cha i r,  and I  d id  no t  

know the  purpose tha t  Mr  Tsots i  wanted to  meet  w i th  

Pres ident  Zuma,  fo r  what  i s  the  pu rpose.   

I t  appears  to  me now today  when I  look  a t  

every th ing  tha t  has been sa id ,  and the  t imes in  wh ich  you 

have brought  h im  back to  the  mee t ing ,  many t imes he has 

come back to  th i s  Commiss ion .   I  have l i s tened to  h im and 

I  came to  unders tand tha t  the  i ssues tha t  he  wanted,  he 

wou ld  have ra i sed w i th  me he never  d id  and I  go t  to  

unders tand tha t  he  h imse l f  had breached,  no t  oa th  as  such  20 

but  he  had cha l lenges in  pe rson a t  Eskom.   

So I  am say ing  those d id  no t  in  fac t ,  he  d id  no t  

exp la in  such to  me.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Now,  in  Durban d id  Mr  Tsots i  have a  

separa te  meet ing  w i th  Pres ident  Zuma away  f rom 
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everybody or  what  happened,  how d id  -  where  d id  record  

the i r  meet ing  tak ing  p lace?  

MS MYENI :    I  do  no t  remember  tha t ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you sa id  they d id  meet  i s  i t  no t?  

MS MYENI :    They d id  meet  Cha i r  l i ke ,  Mr  Zuma came in to  

a  meet ing  where  we were ,  so  in  o ther  words,  they d id  greet  

maybe I  shou ld  say tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  bu t  Mr  Tsots i  had asked fo r  a  

meet ing  w i th  Mr  Zuma,  th rough you,  o r  had to ld  you  tha t  he 

wanted the  mee t ing  w i th  Mr  Zuma to  d i scuss cer ta in  10 

issues,  i s  i t  no t?  

MS MYENI :    Cha i r,  when a  person is  ask ing  fo r  a  meet ing  

w i th  Mr  Zuma I  do  no t  have to  be  there .   Whethe r  he  met  

h im on any o ther  day,  I  do  no t  know but  i t  does not  mean  

tha t  when a  person has asked fo r  a  meet ing  w i th  Pres ident  

Zuma,  I  shou ld  be  present  in  tha t  meet ing ,  de f in i te ly  no t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  on  tha t  day,  when you say they met  

you jus t  -  you mean tha t  they gree ted when Mr  Zuma came 

in?  

MS MYENI :    Yes ,  Cha i rpe rson,  so r ry,  he  d id  come in to  the  20 

room where  we were .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  Mr  Se leka .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yeah,  I  th ink  Cha i r  has exhausted most  

o f  the  quest ions and…inte rvene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am leav ing  i t  to  now ra i se…[ in tervene]  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Spec i f i c  ones.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Spec i f i c  ones,  because we now have a  

p ic tu re  o f  what  her  vers ion  is ,  in  te rms o f  what  you may  

w ish  to  pu t  to  her  in  the  l igh t  o f  what  o the r  w i tnesses have  

sa id .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yeah,  thank you Cha i r.  Ms  Myen i  

acco rd ing  to  Mr  L inne l l  the  subsequent  cor respondence 

between h im and  Mr  Tsots i ,  inc lud ing  an  emai l  he  sent  to  

you,  where  he  g i ves  you an update  o f  what  s teps had been  

taken to  tha t  po in t ,  he  says  are  ind ica t ive  o f  what  10 

t ransp i red  in  the  meet ings,  the  two meet ings tha t  we have  

re fer red  to ,  and the  purpose fo r  those meet ings and you 

w i l l  see  the  annexures to  h i s  a f f idav i t .  Do you have any  

comment  on  tha t?  

MS MYENI :    I  have no comment  Cha i r ;  i t  i s  the  same th ing  

tha t  I  am say ing  th is  i s  N ick ’s  vers ion .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    We d id  pu t  your  vers ion  –  we l l  inso fa r  

as  we gathered f rom your  s ta tement  to  the  Par l iamenta ry  

Por t fo l io  Commi t tee  and he was qu i te  unequ ivoca l  in  h is  -  I  

wou ld  say den ia l  o f  your  vers ion  tha t  Mr  Tsots i  was in  the 20 

meet ing  in  Durban to  d iscuss what  you say are  h is  -  Mr  

Tsots i  i ssues a t  Eskom.   

He was spec i f i c  tha t  the  d i scuss ions revo lved  

around what  was ind ica ted  to  them was the  Pres ident ' s  

des i re  to  have an inqu i ry  conduc ted and a l l  th ree  o f  the  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 221 of 243 
 

execut ives  to  be  suspended.   

MS MYENI :    What  i s  you r  quest ion  Mr  Se leka?  

ADV SELEKA SC:    That  he  is  -  he  was ve ry  c lea r  in  

say ing  your  vers ion  is  no t  co r rec t .   That  Mr  Tsots i  there  to  

d iscuss h is  own issues a t  Eskom.   Were  you –  he  even 

added tha t  he  wou ld  no t  have f lown to  Durban,  he  wou ld  

no t  have f lown to  Durban on the  bas i s  o f  a  percept ion  tha t  

the  Board  wanted  to  remove Mr  Tsots i .   You your  comment?  

MS MYENI :    I  have no comment ,  Cha i r,  tha t  i s  Mr  L inne l l ’s  

vers ion  I  w i l l  pu t  be fore  my ve rs ion  in  Par l iament ,  th is  10 

s ta tement  I  w i l l  s tand by  the  s ta tement .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Mr  L inne l l  a lso  sa id  i f  I  reca l l  co r rec t l y,  

he  wou ld  never  have gone to  Durban fo r  a  meet ing  w i th  Mr  

Tsots i .   He wen t  to  Durban because you to ld  h im he 

needed to  come to  Durban,  to  go  to  Durban in  o rder  to  

meet  the  Pres ident .   He sa id  he  wou ld  never  have gone to  

Durban -  I  th ink  i t  was on a  Sunday  i f  I  am not  m is taken.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    I t  was,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    On a  Sunday jus t  to  meet  Mr  Tso ts i .  20 

MS MYENI :    Cha i rperson,  I  do  no t  want  to  ta lk  too  much,  i t  

i s  be t te r  fo r  me to  say tha t  i s  h is  vers ion  and I  do  no t  want  

to  ta lk  too  much.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    I s  there  a  reason why Mr  Tsots i  wou ld  

approach you to  seek a  meet ing  w i th  the  Pres ident?  
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MS MYENI :    I  was never  approached by  Mr  Tsots i  

Cha i rperson.  I  th ink  I  a l luded to  th is  f rom the  beg inn ing .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Okay,  le t  me c la r i f y  there…[ in te rvene]   

MS MYENI :    Somebody,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  me c la r i f y,  yes  because le t  me ask  

you th is ,  whether  ind i rec t l y,  le t  us  say he  is  approach ing  

you ind i rec t l y,  th rough a  person you have ment ioned,  was 

the  m idd leman.   Why wou ld  tha t  approach be made  to  you 

fo r  a  meet ing  w i th  the  Pres ident?  

MS MYENI :    Mr  Se leka tha t  i s  a  quest ion  tha t  you must  10 

ask  –  o r  tha t  cou ld  have been bet te r  asked or  answered by  

Mr  Tsots i  because I  d id  no t  know Jabu who came to  

approach me.   Second ly,  work ing  in  p rox im i ty,  I  was 

work ing  c lose to  Pres ident  Zuma th rough h is  foundat ion ,  

tha t  i s  a  s ta r t ing  po in t .   I t  i s  a  common,  i t  i s  a  common 

knowledge,  Cha i r.   

 Second ly,  Mr  Tsots i  has gone to  see the  f i rs t  lady  in  

Pre tor ia  to  seek -  to  see Min is te r  Zuma.   So i t  i s  no t  l i ke  

he  jus t  se lec ted  me out  o f  the  b lue .  He t r ied  to  go  and see  

somebody e lse  to  t ry  and fac i l i ta te  the  meet ing .  I t  i s  20 

in fo rmat ion  tha t  Mr  Tsots i  shou ld  have dec la red.   I t  i s  not  

l i ke  he  came to  me and jus t  sa id ,  I  want  to  see Mr  Zuma.  

No…[ in tervene]  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  we l l…[ in te rvene]  

MS MYENI :    He  have t r ied  many  o ther  peop le  to  go  and 
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see Mr  Zuma and then he then sent  to  th is  person.   I t  i s  

no t  l i ke  Mr  Tsots i  dec ided -  woke up and dec ided,  I  must  go  

th rough to  see Mr  Zuma,  no .   Jabu came to  me,  I  do  no t  

know how Jabu got  to  know tha t  I  was work ing  fo r  the 

foundat ion .   I  do  no t  know how Jabu got  to  know even my 

number  bu t  I  go t  a  ca l l  f rom h im.   He asked fo r  the  meet ing 

tha t  I  must  meet  Mr  Tsots i ,  I  met  h im and I  never  re fused to  

meet  peop le  l i ke  my co l league,  he  was cha i r ing  another  

SOE.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  we l l  the  reason why the  quest ion ,  10 

tha t  quest ion  I  d i rec ted  to  you is  because I  cou ld  no t  d i rec t  

i t  to  h im.   On h i s  vers ion ,  you ca l led  h im dur ing  o r  about  

tha t  i s  Mr  Tsots i ,  dur ing  or  about  the  7 t h  o f  March  2015 and 

you asked h im,  accord ing  to  h im,  to  come to  Durban fo r  a  

meet ing  w i th  the  Pres ident .   That  i s  accord ing  to  h im.   

But  acco rd ing  to  you,  and tha t  i s  why I  am d i rec t ing  

tha t  quest ion  to  you is  tha t  he  was  the  one who ca l led  you.  

I  mean,  he  sent  the  m idd leman,  Mr  Jabu Maswangany i  in  

o rder  to  request  a  meet ing  w i th  t he  Pres ident .   But  why -  

d id  you ask  yourse l f  why do you come to  me,  th is  i s  the  20 

Pres ident  o f  the  count ry,  why do  not  you go th rough h i s  

o f f i ce?   D id  you hear  me? 

MS MYENI :    I  heard  you very  we l l ,  Mr  Se leka,  I  heard  you  

very  we l l .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.  
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MS MYENI :    That  to  say why do  you come to  me,  why do  

you not  go  to  the  next  person.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No,  no ,  why do you not  go  th rough the  

o f f i ce  o f  the  Pres ident ,  th is  i s  a f te r  a l l  the  Pres iden t  o f  the 

count ry.   Why shou ld  I  secure  a  meet ing…[ in te rvene]  

MS MYENI :    My job  was not  to  fac i l i ta te  meet ings;  i t  must  

be  unders tood.   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s…[ [ in te rvene]  

MS MYENI :    I t  i s  no t  someth ing  l i ke  I  wou ld  jus t  be  exc i ted  

about  tha t  somebody wants  to  mee t  the  Pres ident ,  never.   I  10 

must  jus t  say,  when Jabu came to  me fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime,  

ca l led  me fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime,  fo r  the  las t  t ime,  I  sa id ,  no ,  I  

cannot  do  tha t  bu t  a lso  Cha i r  i t  was t ime I  was ex t remely  

busy.   

So I  sa id ,  I  cannot  do  tha t  bu t  a lso  Cha i r  i f  Jabu,  i f  

Zo la  Tsots i  wanted to  meet  me there  were  meet ings tha t  

were  be ing  done  between Cha i rs  o f  the  Board  and the  

Min is te r.   Why d id  he  no t  approach me because I  d id  no t  

know h im th is  par t i cu la r  person to ld  me tha t  he  is  

spec i f i ca l l y  want ing  to  take  f rom my unders tand ing  o f  how 20 

to  go  about  ge t t ing  the  lega l  adv i so r.   

So I  was not  go ing  to  go  and say,  i f  you  want  to  go  

and meet  the  Pres ident ,  jus t  go  w i th  the  Pres ident  o f  the  

count ry.   I  was not  go ing  to  say tha t ,  so  most  o f  the  th ings  

t ransp i red  when I  met  w i th  Mr  Tsots i  i t  was not  the  t ime 
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when I  was in te rac t ing  w i th  Maswangany i .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    So  are  you are  you say ing  to  the  

Cha i rperson tha t  the  request  by  Mr  Tsots i  th rough Mr  

Maswangany i  was twofo ld .   One was to  meet  w i th  you to  

ask  how to  appo in t  a  lega l  adv i sor  and two was to  meet  

w i th  the  Pres ident  fo r  a  reason tha t  was not  d i sc losed to  

you,  o r  was i t?  

MS MYENI :    The f i rs t  one was more  g la r i ng  because he 

h igh l igh ted  issues,  tha t  he  sa id  he  wou ld  pre fer  to  have a  

lega l  adv iser  and  then tha t  i s  where  I  exp la ined tha t  even 10 

i f  he  has to  meet  our  lega l  adv iso r,  he  s t i l l  meet  the  Board  

by  h i s  s ide .   Th i s  i s  the  exp lanat ion  I  made and then he 

sa id ,  he  wou ld  a l so  l i ke  to  meet  w i th  the  Pres ident .   

But ,  Mr  Se leka,  I  d id  no t  see any c r ime in  do ing  

tha t ,  because I  have done tha t  w i th  many peop le  as  we l l .   

So  i f  i t  was an  o f fense,  a  c r im ina l  o f fense fo r  me to  

fac i l i ta te  a  meet ing  where  the  person asked to  meet  w i th  

Pres ident  Zuma,  and w i thout  d ivu lg ing  the  reasons why you  

want  to  meet  w i th  Pres ident  Zuma,  then i t  was [speak ing  in  

vernacu lar ] ,  because i t  was i t  was  someth ing  tha t  I  d id  no t  20 

cons ider  a t  the  t ime to  say hey,  do  no t  come to  me,  wr i te  to  

the  Pres idency,  go  meet  w i th  Pres ident  Zuma in  the  

Pres idency,  go  to  Un ion  Bu i ld ing .   

I  d id  no t  th ink  tha t  way but  now tha t  you are  say ing  

i t  I  shou ld  have sa id  i t .  
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ADV SELEKA SC:    Le t  me –  we l l ,  yeah,  I  was not  

p ropos ing  tha t  i t  i s  a  c r im ina l  bu t  le t  me te l l  you ,  why are  

we ask ing  th is  quest ions,  because you see the  meet ing ,  

the  f i rs t  meet ing  w i th  Mr  L inne l l  in  Pre tor ia  on  the  6 t h .   Mr  

L inne l l ,  says  i t  was on ly  be tween the  two o f  you,  you and 

h im.   Mr  Tsots i  i s  no t  invo lved in  tha t  meet ing  and the  

meet ing  subsequent  to  tha t  i s  a  seque l  on  Mr  L inne l l ’s  

vers ion  to  the  meet ing  o f  the  6 t h  o f  March .   The two 

meet ings are  l inked and they seem to  have been in i t ia ted ,  

no t  by  Mr  Tsots i  bu t  by  yourse l f .  10 

MS MYENI :    I  deny these vers ions o f  s to r ies ,  the  s tor ies  

tha t  a re  be ing  pu t  be fore  you Cha i rpe rson.   One,  I  met  Mr  

L inne l l  on  numerous occas ions.   I  was not  go ing  to  meet  Mr  

L inne l l  jus t  because there  must  be  Pres ident  ava i lab le  o r  

needed the  Pres ident  somewhere .   Mr  L inne l l  was  

consu l t ing  fo r  SAA former l y  so ,  so  meet ing  Mr  L inne l l  I  was  

not  go ing  to  say  fo r  th is  par t i cu la r  meet ing  there  le t  us  

move f rom th is  par t i cu la r  p lace ,  le t  us  go  and meet  

somewhere  e lse ,  no .   

 And I  sa id  I  have no reco l lec t ion  o f  th is  meet ing  and  20 

the  contents  o f  the  d iscuss ion  because I  do  no t  have my 

d ia ry  w i th  me nor  do  I  have the  meet ing  m inutes  o f  the  

meet ing  and the  d iscuss ions the reof  o f  the  meet ings in  

Pre tor ia .   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yeah,  Cha i r  I  do  no t  th ink  one can take  



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 227 of 243 
 

the  mat te r  fu r the r  here .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  i s  there  –  i s  tha t  a l l  you  wanted to  

pu t  to  her?   

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    A r is ing  f rom her  ev idence Cha i r,  I  th ink  

most  o f  the  quest ions i t  has  been covered in  your  

quest ion ing  o f  he r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  the  submiss ions tha t  you be l i eve  you 

w i l l  make in  due course  about  he r  vers ion  compared  to  tha t  10 

o f  Mr  Tsots i  and Mr  L inne l l  tha t  you wanted to  ge t  a  chance  

to  say someth ing  about  o r  no t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  le t  me t ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l ,  I  am not  say ing  do  i t  i f  you  do not  

have,  I  am jus t  ask ing .  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yeah,  my sense is  we have  covered  

Cha i r,  the  issues because I  cou ld  -  le t  me do th is ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  no ,  I  am not  encourag ing  you to  

s ta r t  a f resh.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    No.   20 

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:    Yes,  Ms Myen i  I  am go ing  to  j us t  pu t  

th is  to  you and le t  me hear  what  you have to  say.   I  have  

seen an emai l  addressed to  you by  Mr  L inne l l .   He dea ls  

w i th  tha t  in  parag raph 49 o f  h i s  a f f idav i t  on  page 37 and he  
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says :  

 “A t  the  same t ime on 18 March  2015 I  a lso  

emai led  a  repor t  to  Ms Myen i ,  be ing  the  

in te rmed iary  o f  the  pres ident .   Th is  inc luded 

cop ies  o f  the  same te rms o f  re fe rence and the  

proposed media  re leased been  sent  to  the 

Cha i r  and Ms Mabude.   I t  a lso  inc luded a 

br ie f ing  document  updat ing  on  p rogress wh ich  

inc luded re ference to  the  cons ide ra t ions o f  a  

re t i red  judge. ”  10 

 He does say in  paragraph 51 tha t  he  never  rece ived  

a  response f rom you to  tha t  emai l .   That  emai l  i s  on  page  

57 o f  Eskom Bund le  6 .   I t  i s  addressed to  an  emai l  

sk i l l sdm@mweb.co .za .   I t  was read on the  18 t h  o f  March  

2015 a t  12H38.   He wr i tes :  

 “H i  D.   P lease f ind  . . . ”  

 Then he g i ves  th ree  documents :  

 “B r ie f ing  document  te rms o f  re fe rence to  be  

conf i rmed,  med ia  s ta tement  to  be  conf i rmed.   

Chat  now,  regards N ick . ”  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  the  po in t  about  the  emai l?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   So  th is  i s  subsequent  cor respondence  

Ms Myen i ,  tha t  Mr  L inne l l  says  they wou ld  conf i rm the  

contents  o f  the  meet ings tha t  took p lace on the  6 t h  o f  

March  and the  8 t h  o f  March 2015.   As  he  says here  

mailto:skillsdm@mweb.co.za


25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 229 of 243 
 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Remember,  she does not  deny the  

meet ings.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  she den ies  the  contents  o f  the 

meet ings,  yes .   

CHAIRPERSON:   What  i s  in  the  emai l  tha t  he lps  us  w i th  

the  content?  

ADV SELEKA SC:   I t  dea ls  w i th ,  i t  w i l l  dea l  w i th  the  te rms 

o f  re fe rence to  es tab l i sh  an  inqu i ry.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   10 

ADV SELEKA SC:   The issue o f  the  suspens ion  o f  the 

execut ive .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV SELEKA SC:   And . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  maybe le t  us  say th is .   Ms  Myen i ,  

the  ve rs ion  tha t  has been g i ven by  Mr  L inne l l ,  cer ta in ly  in  

regard  to  the  meet ing  o f  the  8 t h  o f  March  in  Durban,  i s  

backed up by  cor respondence,  emai ls  and reso lu t ions and 

memos tha t  he  p repared e i ther  on  the  same day or  soon  

thereaf te r,  and he gave ev idence tha t  the  contents  o f  those 20 

emai ls  and memo’s  tha t  he  p repared,  re f lec ted  o r  were  

cons is ten t  w i th  the  d iscuss ions a t  the  meet ing .   

 Some o f  those emai ls  o r  memos or  reso lu t ions tha t  

were  sought  to  be  pu t  be fo re  the  Eskom Board ,  some o f  

them re f lec t  o r  a re  cons is ten t  w i t h  the  ve rs ion  tha t  a t  the  
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Durban meet ing  the  issue o f  an  inqu i ry  in to  the  Eskom 

af fa i rs ,  in to  the  a f fa i rs  o f  Eskom and the  suspens ion  o f  

cer ta in  execut ives  d id  take  p lace.   

 That  d iscuss ion  d id  take  p lace.   I f  you  say such a  

d iscuss ion  d id  no t  take  p lace,  a re  you suggest ing  tha t  Mr  

L inne l l  fabr ica ted  a l l  o f  these documents  in  o rde r  to  

imp l ica te  eve rybody who was in  tha t  meet ing ,  in to  i ssues 

tha t  they never  d i scussed.   I s  tha t  what  you are  say ing?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i rpe rson,  to  s ta r t  w i th  f rom what  Mr  Se leka  

has asked,  I  hope I  am pronounc ing  your  surname 10 

cor rec t l y.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Se leka.   

MS MYENI :   The fac t  i s  tha t  there  was,  Se leka?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MS MYENI :   Thank you Cha i r.   The fac t  tha t  there  is  an 

emai l  tha t  i s  be ing  spoken about ,  the  fac t  tha t  tha t  emai l  

has no t  been answered,  i t  means I  do  no t  know about  th is  

who le  th ing .   Cha i r,  i f  you  have an in te res t  in  the  mat te r,  

no  emai l  wou ld  be  sent  and not  be  responded to .   

 That  i s  the  s ta r t ing  po in t .   The second th ing ,  maybe  20 

tha t  emai l  I  was be ing  se t  up  w i thout  me knowing tha t  I  am 

be ing  se t  up  fo r  someth ing  tha t  I  do  no t  know.   Today I  am 

in  a  cour t  o f  the  commiss ion  or  I  am in  th is  commiss ion ,  

and the re  is  th ings tha t  had noth ing  to  do  w i th  me.   That  i s  

one.   
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 Two,  Cha i r.   No suspens ion  eve r  happens o f  any 

execut ive  in  any en t i t y  o r  government  en t i t y  w i thout  

fo l low ing the  process.   Three,  Cha i r.   I  cou ld  ask  Mr  Se leka 

i f  Mr  Tsots i  and the  board  appo in ted  Mr  L inne l l  to  adv ise  

them.   

 I f  they  d id  appo in t  h im,  he  was do ing  h i s  job .   So  

[vernacu la r  –  00 :06 :29] .   Sor ry  Cha i r,  I  do  no t  know where  

I  come in .   I  honest ly  do  no t  know.   I f  Mr  L inne l l  was  

appo in ted  a t  Eskom,  there  wou ld  have been te rms o f  

re fe rence g i ven to  h im.   10 

 One,  a  board  reso lu t ion  appo in t ing  h im.   Two,  the  

scope o f  work  he  is  appo in ted  to  do ,  i t  has  no th ing  to  do  

w i th  me.   I  do  no t  know how e l se  I  can exp la in  th is .    

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   You see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :   Un less  my name must  be  dragged in to  Eskom 

to  in te r fe re  w i th  another  SOE.   I t  cannot  be  Cha i r.   I t  

cannot  be .   I  do  no t  agree w i th  a l l  tha t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   You see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :   The emai ls  [ ind i s t inc t ]  no t  opened.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  cont inue.   20 

MS MYENI :   Bu t  i t  was [ ind is t inc t ] .   Cha i r,  sor ry  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  I  am say ing  cont inue.   I  am sor ry,  I  

in te r rup ted  you.   Cont inue.   

MS MYENI :   No p rob lem.   I  am say ing  Cha i r,  I  must  answer  

to  an  emai l  tha t  was sent  to  me.   An emai l  was not  
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answered.   An emai l  was not  seen.   I  am see ing ,  I  am 

read ing  i t  now.   I  am see ing  i t  fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime.   I  had no  

ro le  Cha i r.   

 I  had no in te res t .   I  d id  no t  have any in te res t  even  

today.   We s t i l l  hea r  about  the  l oo t ing  a t  Eskom.   I  have 

got  no  in te res t .   I  never  d id  then [vernacu lar  –  00 :07 :54] .   I  

have no ro le  to  fac i l i ta t ing  suspens ion  o f  anyone w i thout  

fo l low ing the  process.    

 [ vernacu la r  –  00 :08 :04]  w i thout  fo l low ing  

[vernacu la r ] .   Un less  i t  i s  someth ing  tha t  I  do  no t  10 

unders tand,  bu t  there  a re  processes and there  a re  laws 

govern ing  how the  board  does i t s  job .   So Cha i r,  honest ly  I  

am los t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  you see I  have to  make f ind ings in  

the  end about  what  was d iscussed a t  the  meet ing  in  

Pre tor ia  be tween  you and Mr  L inne l l ,  and I  must  make  

f ind ings as  to  what  was d i scussed  a t  the  Durban meet ing  

and whether  Pres ident  Zuma then was present  a t  the 

meet ing  a t  the  second meet ing  tha t  bo th  Mr  L inne l l  and Mr  

Tsots i  spoke about .   20 

 Now one,  you have sa id  you have  no reco l lec t ion  o f  

what  was d iscussed between you and Mr  L inne l l  a t  the  

Pre tor ia  meet ing .   On the  o ther  hand Mr  L inne l l  was qu i te  

c lea r  about  what  was d iscussed a t  tha t  meet ing .    

 Two,  w i th  regard  to  the  meet ing  in  Durban,  Mr  
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L inne l l  gave ev idence about  what  was d i scussed.   Mr  

Tsots i  gave ev idence about  what  was d i scussed.   I f  I  reca l l  

cor rec t l y,  to  a  very  la rge  ex ten t  the i r  ev idence is  cons is ten t  

most  o f  the  t ime w i th  one ’s  ev idence is  cons i s ten t  w i th  the  

ev idence o f  the  o ther.   

 They both  sa id  you were  no t  on ly  pa r t  o f  the  

meet ing ,  bu t  you were  p lay ing  the  ro le  o f  the  Cha i rperson.   

You were  cent ra l  in  the  who le  d iscuss ion .   Now as we  

know,  Mr  Tsots i  and Mr  L inne l l  had not  known each o ther  

be fore  th is  pa r t i cu la r  da te  as  fa r  as  I  unders tand.   10 

 I  do  no t  know i f  they  m ight  have spoken on the  

phone,  on  the  7 t h  ahead o f  the  meet ing .   They might  have  

spoken but  they had not  met  be fore  the  8 t h  and ye t  you and  

Mr  L inne l l  had been work ing  toge ther  on  SAA issues,  and 

as  I  unders tand [ ind is t inc t ]  Wate r  Board  issues as  we l l .   

 So  the  two o f  you,  he  was a t  the  meet ing  because  

he had been asked by  you to  come to  the  meet ing .   So I  

have to  ask  myse l f  the  quest ion  d id  these two sudden ly  

consp i re  aga ins t  you?  Mr  Zo la  Tsots i  and Mr  L inne l l ,  who 

d id  no t  know each o the r  be fore  th i s  da te ,  consp i re  aga ins t  20 

you tha t  they must  fa lse ly  imp l ica te  you as  hav ing  taken a  

very  ac t i ve  ro le  in  th is  meet ing ,  and why wou ld  Mr  L inne l l  

want  to  do  tha t  to  you?   

 You and your  board  a t  SAA had g iven h im bus iness,  

had g iven h im work .   You t rus ted  h im.   You have sa id  he  i s  
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an  honest  man.   Why wou ld  he  tu rn  aga ins t  you together  

w i th  Mr  Tsots i  now and fa lse ly  imp l ica te  you in to  hav ing  

p layed a  very  ac t i ve  ro le  in  th is  meet ing ,  i f  in  fac t  tha t  i s  

no t  what  happened?  

MS MYENI :   Cha i r,  i s  th is  the  las t  quest ion  Cha i r,  because  

I  need to  go  to  the  ba throom.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  we w i l l  take  a  f i ve  m inu te ,  ten 

m inutes  break i f  you  need to  go  to  the  ba throom,  bu t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :   Not  now,  I  was jus t  ask ing  how long.   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   No,  I  th ink  we a re  a t  the  ta i l  end.   

We are  a t  the  ta i l  end.   

MS MYENI :   Cha i r,  can I  say  someth ing  to  you?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MS MYENI :   I  have pres ided in  the  board  o f  South  A f r i can 

A i rways together  w i th  the  board  o f  e leven,  seven  peop le  

and so  on .   Why wou ld  I  be  the  on ly  one charged fo r  SAA’s  

i ssues and maladmin is t ra t ion ,  and be taken to  cour t ,  when  

not  once has the  CEO been po in ted  out  o r  ca l led  in to  th is  

commiss ion .   20 

 Not  one CEO has  been ca l led .   That  i s  one.   So why  

wou ld  Mr  L inne l l  consp i re  w i th  Zo la  Tsots i  and do  

someth ing  aga ins t  me?  I t  i s  one s imp le  reason Cha i r.   I  

am assoc ia ted  w i th  the  fo rmer  P res ident  Jacob G Zuma 

th rough h i s  foundat ion .   
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 That  i s  the  on ly  reason.   

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MS MYENI :   I t  i s  my reason and my ve rs ion ,  so r ry  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am sor ry,  cont inue.   I  am sor ry,  

cont inue.   

MS MYENI :   I f  my unders tand ing  and my reason ing  i s  

wrong,  somebody  must  g i ve  me someth ing  e lse .   Then I  w i l l  

be l ieve  tha t ,  bu t  Cha i rperson,  fo r  eve ry th ing  I  have done  

and I  d id  every th ing  accord ing  to  the  book Cha i r,  because I  

had an unders tand ing  la te r  in  l i fe  tha t  I  am repor t ing  to  a  10 

person who is  wanted.   

 Mr  Zuma.   There fore  I  made su re  tha t  every th ing  I  

d id  was documented,  dec i s ions made are  documented,  

communica t ion  I  make,  i f  I  were  to  make a  communica t ion  

w i th  you Cha i r,  I  wou ld  fo l low  i t  up  w i th  an  emai l .   

There fore  I  made  every th ing  accord ing  to  the  book Cha i r.   

 We wou ld  no t  be  look ing  fo r  th ings tha t  we are  

look ing  fo r,  i f  I  had s to len  money a t  SAA Cha i r.   Today I  am 

before  you fo r  fac i l i ta t ing  a  meet ing  fo r  Zo la  Tsots i  to  meet  

Pres ident  Zuma,  o r  to  ass is t  Zo la  Tsots i  to  exp la in  to  h im 20 

how to  go  about  appo in t ing  a  lega l  adv iso r.   

 Even then Cha i r,  I  to ld  h im tha t  no  shor t  cu t .   You  

have to  do  th ings by  the  book .   You cannot  appo in t  

somebody a lone as  the  board  Cha i rman.   You have to  have  

your  board  a longs ide  w i th  you,  suppor t ing  you.   Take the  
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boa rd  in to  conf idence.   

 Cha i r,  tha t  was my adv ice ,  bu t  today Cha i r,  you are  

say ing  why wou ld  L inne l l  consp i re  w i th  whoever.   Cha i r,  

today you peop le  come there ,  they say th ings tha t  never  

occu r red .   They te l l  l i es  and goss ip .   They even  goss ip  

about  ce r ta in  th ings tha t  there  is  no  ev idence about .   

 L inne l l  shou ld  have produced  minutes  o f  a l l  

meet ings we had  and i f  L inne l l  shou ld  have not  cop ied  me 

on emai ls ,  i f  then i t  was not  a  se tup .   Fo r tunate ly  Cha i r,  

[ vernacu la r  –  00 :15 :50]  Cha i rpe rson,  and [vernacu lar ]  10 

Cha i rperson.   I  know when th ings w i l l  back f i re .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.    

MS MYENI :   [ ve rnacu la r  –  00 :16 :05]  Cha i rperson.   I  p ray  a  

lo t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Am I  cor rec t  o r  a re  you suggest ing  

tha t  Mr  L inne l l  may have imp l ica ted  you in  hav ing  p layed  

an ac t ive  ro le  in  th is  meet ing  because you are  assoc ia ted  

w i th  Mr  Zuma?  I s  tha t  what  you a re  say ing?  

MS MYENI :   I  do  no t  know Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   20 

MS MYENI :   You sa id  why wou ld  they consp i re .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MS MYENI :   So I  cannot  say  Mr  L inne l l  d id  th is  because o f  

my assoc ia t ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   
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MS MYENI :   Wi th  Mr  Zuma.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MS MYENI :   Cha i rperson,  in  some o f  the  commiss ion  

issues,  there  are  peop le  who b r ing  the i r  a f f idav i t s  and the i r  

a f f idav i t s  ge t  amended.   They are  a lso  asked to  say  cer ta in  

th ings and Cha i rpe rson,  when I  ra ised some issues o f  

concern ,  the  Cha i rperson sa id  he  does not  know some o f  

the  th ings tha t  have happened in  the  commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Hm.  

MS MYENI :   Cha i r,  I  submi t ted  ove r  13  cop ies  o f  cor rup t ion  10 

a t  SAA.   That  has  never  been touched.    

CHAIRPERSON:   To  the  commiss ion  or  where?  

MS MYENI :   Bu t  the  pe rson,  to  th is  par t i cu la r  commiss ion  

Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   To  th is  commiss ion?  

MS MYENI :   Th is  commiss ion  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You submi t ted ,  what  d id  you submi t  and 

when?  

MS MYENI :   No ,  I  am say ing  the  repor ts  Cha i r,  o f  the 

cor rup t ion  a t  SAA as we l l  as  the  repor ts  o f  Mr  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  20 

was submi t ted  in  th is  commiss ion  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   By  you?  

MS MYENI :   No,  no t  by  me.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  by  o the r  w i tnesses?  

MS MYENI :   Except  the ,  by  o the r  w i tnesses.   Many o ther  
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w i tnesses Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MS MYENI :   Bu t  those were  commiss ioned by  me Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

MS MYENI :   And I  submi t ted  them in  par l iament .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  yes .   

MS MYENI :   Bu t  the  person Cha i r  tha t  i s  the  ta rge t ,  i s  one 

and on ly  one.   I t  is  me.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MS MYENI :   Cha i r,  I  submi t ted  about  s ix  o r  seven repor ts  10 

by  S IU and the  invest iga t ion  tha t  appears  to  have  

d im in ished.   That  i s  why I  am say ing  Cha i r,  [ vernacu la r  –  

00 :18 :36] .   Why  my assoc ia t ion  w i th  fo rmer  Pres ident  

Zuma?   

 I t  i s  pa in fu l  Cha i r,  because i f  I  knew tha t  I  was  

go ing  to  be  a  ta rge t ,  I  wou ld  no t  have agreed to  serve  in  

h is  foundat ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes,  now jus t  to  ge t  th is  c lea r.   You were  

say ing  tha t  cer ta in  w i tnesses submi t ted  cer ta in  in fo rmat ion  

to  the  commiss ion .   You d id  no t  submi t  i t  to  the  commiss ion  20 

but  you d id  submi t  i t  somewhere  e lse?  The  S IU or  

someth ing?  

MS MYENI :   No ,  I  was say ing  Cha i r  f rom the  prev ious  

pos i t ion  I  was ho ld ing  be fore  I  le f t ,  I  was ca l led .   There  

was an invest iga t ion  aga ins t  Mr  X .   That ,  those  cop ies  
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were  g iven to  me  because I  needed to  read what  I  needed 

to  respond to .   

 I t  was S IU dea l ing  w i th  the  invest iga t ion  there ,  

imp l ica t ing  d i rec t l y  Mr  X ,  bu t  Mr  X  Cha i r  has never  been  

ca l led  to  answer  those issue tha t  a re  conta ined there  in  

the  S IU repor t .   I  am say ing  i f  then the  s ta tement  o f  say ing  

are  the  peop le  co l lud ing  aga ins t  you and so  on?  

 No Cha i r,  I  am say ing  I  do  no t  know whethe r  they  

are  co l lud ing  or  no t ,  bu t  I  am gu i l t y  o f  the  assoc ia t ion  o f  

Mr  Pres ident  Zuma.   That  i s  a l l  I  can  say and Cha i r,  i f  I  can  10 

change,  maybe tomorrow le t  me go and jo in  IFP.   Maybe I  

w i l l  be  sa fe  there .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Thank you.   Mr  Buthe lez i?  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   Sor ry  Cha i r,  I  wanted to  p rov ide  some 

c la r i t y  w i th  regards to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   

ADV BUTHELEZI :   The repor ts  tha t  she makes re ference 

to .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

ADV BUTHELEZI :   At  our  las t  appearance a t  the  20 

commiss ion  las t  year,  as  par t  o f  the  annexures tha t  came 

wi th  ou r  suppor t i ng  a f f idav i t  a t  the  t ime,  there  was  severa l  

repor ts  wh ich  Ms Myen i  has commiss ioned as Cha i r  a t  

SAA,  inc lud ing  ENS.   I  th ink  there  is  one f rom Ernest  

Nyambo.   
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 I t  was a  ser ies  o f  repor t s .   I  th ink  in  to ta l  they  came 

to  about  11  fo rens ic  repor ts  about  cor rup t ion  issues  a t  SAA 

and I  th ink  the re  i s  another  two tha t  were  pa r t  o f  the  

annexures tha t  fo rmed par t  o f  our  submiss ion  fo r  

[ ind is t inc t ]  Water.   

 I  th ink  those are  the  ones she says she submi t ted  

them to  th is  commiss ion ,  bu t  no th ing  has come o f  i t .   

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l ,  can  I  ask  tha t  you cause your  

ins t ruc t ing  a t to rneys to  wr i te  to  the  sector  o f  the 

commiss ion  and say exact ly  what  was submi t ted  and what  10 

the  concern  is  as  you ar t i cu la te  i t  and the  secre tary  w i l l  

b r ing  tha t  to  my a t ten t ion  and the  le t te r  to  the  sec re tary  i f  

i t  can  make re fe rence to  the  fac t  tha t  a t  th is  hear ing  I  

asked tha t  a  le t te r  be  wr i t ten  to  [ ind is t inc t ] .  

 He w i l l  b r ing  to  my a t ten t ion  so  tha t  I  unders tand 

exact ly  what  the  pos i t ion  is .   o f  course ,  i f  the  compla in t  o r  

concern  is  tha t  she submi t ted  repor t s  to  the  commiss ion  

tha t  imp l ica ted  cer ta in  peop le  i n  ac ts  o f  cor rup t ion ,  bu t  the  

commiss ion  has no t  looked in to  those a l legat ions,  I  wou ld  

want  to  unders tand tha t  and the  lega l  team wou ld  want  to  20 

look a t  tha t ,  tha t  was dea l ing  w i th  Nh la tuze and SAA.   

 But  o f  course ,  I  s ta r ted  ca l l ing  fo r  peop le  in  2018 to  

come fo rward  and g ive  the  commiss ion  in fo rmat ion  so  tha t  

the  commiss ion  cou ld  invest iga te ,  and in fo rmat ion  tha t  

came la te  when there  m ight  no t  be  enough t ime,  m ight  no t  
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have enab led  the  commiss ion  to  look  i n to  those mat te rs .   

But  I  wou ld  l i ke  t o  make sure  tha t  a  le t te r  i s  wr i t ten  by  your  

ins t ruc t ing  a t to rneys,  to  the  sector  o f  the  commiss ion .   

 Ra ise  the  issues  and ident i f y  exact ly  what  i s  your  

thoughts  and then the  sec re ta ry  w i l l  d raw my a t ten t ion  to  

i t .   

ADV BUTHELEZI :   We wi l l  do  Cha i r,  thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A l r igh t .   I  do  no t  have any  fu r ther  

quest ions.   I  th ink  you were  done.   

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  I  am done .   I  wou ld  jus t  l i ke  to  ask  10 

one more  quest ion  Cha i r,  wh ich  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Ms Myen i ,  i f  you  can hear  me,  in  so  fa r  

as  your  ve rs ion  is  tha t  the  meet ings were  in i t ia ted  by  Mr  

Tsots i ,  d id  you keep minutes  o f  those meet ings tha t  you 

had w i th  h im?  I  see you say th is  was not  the  f i rs t  meet ing  

w i th  h im.  

 In  your  s ta tement .   

MS MYENI :   No,  I  sa id  to  the  Cha i rperson tha t  whenever  I  

have a  meet ing ,  whenever  I  had a  meet ing  I  wou ld  have a  20 

d ia ry  where  i t  says  meet ing  w i th  Mr  Tsots i  and the  venue 

where  we are  meet ing .   So I  am say ing  tha t  I  wou ld  have  

known tha t  th is  par t i cu la r  meet ing  was fo r  me and Mr  

Tsots i .   

 Th is  par t i cu la r  meet ing  was fo r  me and Mr  L inne l l  
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and Mr  Tsots i .   That  i s  why I  do  no t  want  to  commi t  myse l f  

in to  the  da tes .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   Yes,  bu t  wou ld  you I  mean you are  

a l lud ing  to  keep ing  record .   I  th ink  what  I  am ask ing  or  

ge t t ing  to  i s  whether  you w i l l  have  the  d ia ry  o f  2015 where  

you wou ld  have kept  record?  

MS MYENI :   No.   No Cha i r,  no .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   There  are  no  m inutes .   10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV SELEKA SC:   There  are  no  m inutes?  

MS MYENI :   My house has been broken in to  Cha i r,  so  I  do  

no t  know what  I  wou ld  have.   No,  no  m inutes  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .   D id  you in tend re-

examin ing  Mr  Buthe lez i?  

ADV BUTHELEZI :   No Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   No,  okay a l r igh t .   Thank you very  much 

Ms Myen i  fo r  ava i l ing  yourse l f  to  pu t  your  s ide  o f  the  s to ry  

and to  dea l  w i th  quest ions.   We have come to  the  end o f  20 

the  sess ion .   I  th ink  tha t  Mr  Buthe lez i ,  do  take  the  

oppor tun i ty  i f  you  wou ld  w ish  to  make wr i t ten  submiss ions  

as  to  wh ich  vers ion  shou ld  be  accepted and wh ich  one  

shou ld  no t  be  accepted w i th  regard  to  the  var ious  

w i tnesses in  so  fa r  as  these two meet ings are  concerned.   



25 MAY 2021 – DAY 402 
 

Page 243 of 243 
 

 Because the re  w i l l  no t  be  ora l  a rgument ,  bu t  I  w i l l  

a l low wr i t ten  submiss ions.   So I  wou ld  say p lease  le t  me 

have whatever  wr i t ten  submiss ions you w ish  to  send 

th rough on or  be fore  the  15 t h  o f  June.   I s  tha t  f ine? 

ADV BUTHELEZI :   I  have a l ready got  enough homework  

Cha i r,  bu t  i t  i s  f ine  Cha i r.   

CHAIRPERSON:   You are  counse l .   So tha t  i s  your  

dead l ine .   Okay,  a l r igh t .   Thank you very  much once aga in  

Ms Myen i .   Thank you Mr  Se leka  and your  team.   Thank 

you to  the  techn ic ians.   Thank you to  Mr  Buthe lez i  and the  10 

s ta f f .  

 I  see Ms Hofmeyr  i s  s t i l l  a round .   Thank you Ms  

Hofmeyr.   Thank you very  much.   We are  go ing  to  ad journ  

now.   Fo r  the  benef i t  o f  the  pub l i c  I  ment ioned tha t  

tomorrow I  w i l l  be  hear ing  the  ev idence o f  Mr  Tom Moyane 

dur ing  the  day sess ion .  

 We ad journ .    

ADV HOFMEYR:   Thank you Cha i r.    

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 26 MAY 2021  


